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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the FORTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF STOVEC
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: L45200GJ1973PLC050790) will be held on Thursday, 9th day of May, 2019 at
11:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company, to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended December 31,
2018, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditor’s thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra (DIN: 00481154), who retires by rotation and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4. To partially modify the resolution related to appointment of Statutory Auditors and if thought fit, to

pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended by the
Companies (Amendment) Act 2017, effective from May 7, 2018, the consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to delete the requirement of seeking ratification of appointment
of Statutory Auditors, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 117366W/W-100018) at every Annual General Meeting, from the resolution passed at the 43rd

Annual General Meeting of the Company held on May 11, 2017."
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. Appointment of Ms. Sangeeta Puneet Singh Sachdev (DIN: 08118379) as a Director of the

Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution
“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Sangeeta Puneet Singh Sachdev (DIN: 08118379) who was appointed by
the Board of Directors as an Additional Director w.e.f. May 2, 2018 to hold office upto the date of 45th

Annual General Meeting of the Company, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, who
is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing her candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.”

6. Appointment of Mr. Eiko Ris (DIN: 07428696) as a Director of the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Eiko Ris (DIN: 07428696) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an
Additional Director w.e.f. March 12, 2019 to hold office upto the date of 45th Annual General Meeting
of the Company, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, who is eligible for appointment
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

7. Re-appointment of Mr. Shailesh Wani (DIN: 06474766) as a Managing Director of the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), if any, read with Schedule V to the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) or amendment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to such other
approval as may be necessary, the consent of the Members of the Company, be and is hereby
accorded for the re-appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Shailesh Wani (DIN: 06474766),
as the Managing Director of the Company, with effect from October 1, 2019, for a period of 3 (three)
years, on the terms and conditions including those relating to remuneration as set out in the
Agreement executed with the Managing Director and as mentioned in the explanatory statement
attached to this notice, with liberty to the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof to alter and/or
vary the terms and conditions of said re-appointment and remuneration in such manner as may be
agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Shailesh Wani.”



45TH ANNUAL REPORT 2018

4

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to such statutory approvals as may be necessary, consent of
the Members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to pay gross remuneration (including
variable pay) not exceeding Rs. 20 Million (Rupees Twenty Million only) per annum to Mr. Shailesh
Wani, Managing Director, during the tenure of his employment till 30th September, 2022, with liberty
to the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof to alter and/or vary, increase, enhance or widen
the scope of said remuneration in accordance with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act (including any amendment, modification, variation or re-enactment thereof) and in
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Shailesh Wani.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the said remuneration shall be payable to Mr. Shailesh Wani as and by
way of minimum remuneration and irrespective of, whether the Company has inadequate or no
profit in any financial year.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
take all such steps as may be necessary and as it may in its sole and absolute discretion deem fit,
to give effect to this resolution.”

8. Approval of remuneration to M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 000338), the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including
any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000338), appointed as
Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of
the Company for the financial year ending on December 31, 2019, in respect of products/activities of
the Company covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
be paid a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) per annum
plus applicable Goods & Service Tax and out of pocket expenses, if any, that may be incurred during
the course of audit.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including Committee(s) of the
Board), be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

9. Approval for Related Party Transaction(s) with M/s SPGPrints B.V. for the financial year 2019
and 2020

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“Listing Regulations”) (including any
statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),
approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
(including Committee(s) of the Board), to enter into material contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
transaction(s) for a period of 2 (two) financial years i.e. from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2020,
with M/s SPGPrints B.V., the Holding Company of the Company, (a ‘Related Party’ as defined under
Section 2 (76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations), for
purchase of raw materials and components, which are commercial transactions as detailed in the
explanatory statement attached to this Notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including Committee(s) of the
Board) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

10. Approval for Material Related Party Transaction relating to Acquisition of Service and Spare
Parts Business for rotary printing equipment from M/s SPGPrints B.V.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act 2013, Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), and other applicable laws for
the time being in force, approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
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Board of Directors of the Company to enter into material contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)
with SPGPrints B.V., the Holding Company of the Company, a related party within the meaning of
Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, for acquiring the Service
and Spare parts Business for rotary printing equipment worldwide, which includes, designs and
drawings, customer and supplier database and other related assets, each of which forms an integral
part of the Service and Spare Parts Business, on such terms and conditions, as the Board of Directors
may deem fit, at a total consideration of EURO 2.49 Million (equivalent to approx. INR 199 Million),
based on valuation report of an Independent Valuer at arm’s length basis.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or
any of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the
Company and to do all acts and take such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Notes:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of
Special Business is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. The instrument appointing Proxy as per the format included in the Annual Report, duly
completed, stamped and signed should be returned to the Registered Office of the Company not
less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the time for holding the Meeting. Proxies submitted on
behalf of limited companies, societies, partnership firms, etc., must be supported by appropriate
resolution/authority letter/power of attorney, as applicable, issued by the member organization.
Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are
requested to send to the Company, a certified true copy of Board Resolution authorizing their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder,
a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as a proxy and such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

4. Pursuant to Sections 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of its transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of
the Company is required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”)
established by the Central Government. The Company during the year has transferred a sum of
Rs. 4,82,133/- being unclaimed dividend amount for the financial year 2010 to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund of the Central Government. The shareholders who have not claimed their
dividend for the financial year 2011 and all subsequent years are requested to claim their dividend
as early as possible, failing which it would be transferred to IEPF as per the (tentative) dates
mentioned below and no claim shall lie against the Company for the said amount of unclaimed
dividend so transferred. The details of unclaimed dividends are available on the Company’s website
at www.stovec.com and Ministry of Corporate Affair’s website at www.mca.gov.in.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act and Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), all shares on
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more are required to be

 

Financial Year Final Dividend/Interim 
Dividend

Tentative Date for transfer 
to IEPF

2011 Final Dividend June 8,2019 

2012 Final Dividend July 17, 2020 

2013 Final Dividend June 15, 2021 

2014 Final Dividend June 7,2022 

2015 Final Dividend June 28, 2023 

2016 Final Dividend June 13, 2024 

2017 Final Dividend June 3, 2025 
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transferred to Demat Account of IEPF. The Company timely sent individual intimation to all such
shareholders who have not claimed their dividend for seven consecutive years. All such Shareholders
are requested to claim their Unclaimed Dividend expeditiously failing which their shares shall be
transferred to Demat Account of IEPF and no claim shall lie against the Company. The Shareholders
thereafter need to claim their shares from IEPF Authority by filing E-Form-5 and by following such
procedures as prescribed in the IEPF Rules (as may be amended from time to time).

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book shall remain closed from May 2, 2019 to
May 9, 2019 (both days inclusive). If the final dividend on equity shares, as recommended by the
Board of Directors is declared at the 45th Annual General Meeting, payment of such dividend will be
made on or after May 16, 2019 as under:

i. To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form, after giving effect to valid transfer in
respect of transfer request lodged with the Registrar and Transfer Agent on or before the close
of business hours on May 1, 2019.

ii. To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held in electronic form, whose names appear in
the statement of beneficial ownership furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, as at the close of business hours on May 1, 2019.

6. Members/Proxies should bring the attendance slip sent herewith duly filled in & signed for attending
the Meeting. The copies of the Annual Report or Attendance Slips will not be distributed at the
Meeting.

7. To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit and undue delay in respect of receipt of dividend
warrants, the Company has provided a facility to the Members for remittance of dividend through
the National Electronic Clearing System (NECS)/National Automated Clearing House (NACH). It is in
Members interest to avail NECS/NACH facility as it is quick and much convenient way of getting
dividend directly in your bank account. Members desirous of availing NECS/NACH facility are
requested to submit bank particulars in ECS Mandate Form, the format of which is annexed at the
end of this Annual Report.

8. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining
to their bank details, NECS, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address/name,
PAN details, etc. to their Depository Participant (“DP”) only. However, Members holding shares in
physical mode are required to notify any change pertaining to their bank details, NECS, mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address/name, PAN details, etc. to Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent i.e. M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business
Center–I (ABC-I), Besides Gala Business Center, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, Off. C.G. Road,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380 009, Gujarat.

9. Brief profile of Director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 45th Annual General Meeting,
is annexed and forms integral part of the Notice.

10. As per Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) norms, submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) is compulsorily required for participating in the securities market, deletion of name of
deceased shareholder or transmission/transposition of shares. Members holding shares in
dematerialized mode are requested to submit the PAN details to their Depository Participant, whereas
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the PAN details to the Company’s
Registrar and Transfer Agents. As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (effective from December 1, 2015), for registration of transfer of shares, the
transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) are required to furnish a copy of their PAN card to Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

11. In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, securities of
listed company can only be transferred in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. In view
of the above, members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.

12. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has allowed paperless compliances by companies through electronic
mode by providing the same under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. The
Members can now receive various notices and documents including Annual Reports through electronic
mode. Members who have not registered their e-mail address are encouraged to participate in this
green initiative by registering their e-mail id for e-communication. Members holding shares in
dematerialized form are requested to register / update their e-mail id for e-communication with the
Depository Participants, while Members holding shares in physical form are requested to register
their e-mail id by sending a request on ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in or secretarial@stovec.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, Member(s) are entitled to receive communication(s)
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including Annual Report in physical form, free of cost, on receipt of written request for the same.
Members may also note that the Annual Report for the financial year 2018 together with the Notice
of 45th Annual General Meeting, Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map will also be available on
the website of the Company viz. www.stovec.com for their download.

13. In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Act read with Rule 18 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the copy of Annual Report of the Company for the
financial year 2018 and this Notice inter-alia indicating the process and manner of remote e-voting
along with Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map are being sent by email, unless any Member
has requested for a physical copy of the same, to those Members who have registered their e-mail
address with the Company (in respect of shares held in physical form) or with their DP (in respect of
shares held in electronic form) and made available to the Company by the Depositories. For Members
who have not registered their e-mail address, physical copies of the Annual Report for the financial
year 2018 and this Notice of 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter-alia indicating the
process and manner of remote e-voting along with Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route map are
being sent through the permitted mode.

14. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays between
11.00 a.m. to 2.00 p.m. up to the date of the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

15. Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to
send to the Company the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating
their holdings in one folio. The share certificates will be returned to the members after making
requisite changes thereon.

16. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the Company
are requested to address their questions in writing to the Company at least 7 days before the date
of the meeting so that the information required may be made available at the meeting. The Company
has connectivity from the CDSL & NSDL and equity shares of the Company may also be held in the
electronic form with any DP, with whom the members/ investors are having their depository account.
The ISIN No. for the Equity Shares of the Company is INE755D01015. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to eliminate
risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management. Members can contact
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for assistance in this regard.

17. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the
prescribed form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of shares
held in demat form; the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant.

18. Voting through electronic means

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and as per Regulation
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company
is pleased to provide its Members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means i.e. remote
e-voting, through the e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (“CDSL”)
on all resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for remote e-voting are enclosed with this
notice.

Regd. Office:
N.I.D.C. Nr. Lambha Village, By Order of the Board of Directors
Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405
Gujarat, INDIA.
CIN: L45200GJ1973PLC050790
Tel: +91 (0) 79 6157 2300, Fax: +91 (0) 79 2571 0406, Sd/-
E-mail: secretarial@stovec.com, Sanjeev Singh Sengar
Website: www.stovec.com Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 7835
Date : April 5, 2019
Place : Ahmedabad
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘‘the
Act’’), concerning the Special Business at Item No. 5 to 10 of the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part
of this Notice.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
appointed Ms. Sangeeta Puneet Singh Sachdev (DIN: 08118379), aged 49 years, as an Additional Director
on the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from May 2, 2018. Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Ms. Sachdev holds office of Additional Director up to the date of this
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as a Director. The Company has received a notice
pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying his intention to propose the appointment of
Ms. Sachdev as a Director of the Company. Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev has done Bachelors in Commerce from
H.R. College of Commerce & Economics, Bombay and is an Associate in Applied Science (Textile Surface
Design Major) from Fashion Institute of Technology, New York. She has also done Diploma in Business
Management from Sydenham Institute of Management, Bombay. She has been working with SPGPrints
America Inc since September 2003 and has been designated as Managing Director of SPGPrints America
Inc since 2016. She has a rich experience of more than 29 years in Textile Design, Sales & Marketing.
Brief Profile of Ms. Sachdev is provided in this Notice. The Board of Directors is confident that her knowledge
and experience will be of immense value to the Company and hence recommends the Resolution at Item
No. 5 of this Notice for the approval of Members.

Ms. Sachdev is not a Member of any Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Ms. Sachdev is not related to any Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof except Ms. Sachdev, are in any
way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution at Item No. 5 of this Notice.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
appointed Mr. Eiko Ris (DIN: 07428696), aged 60 years, as an Additional Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company with effect from March 12, 2019. Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”), Mr. Eiko Ris holds office of Additional Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
and is eligible for appointment as a Director. The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160
of the Act, from a Member signifying his intention to propose the appointment of Mr. Eiko Ris as a Director
of the Company. Mr. Eiko Ris holds the degree of MsC (RA) from the Netherlands Institute of Register
Accounts, The Netherlands. He is a Chief Financial Officer and a Member of Executive Board of SPGPrints
B.V., the Holding Company of the Company, since 2016. He has a rich experience of more than 39 years
in finance. Brief profile of Mr. Eiko Ris is provided in this Notice. The Board of Directors is confident that his
knowledge and experience will be of immense value to the Company and hence recommends the Resolution
at Item No. 6 of this Notice for the approval of Members.

Mr. Eiko Ris is a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Ris is not related to any Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof except Mr. Eiko Ris, are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution at Item No. 6 of this Notice.

Item No. 7

Mr. Shailesh Wani, aged 51 years, was first appointed as a Managing Director of the Company w.e.f.
October 1, 2013 for a period of 3 (three) years and his term of appointment and remuneration including
payment of variable pay were approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on May 13,
2014. Based on his performance, the Board of Directors had re-appointed him as a Managing Director of
the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years w.e.f. October 1, 2016. The present tenure of
Mr. Shailesh Wani, Managing Director is expiring on September 30, 2019. Based on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on February 14, 2019, subject to the approval of Members have approved the re-appointment and
remuneration payable to Mr. Shailesh Wani, Managing Director, for a further period of 3 (three) years
w.e.f. October 1, 2019. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that it is in the interest of the Company to
receive the benefit of Mr. Shailesh Wani’s service and recommend the resolution at Item No. 7 of this
notice for the approval of Members.
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Mr. Shailesh Wani is the Chairman of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and a Member of Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Shailesh Wani has attended all the Meetings of Board of Directors held during the financial year 2018.

Mr. Shailesh Wani is not related to any Director, Promoters or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
nor does he hold any shares in the Company.

ABSTRACT OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RE-APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MR. SHAILESH WANI, MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:

i. Mr. Shailesh Wani has been re-appointed as a Managing Director at a gross remuneration of
Rs. 1,19,97,480/- per annum. Over and above the gross remuneration he is also entitled to variable
pay of minimum 38% and maximum of 50% of annual fixed salary (as per the scheme applicable to
Managing Directors’ of SPGPrints Operating Companies) based on the targets achieved. He shall
also be entitled to Mediclaim Insurance for self, spouse and children’s under the Group Mediclaim
Policy of the Company.

ii. The re-appointment is for a period of 3 (three) years w.e.f. October 1, 2019.

iii. He is re-appointed as a Managing Director of the Company and as such he shall have substantial
powers of Management of the Company. He shall perform duties and exercise such powers subject
to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors of the Company.

iv. The Company has entered into agreement with Mr. Shailesh Wani for his re-appointment as a Managing
Director, which may be terminated by either party by giving other party six months’ written notice or
amount equivalent to six months’ salary in lieu thereof.

v. Mr. Shailesh Wani’s appointment is by virtue of his employment in the Company.

Statement containing information required to be given as per Section II of Part II of Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013

I. General Information:

II. Information about the appointee:
1. Background details :

• Mr. Shailesh Wani has around 31 years of experience in Sales, Marketing, Operations
Management and Finance.

• Mr. Shailesh Wani has done Bachelor’s in Engineering from V.J.T.I., Bombay and M.P.T.
(Management Programme for Technologists) from IIM, Bangalore. He has also done
post-graduation in Cost Accounting (ICWA) from The Institute of Cost and Works Accountants
of India.

• Prior to joining Stovec, he was working with Thermax SPX Energy Technologies Ltd as a
Chief Executive Officer.

1) Nature of Industry Manufacturing of perforated nickel rotary screens, rotary 
screen printing machines, anilox rollers, engraving 
chemicals, engraving equipment’s, rotamesh screens and 
rotaplate at its factory situated at N.I.D.C. Nr. Lambha 
Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad, Gujarat. 

2) Date of Commencement of 
commercial production 

The commercial production has already begun and the 
Company is not a new Company. 

3) Financial Performance 
for the financial year ended 
31.12.2018 

Turnover                              : Rs. 1930.16 Million 
Profit Before Tax                   : Rs. 410.46 Million 
(before exceptional items)  

4) Export Performance  For the year ended 31.12.2018, the Company has achieved 
export turnover of FOB value of Rs. 119.67 Million. 

5) Foreign Investment or 
Collaboration 

a) SPGPrints B.V., The Netherlands (Formerly known as 
Stork Prints B.V.) are the Promoters of the Company
holding 71.06 % of the equity share capital.  

b) The Plant was established in technical collaboration with 
the holding company as above.  
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2. Past Remuneration:

Remuneration of Mr. Shailesh Wani is as under:

*Includes remuneration and variable pay on provisional basis.
3. Recognition or Awards:

Mr. Shailesh Wani is a ‘Gold Medalist’ from IIM Bangalore in M.P.T. (Management Programme for
Technologists) for ‘Best All Round Performance’.

4. Job Profile and his suitability:
Mr. Shailesh Wani is responsible for the day to day Management of the Company and assisted
by Senior Executives of the Company. He is working under the superintendence and control of
Board of Directors. Under his leadership since October 1, 2013, Company has grown and
demonstrated good performance and achieved a growth in Revenue from Operations of about
150% and in PBT of about 171%. Mr. Shailesh Wani’s multi-functional experience will help the
Company to further grow under his leadership in the years to come. The Board of Directors is of
the opinion that it is in the interest of the Company to receive the benefit of his service.

5. Remuneration proposed:
Total Remuneration including variable pay shall not exceed Rs. 20 Million (Rupees Twenty Million)
per annum during the tenure of his employment till September 30, 2022.

6. Comparative Remuneration, Profile with respect of industry, size of the Company:
Looking into the Industry Standards for remuneration of Professional Managing Director, size
of the Company and his responsibilities as a Managing Director of the Company, the remuneration
is appropriate.

7. Pecuniary Relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with
managerial personnel, if any:
Mr. Shailesh Wani is not related to any Director, Promoters or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

III. Other Information:
Reason for inadequacy of Profits & steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement and
expected increase in productivity and profitability:
The profits of the Company are in line with the current industrial scenario and are reasonable, but
the remuneration to Mr. Shailesh Wani, as mentioned here above, during its tenure till September
30, 2022, may or may not fulfill the terms of the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and
may exceed the limits prescribed thereunder, and therefore the Company is seeking approval of
Members of the Company by way of Special Resolution. The Company has been consistently delivering
good results and is hopeful to continue good performance in terms of turnover and profitability in
the coming years as well.

IV. Disclosures:
Remuneration Package:
Total remuneration of Mr. Shailesh Wani, Managing Director of the Company shall not exceed Rs. 20
Million (Rupees Twenty Million) per annum including variable pay which is maximum 50% of annual
fixed salary, based on the targets achieved by the Managing Director. His Contract as a Managing
Director is for a period of 3 years commencing from October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2022, terminable
by six months’ notice by either side or amount equivalent to six months’ salary in lieu thereof. He is
not entitled to any Stock Options.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof except Mr. Shailesh Wani, are
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution at Item No. 7 of this
Notice.

For the period Gross Remuneration* 
01.01.2018 to 31.12.2018 1,51,65,167
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Item No. 8

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved
the appointment of M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000338), as the
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending
December 31, 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be
ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly consent of the Members is sought by way of an
ordinary resolution as set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice, for ratification/approval of the remuneration
amounting to Rs. 1,25,000/- plus applicable Goods and Service Tax and out of pocket expenses, if any,
payable to the Cost Auditors for Cost Audit for the financial year ending on December 31, 2019, in
respect of products/ activities of the Company covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution at Item No. 8 of this Notice for the approval of Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof, are in any way concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution at Item No. 8 of this Notice.

Item No. 9

SPGPrints B.V. (“SPGPrints”), based out at Netherlands, is a global leader in the textile and graphics
printing market and known for its quality products. In order to meet the quality standards prescribed by
SPGPrints and considering the business needs in India, Company needs to import certain raw materials
and components from SPGPrints. Under Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Related Party Transactions shall
require prior approval of the Audit Committee and all material Related Party Transactions shall require
approval of Members of the Company. Taking into consideration the past trends, it is likely that transactions
with SPGPrints during the financial year 2019 & 2020, may cross the materiality threshold prescribed
under Listing Regulations and thus would require approval of shareholders by Ordinary Resolution.
Accordingly transactions entered/ to be entered with SPGPrints during the financial year 2019 & 2020, as
set out at Item No. 9 of this Notice, has been placed before the Members for their approval by way of
Ordinary Resolution.

The particulars of the contracts / arrangements / transactions are as under:

 

Particulars Information 
Name of the Related Party SPGPrints B.V. 
Nature of Relationship Holding Company of the Company 
Name of Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel 
who is related, if any. 

None except Mr. Dirk Joustra, Mr. Eiko Ris and Ms. 
Sangeeta Sachdev 

Nature and Particulars of transactions Purchase of Raw Materials and Components 
Material terms of the Contracts/Arrangement/ 
Transactions 

In the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 
length basis. 

Duration of Related Party Transactions These transactions are on-going depending upon 
the needs of business. 

Value of Related Party Transaction during the 
financial year 2018 

INR 154,070,894/- 
 

Estimated Related Party Transaction for the 
financial year 2019 & 2020, as a % of Annual 
Consolidated Turnover of the Company. 

During mentioned financial years, Related Party 
Transaction with SPGPrints B.V. with respect to 
purchase of raw materials and components shall 
not exceed 20% of Annual Consolidated Turnover 
of the Company as per last audited financial 
statements of the Company. 
Note: For determining Material Related Party 
Transactions for the financial year 2019, the 
Annual Consolidated Turnover of the Company 
for the financial year 2018 will be considered and 
for determining Material Related Party 
Transactions for the financial year 2020, the 
Annual Consolidated Turnover of the Company 
for the financial year 2019 will be considered. 
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The Related Party Transactions as mentioned above are necessary, normal and incidental to business
and also play a significant role in the Company’s business operations and accordingly the Board
recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set forth in Item No. 9 of this Notice for the approval of the
Members in terms of Regulation 23 (4) of the Listing Regulations.

None of the Director’s, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof except Mr. Dirk Joustra, Mr. Eiko
Ris and Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution at Item No. 9 of this Notice.

Item No. 10

SPGPrints B.V. (“SPGPrints”), based out in the Netherlands, is a global leader in the textile and graphics
printing market and known for its quality products. Stovec Industries Ltd is one of the major subsidiary
of SPGPrints.

In the past, SPGPrints has provided technology for manufacturing high end Rotary Printing Equipment &
Rotary Screens, which has contributed to the growth of your Company.

SPGPrints operates the “service and spare parts” business relating to its global installed base of its
rotary printing equipment, which includes, the provision of services and the supply of spare parts of
rotary printing equipment, customer & supplier database, designs & drawings and other related assets,
each of which forms an integral part of the Service and Spare Parts Business (the “Service and Spare
Parts Business”).

In order to take advantage of synergy, improved efficiency and to provide cost-effective services, it is
necessary that your Company becomes responsible for all activities related to rotary printing equipment.
In the process, the transfer of “service and spare parts” is the last step to meet the objective of making
Stovec, the complete competence centre for all rotary printing equipment including service and supply of
spare parts. Therefore, the Company wishes to acquire and SPGPrints, the Holding Company intends to
sell, the Service and Spare Parts Business.

With the acquisition, the Company shall be able to provide end to end solutions for rotary printing
equipment worldwide starting from supply of machines to supply of spare parts and providing services
thereto, which will help the Company to further strengthen and reinforce its market position in rotary
printing, resulting into increase in revenue & EBIDTA. Your company expects to generate annual revenues
of about INR 160 Million from this profitable high margin business. After this acquisition, Stovec shall
have full control on rotary printing business and can further develop the global business and being able
to source parts in India, potentially resulting in higher EBIDTA.

Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors’ of the Company at its meeting
held on April 5, 2019, have approved the acquisition of service and spare parts business, at a total
consideration of EURO 2.49 Million (Equivalent to approximate INR 199 Million), which is based on
independent valuation. The valuation at arms-length is also required as per OECD rules relating to Base
Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) with respect to Transfer Pricing, for SPGPrints, the Netherlands, where
future taxable profits are leaving the country. The Dutch Tax Authorities also expects an at arms-length
selling price for selling the business to your Company in India.

Under Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval of the Audit
Committee and all material Related Party Transactions shall require approval of the Members. Since the
proposed related party transaction exceeds the threshold limit prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and the Listing Regulations for materiality, Members’ approval to the above material related party
transaction is sought in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23(4) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.
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The particulars of the contracts / arrangements / transactions are as under:

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set forth in Item No. 10 of this Notice for the approval
of the Members.

None of the Director’s, Key Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives except Mr. Dirk Joustra,
Mr. Eiko Ris and Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the resolution.

The Members’ approval is solicited for the resolutions at Item No. 10 of the accompanying Notice.

Regd. Office:
N.I.D.C. Nr. Lambha Village, By Order of the Board of Directors
Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405
Gujarat, INDIA.
CIN: L45200GJ1973PLC050790
Tel: +91 (0) 79 6157 2300, Fax: +91 (0) 79 2571 0406, Sd/-
E-mail: secretarial@stovec.com, Sanjeev Singh Sengar
Website: www.stovec.com Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 7835
Date : April 5, 2019
Place : Ahmedabad

 

Particulars Information 
Name of the Related Party SPGPrints B.V. 
Nature of Relationship Holding Company of the Company 
Name of Director(s) or Key Managerial 
Personnel who is related, if any. 

None except Mr. Dirk Joustra, Mr. Eiko Ris and Ms. 
Sangeeta Sachdev. 

Nature and Particulars of the contract or 
arrangement  

Purchase of Service and Spare Parts Business. 

Material terms of the Contracts/Arrangement/ 
Transactions. 

1. The Purchase Price shall be paid in cash via wire 
transfer to the bank account of seller.  

2. The Purchase Price is based on independent 
valuation report. 

3. The completion date shall not be later than 
September 30, 2019. 

Further terms shall be as per agreement(s) to be 
executed between the Company and SPGPrints B.V. 

Duration of Related Party Transactions Not Applicable.  
Any advance paid or received for the contract 
or arrangement, if any. 

NIL 

Value of Related Party Transaction  EURO 2.49 Million (Equivalent to approximately INR 
199 Million)  

The manner of determining the pricing and 
other commercial terms, both included as 
part of contract and not considered as part of 
the contract. 

Pricing is based on Independent Valuation Report. 
Other Commercial terms shall be as per 
agreement(s) to be executed between the Company 
and SPGPrints B.V.  
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Brief profile of Director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the company pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

 

Name of Director Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev 
Director Identification Number 00481154 08118379 
Date of Birth February 8, 1958 April 30, 1969 
Nationality Dutch Indian 
Date of Appointment January 29, 1999 May 2, 2018 
Expertise in specific functional 
areas 

Business Strategy, Sales and 
Marketing 

Sales & Marketing 

Qualifications Degree in Business Admini-
stration from HTS Enschede 
Institute de Baak, Noordwijk 
and Institute Nijenrode. 

She has done Bachelors in 
Commerce from H.R. College of 
Commerce & Economics, Bombay 
and is an Associate in Applied 
Science (Textile Surface Design 
Major) from Fashion Institute of 
Technology, New York. She has 
also done Diploma in Business 
Management from Sydenham 
Institute of Management, 
Bombay. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment/re-appointment 

Non-Executive Director liable to 
retire by rotation. 

Non-Executive Director liable to 
retire by rotation. 

Experience He has significant experience in 
the areas of Business Strategy, 
Sales and Marketing. 

She has a rich experience of 
more than 29 years in Textile 
Design, Sales & Marketing. 

Details of relationship with 
other Directors, Manager and 
Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company 

None None 

Details of shares held in the 
Company 

Nil Nil 

Remuneration sought to be 
paid 

Nil Nil 

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during the financial year 2018 

1 (One) 1 (One) 

List of other companies in which 
directorship held as on December 
31, 2018 [excluding Pvt. 
Companies, Foreign Companies & 
Companies under Section 8 of the 
Companies Act, 2013]. 

None None 

Chairman/Member of the 
*Committees of other Companies 
as on December 31, 2018 

None None 
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* The Committee includes the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee only.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Monday, May 6, 2019 @ 9.00 hours (IST) and ends on Wednesday,
May 8, 2019 @ 17.00 hours (IST). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday,
May 1, 2019, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

 

Name of Director Mr. Eiko Ris Mr. Shailesh Wani 
Director Identification Number 07428696 06474766 
Date of Birth October 17, 1958 February 2, 1968 
Nationality Dutch Indian 
Date of Appointment March 12, 2019 October 1, 2013 

Expertise in specific functional 
areas 

Finance & General Management Sales, Marketing, Operations 
Management & Finance. 

Qualifications He holds the degree of MsC 
(RA) from the Netherlands 
Institute of Register Accounts.  

He has done Bachelor’s in 
Engineering from V.J.T.I, 
Bombay and M.P.T (Management 
Programme for Technologists) 
from IIM, Bangalore. He has also 
done post-graduation in Cost 
Accounting (ICWA) from the 
Institute of Costs and Works 
Accountants of India. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment/re-appointment 

Non-Executive Director liable to 
retire by rotation. 

Executive Director not liable to 
retire by rotation. 

Experience He has rich experience of more 
than 39 years in Finance. 

He has rich experience of around 
31 years in Sales, Marketing, 
Operations Management and 
Finance. 

Details of relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

None None 

Details of shares held in the 
Company 

Nil Nil 

Remuneration sought to be 
paid 

Nil As mentioned in the resolution 
no. 7 read with explanatory 
statement thereof. 

No. of Board Meetings attended 
during the financial year 2018 

Nil (As appointed on March 12, 
2019) 

5 (Five) 

List of other companies in which 
directorship held as on December 
31, 2018 [excluding Pvt. 
Companies, Foreign Companies & 
Companies under Section 8 of the 
Companies Act, 2013]. 

None None 

Chairman/Member of the 
*Committees of other Companies 
as on December 31, 2018 

None None 
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(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders).
Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant
are requested to use the Sequence Number which is printed on Attendance Slip in
the PAN Field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
Bank in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
OR Date enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned
of Birth in instruction (iv).
(DOB)

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Stovec Industries Limited> on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

(xvii)If a Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii)Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for all mobile
users. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.
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(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians:

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login
and password. The compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. The official designated to address the grievances
in this regard will be Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager and can be contacted at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Other Instructions

1. The Members who have not casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) can exercise their voting rights at the AGM by way of polling/ballot paper. The
Members who have already exercised their right to vote by remote e-voting may attend the AGM
but shall not be entitled to vote at the AGM. If a Member casts vote again at the AGM, then votes
casts through remote e-voting facility shall prevail and voting at the Meeting will be treated invalid.

2. The Voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, Wednesday, May 1, 2019.

3. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Ownership maintained by the RTA/Depositories, as the case may be, as on the cut-off date only
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting at the AGM. Any person who has
ceased to be the Member of the Company as on the cut-off date will not be entitled for remote
e-voting or voting at the AGM and should treat this Notice for information purpose only. Any person,
who becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the
cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in or to the Company at secretarial@stovec.com. However, if you are
already registered with CDSL for e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/
PIN for casting your vote.

4. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

5. The Board has appointed Mr. Sandip Sheth (Membership No. 5467) and failing him Mr. Prashant
Prajapati (Membership No. ACS 32597) of M/s Sandip Sheth and Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process (electronically and otherwise) in a
fair and transparent manner.

6. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which voting is to
be held, allow voting with the assistance of the Scrutinizer, by use of ballot or polling paper for all
those Members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote
e-voting facility.

7. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the
Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least
two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of
the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

8. The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.stovec.com and on the website of CDSL www.cdslindia.com within 48 hours of the passing
of the resolutions at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall also be communicated
to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors are pleased to present the 45th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statement of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2018.
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
31.12.2018 31.12.2017

(  in Millions) (  in Millions)

Revenue from Operations (net) 1930.16 2175.69

Other Income 61.27 38.44

(a) Total Income: 1991.43 2214.13

(b) Total Expenditure: 1528.44 1760.36

Gross Profit before Depreciation
and Amortization expenses 462.99 453.77

Less: Depreciation & Amortization expenses 52.53 59.81

Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 410.46 393.96

Add: Exceptional items 141.08 -

Profit before tax 551.55 393.96

Less: Current Tax 158.96 137.08

Deferred tax (3.05) 0.79

(Excess)/Short provision of income tax of
earlier years (Net) - 155.91 (0.86) 137.02

Profit After Tax 395.64 256.94

Add: Profit brought forward from
previous year 827.56 649.52

Dividend on equity shares (75.17) (64.73)

Tax on Dividend (15.45) (13.18)

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined
benefit plans (net of tax) (1.57) (0.99)

Profit available for appropriation 1,131.01 827.56

Profit carried forward to Balance Sheet 1,131.01 827.56

2. PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Standalone

The business environment in general and in particular of the textile industry remained somewhat
subdued in 2018, contributed by liquidity issues and difficulty in obtaining finance from Banks at our
customers end. In financial year 2018, despite tough business environment, your Company has
achieved standalone revenue from operations of Rs. 1,930.16 Million (Previous year Rs. 2,175.69
Million) a decline of about 13% in revenue as compared to previous year. The decline in revenue
from operations is mainly on account of low capital investment by our customer(s) and textile industry
in general, which resulted in reduced demand for Company's Capital Products. However, despite
decline in sales, with the quality products in hand and strong sales force, your company has
maintained the margins and achieved Operational Profit of Rs. 410.46 Million (Previous year
Rs. 393.96 Million); a growth of about 4% as compared to previous year. During the year, the Company
has made profit from exceptional item of Rs. 141.08 Million from divestment by the Company of its
100% equity investment in Atul Sugar Screens Pvt. Ltd. ("Atul") and sale of certain identified assets
of galvanic business to Atul.
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Consolidated

Your Company has achieved consolidated revenue from operations of Rs. 1948.04 Million and
Operational Profit of Rs. 414 Million. The Company has also made profit from exceptional item of
Rs. 80.90 Million from divestment of 100% equity investment in Atul and sale of certain identified
assets of galvanic business to Atul.

3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS:

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves for the financial year 2018.

4. DIVIDEND:

Considering the Company's financial performance, the Board of Directors have recommended payment
of Final Dividend of Rs. 55/- per equity share having face value of Rs. 10/- each (i.e. 550%) for the
financial year ended on December 31, 2018. This comprises of normal dividend of Rs. 40/- per equity
share and a special dividend of Rs. 15/- per equity share on account of gain arising from divestment
of equity investment and sale of assets of galvanic business. This Final Dividend is subject to the
approval of Members in the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

5. DIVESTMENT OF EQUITY INVESTMENT HELD IN WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY

Based on recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
held on March 1, 2018 had in-principle approved divestment of 100% equity investment held by the
Company in Atul, a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company (Not a Material Subsidiary) and constituted
Divestment Committee to finalize the said divestment. The Divestment Committee in its meeting
held on March 7, 2018, had approved divestment of 100% equity investment held in Atul for a total
consideration of INR 104 Million, pursuant to a group restructuring exercise. The consideration was
arrived at on the basis of valuation report issued by Independent Valuer. Consequent to such
divestment, Atul ceased to be subsidiary of the Company w.e.f March 22, 2018.

6. SALE OF IDENTIFIED ASSETS RELATED TO SUGAR SCREENS BUSINESS

Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on April 5, 2018, had approved the sale of identified assets related to Sugar Screens
business and assignment of trademark "Atul" to Atul Sugar Screens Pvt. Ltd. at a total consideration
of INR 99.62 Million. The sale consideration was arrived at as per valuation report issued by
Independent Valuer.

7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

Information as required to be given under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure I forming part of this Report.

8. FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the purview of Section
73 of the Act and rules made there under.

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate report on Corporate Governance Compliance and a Management Discussion and Analysis
Report as required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”) forms part of the Director’s Report as Annexure-II and III respectively along
with the required Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance.

10. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has in place an Audit Committee in terms of requirements of the Act read with rules
framed thereunder and Listing Regulations. The details relating to the Audit Committee are given in
the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report. The recommendations of Audit
Committee were duly accepted by the Board of Directors.
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11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
has appointed Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev (DIN: 08118379) and Mr. Eiko Ris (DIN: 07428696) as an
Additional Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f May 2, 2018 and March 12, 2019 respectively,
who holds office up to the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and are eligible for appointment
as a Director of the Company. Notice under Section 160 of the Act has been received from Member(s)
proposing their candidature for the office of Director of the Company. The Board recommends their
appointment as Directors to the members of the Company.
Ms. Everdina Herma Slijkhuis (DIN: 06997013) due to her other pre-occupations has resigned from
the Board of the Company w.e.f. May 2, 2018. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the
contribution made by her as a Board Member.

At the 45th Annual General Meeting, Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra (DIN: 00481154) retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The Members at the 41st Annual General Meeting, appointed Mr. Khurshed. M. Thanawalla
(DIN: 00201749) and Mr. Marco Wadia (DIN: 00244357) as an Independent Director of the Company
for a term of five consecutive years as per the requirement of the Act. The abovenamed Independent
Directors have furnished declarations to the Company, confirming that they meet the criteria prescribed
for Independent Directors under Section 149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations.

As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Amendment Regulations, 2018, the
Company has received the approval of Members of the Company by way of Postal Ballot on January
2, 2019, for continuation of directorship of Mr. K.M. Thanawalla, who has attained the age of seventy
five years on December 24, 2017 and for payment of commission to Mr. K.M. Thanawalla exceeding
50% of total commission that may be payable to Independent Directors of the Company for the
financial year 2018.

The tenure of Mr. Shailesh Wani, as a Managing Director of the Company expires on September 30,
2019. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 14, 2019, noted that Company has
grown under his leadership and it will be in the interest of the Company to re-appoint him. Based on
the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has re-appointed
Mr. Shailesh Wani, as a Managing Director of the Company for a further period of three years
w.e.f. October 1, 2019, subject to the approval of Members of the Company.

Mrs. Varsha Adhikari resigned as a Company Secretary of the Company with effect from the close of
business hours of January 21, 2019. Consequently, she also ceases to be the Compliance Officer
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The Board had appointed Mr. Vijay Moolani as the
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. February 14, 2019. He resigned as the Compliance Officer
of the Company w.e.f April 5, 2019. The Board has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Singh Sengar, as the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f April 5, 2019 and categorized him
as a Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

12. BOARD MEETING
During the financial year ended December 31, 2018, five meetings of the Board of Directors were
held. The details of the attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting are mentioned in the Corporate
Governance Report annexed hereto.

Your Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, applicable provisions related to
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors, issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government, have been complied with.

13. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The details of Annual Performance Evaluation of Individual Directors including Chairperson, Board of
Directors and Committees of Board of Directors are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In accordance with Section 135 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the Company has constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee of Directors. The details of composition of CSR
Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The details of CSR policy and CSR spending
by the Company as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, have been provided as Annexure-IV to this report.
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15. REMUNERATION POLICY
The details of the Remuneration Policy is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report. A Statement
of Disclosure of Remuneration pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (as amended) is provided
as Annexure V forming part of this Report.

16. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. The scope of Internal Audit is well defined in the organization. The Internal Audit
Report is regularly placed before the Audit Committee of the Board. The Management monitors and
evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with
standard operating procedures, accounting procedures and policies. Based on the report of Internal
Auditors, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthening the controls continuously. Significant audit observations, if any, and corrective actions
suggested and taken are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

17. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section 92(3) of the Act (as amended)
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
is available at the website of the Company at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/
spgprints-group/companies-agents/stovec-industries-ltd.

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Particulars of contract or arrangement with Related Parties referred to in Section 188 (1) of the
Act, in the prescribed Form AOC-2 forms part of this Report as Annexure VI.

Further, based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company
at its meeting held on April 5, 2019, subject to the approval of Members in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, have approved material related party transaction relating to acquisition of Service
and Spare Parts Business relating to rotary printing equipment, which includes, design & drawings,
customer & supplier database and other related assets, each of which forms an integral part of the
Service and Spare Parts Business, from SPGPrints B.V., the Holding Company of the Company, at a
total consideration of Euro 2.49 Million (equivalent to approximately INR 199 Million), which is based
on independent valuation.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS

The details of Investments under Section 186 of the Act is provided in note no. 5 of Notes to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

20. VIGIL MECHANISM

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act, the Company is required to establish a Vigil
Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns. The Company has a Whistle
Blower Policy (also known as Vigil Mechanism) in place and the details of the Whistle Blower Policy
are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Report.

The Company has disclosed information about the establishment of the Whistleblower Policy on its
website at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/Stovec/Stovec-policies/
Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf.

21. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated Risk Management Policy to monitor the risks and to address/mitigate
those risks associated with the Company. The Board of Directors do not foresee any elements of
risk, which in its opinion, may threaten the existence of the Company.

22. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3)(c) and 134 (5) of the Act, your directors confirm, to the
best of their knowledge and belief:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2018, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that no material departures
have been made from the same;
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b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and of the profit of the Company
for the year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, have been prepared
on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls are in place in the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

23. POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace  in
line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder and Internal Complaint's Committee has
also been set up to redress complaints regarding sexual harassment and accordingly the Company
has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee in
terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. During the year, no complaint with allegations of sexual harassment was received by the
Company.

24. REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of
the Act and Rules framed thereunder, either to the Company or to the Central Government.

25. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditor's)
Rules, 2014, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
117366W/W-100018) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a  term of 5
consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of 43rd Annual General Meeting until the conclusion
of 48th Annual General Meeting, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every
subsequent Annual General Meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Companies Amendment Act, 2017, omitted the requirement
related to ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual General Meeting w.e.f.
May 7, 2018. Pursuant to the amendment, the Board hereby recommends to the Members of the
Company to delete the requirement of seeking ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors,
M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
at every Annual General Meeting, from the resolution passed at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on May 11, 2017."

26. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended), it is stated that the cost accounts and records are made and maintained
by the Company as specified by Central Government.

Further, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have appointed
M/s Dalwadi and Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.000338) as its Cost Auditors to
audit the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2019, at a remuneration as mentioned
in the Notice convening the 45th Annual General Meeting. A certificate has been received from the
Cost Auditors to the effect that their appointment as Cost Auditors of the Company, if made, would
be in accordance with the limits specified under Section 141 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.
A resolution seeking Member's approval for the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors forms part of
the Notice convening 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company and the same is recommended
for the consideration and approval of Members. The Company had filed Cost Audit Report for financial
year ended December 31, 2017 on May 30, 2018, which is within the time limit as prescribed under
The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
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27. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Sandip Sheth
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP No. 4354), for conducting Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the financial year ended on December 31, 2018. The Secretarial Audit Report is
provided as Annexure-VII to this report.

28. AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, in their audit report and by M/s. Sandip Sheth &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Secretarial Auditors in their secretarial audit report
and therefore need not require any comments under section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

29. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY FROM THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND TILL THE END OF THIS REPORT.
There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the
Financial Statements relate and the date of this Report.
However, the Company, subject to the approval of Members in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 9th May 2019, has proposed acquisition of Service and Spare
Parts Business relating to rotary printing equipment from SPGPrints B.V., the Holding Company of
the Company, at a total consideration of Euro 2.49 Million (equivalent to approximately INR 199
Million), based on independent valuation. The said transaction has also been reported at Sr. No. 18
to this report.

30. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
As on date of this report, there are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and operations of the Company in future.

31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information on employees particulars as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act read with
Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 (as amended), is provided in the Annexure forming part of the Report. In terms of
Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members and
others entitled thereto, excluding aforesaid Annexure. The said information is available for inspection
by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company as per the details mentioned in the Notice
of 45th Annual General Meeting, on any working day of the Company (i.e. except Saturday, Sunday
and Public Holidays) up to the date of the 45th Annual General Meeting. Any Member interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary of the Company.
Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the contribution made by the employees
of the Company at all levels.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board of Directors express its deep sense of appreciation for the contribution, co-operation and
confidence reposed in the Company by SPGPrints B.V. – the Parent Company. The Board of Directors
also extend its gratitude to its valued shareholders, employees, customers, bankers, suppliers and
other stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: April 5, 2019 K.M.Thanawalla
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman

DIN: 00201749
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Annexure – I
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO
(Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014).
A. Conservation of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on • Conducted third party energy audit and suitable
conservation of energy actions are implemented as suggested in Audit

report.
• Continued with initiatives such as,

� Gradual replacement of old motors with new
one for improved efficiency.

� Maintained Nickel bath efficiency by optimizing
operating voltages.

� Maintained & improved power factor by
installing additional capacitor banks.

� Replaced old lighting fixtures with LED lighting.
� Maintained high standards of condit ion

monitoring and preventive maintenance which
helped maintaining higher energy efficiency of
equipment.

(ii) The steps taken by the company None
for utilizing alternate sources of
energy.

(iii) The capital investment on energy Used energy efficient rectifiers in all the new
conservation equipment’s installation and replacements made during the year.

B. Technology Absorption
(i) The efforts made towards The Company continues to perform R&D activities to

technology absorption improve quality of products and to reduce production
cost to serve its customer better.

(ii) The benefits derived like product • Development of New Products
improvement, cost reduction, • Reduction of Product cost
product development or import • Product and Process improvement
substitution

(iii) In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)
(a) the details of technology Manufacturing of Nova Screen

imported;
(b) the year of import; 2015
(c) whether the technology been The above technologies have been fully absorbed.

fully absorbed;
(d)  if not fully absorbed, areas Not Applicable

where absorption has not
taken place, and the reasons
thereof;

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Capital Expenditure - Nil
Research and Development Revenue Expenditure - INR 37,90,174

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars Amount (in )

Earnings in foreign exchange from Goods and Services exported,
Commission etc. 119,669,119
Value of imports of raw materials, components, stores, spares, Commission,
technical know-how fees, royalty etc. 659,968,932
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Annexure – II
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Stovec firmly believes that Corporate Governance is about upholding the highest standard of ethics,
integrity, transparency and accountability in conducting affairs of the Company, so as to disseminate
transparent information to all stakeholders. Stovec always seek to ensure that it attains performance
goals with integrity. Corporate Governance has indeed been an integral part of the way Stovec
have done business. This emanates from our strong belief that strong governance is essential in
creating value on a sustainable basis. Corporate Governance is a journey for constantly improving
sustainable value creation and is an upward moving target.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board with reference to the number of Executive, Non-Executive Directors
and Woman Directors, meets the requirement of Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). The Company has an optimum
combination of Non-Executive Directors.

The present Board comprises of Six Directors which includes Non-Executive & Independent Chairman,
Executive Director, Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors (including one Woman Director) &
Non-Executive & Independent Director as under-

Name of Director Executive / Non - No. of Outside No. of outside
Executive / Independent Directorship Committee position

held

Member Chairman

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Non-Executive &
(DIN: 00201749) Independent (Chairman) 1 - -

Mr. Marco Wadia Non-Executive & 7 4 5
(DIN: 00244357) Independent

Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra Non-Executive & - - -
(DIN: 00481154) Non-Independent

Ms. Everdina Herma Slijkhuis Non-Executive & - - -
(DIN: 06997013) Non-Independent
(Ceased to be Director
w.e.f May 2, 2018.)

Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Gerardus Non-Executive & - - -
Roncken (DIN: 07973914) Non-Independent
(Ceased to be Director
w.e.f March 12, 2019)

Ms. Sangeeta Puneet Singh Non-Executive & - - -
Sachdev (DIN: 08118379) Non-Independent
(Appointment as Additional
Director w.e.f May 2, 2018)

Mr. Eiko Ris Non-Executive & - - -
(Appointed as Additional Non-Independent
Director w.e.f March 12, 2019)

Mr. Shailesh Wani Executive - - -
(DIN: 06474766) (Managing Director)

Notes:

1. None of the Directors are related to any other director.

2. Outside directorship does not include Alternate Directorship, Directorship of Private Ltd.
Companies, Section 8 Company and of Companies incorporated outside India. The Number of
outside committee position held includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee only.
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The Board met 5 (five) times during the year i.e. March 1, 2018, April 5, 2018, May 2, 2018, August
9, 2018 and November 14, 2018 and maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings
was not more than 120 days.

The following table gives the attendance record of the Directors at the Board as well as Annual
General Meeting.

DETAILS ABOUT THE BOARD MEETING

Directors No of Board No of Board Attendance at
Meetings held Meetings attended the last AGM

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla 05 04 Yes
Mr. Marco Wadia 05 05 Yes
Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra 05 01 Yes
Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Gerardus 05 05 Yes
Roncken
Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev 05 01 N.A.
Mr. Shailesh Wani 05 05 Yes

Shareholding of Non-Executive Director

The Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors in the Company as on December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Directors No. of Shares held % of total shares of the Company
Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Nil Nil
Mr. Marco Wadia 2150  0.1029
Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra Nil Nil
Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Gerardus
Roncken Nil Nil
Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev Nil Nil

Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors:
The disclosure regarding appointment/re-appointment of Directors has been given under Sr. No. 11
of Director’s Report.
Annual Performance Evaluation
The Annual Performance Evaluation of Board, Committees of Board and each Director including
Chairman of the Board was carried out through a structured questionnaire. Pursuant to the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the Board of Directors/Independent Directors/Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (as applicable) has undertaken an evaluation of their own performance,
the performance of Committees of Board and of all the individual Directors including Chairman of the
Board of Directors based on various parameters relating to roles, responsibilities, obligations, level
and effectiveness of participation e.g. inputs provided by the Director based on his/her knowledge,
skills and experience, independence in judgment, understanding of the Company’s business and
strategy, guidance on corporate strategy, sharing knowledge and experience in their respective
areas, contribution of Directors at meetings and functioning of Committees. The result of above
performance evaluation was presented to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors (as applicable).
The Board of Directors (excluding the Director being evaluated) evaluated the performance of
Mr. K.M. Thanawalla and Mr. Marco Wadia, Independent Directors of the Company and has determined
to continue with the term of appointment of the Independent Directors.
The Independent Directors in their meeting assessed the quality, sufficiency and timeliness of flow
of information between the Company Management and the Board which is necessary for the Board
to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The Independent Directors found the same
satisfactory.
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
The familiarization programme was organized for Independent Directors on August 8, 2018.
The details of familiarization Programme is available at the website of the Company www.stovec.com
at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/Stovec/News/Familiarization-Programme.pdf.
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3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Committees of the Board are constituted as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the requirement of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder and as per Listing Regulations.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are briefly described below:

(i) Review Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and also to examine
the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

(ii) Review with the management, of the annual financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement forming
part of the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment or re-enactment thereof;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

(iii) Review with the management of the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval

(iv) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment/re-
appointment, fixation of audit fees and, if required, the replacement or removal of the
Auditor;

(v) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory
Auditors;

(vi) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of
audit process;

(vii) Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(viii) May call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of
audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before
their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the Internal
and Statutory Auditors and the Management of the Company;

(ix) Reviewing with the Management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy
of the internal control systems;

(x) Review of the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(xi) Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

(xii) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(xiii) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
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(xiv) Review of information relating to:

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

b) Statement of significant related party transactions, submitted by management;

c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory
Auditors;

d) Internal Audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor

(xv) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;

(xvi) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(xvii) Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter;

(xviii) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

(xix) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, if any,
debenture holders, if any, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends)
and creditors;

(xx) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/Vigil Mechanism; Details of establishing
the Vigil Mechanism have been disclosed on the Company’s website and in the Director’s
Report;

(xxi) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

(xxii) To review the financial investments, in particular, the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiary company;

(xxiii) Other matters as may be prescribed from time to time to be dealt with or handled by the
Audit Committee pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules framed
thereunder, the Listing Agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the
securities of the Company are listed and the guidelines, circulars and notifications issued
by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)/Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)
from time to time.

(xxiv) Carrying out any other function as may be assigned to the Committee by the Board from
time to time;

Composition & Attendance at the Meeting
The composition of the Audit Committee and details of meetings attended by the Members of
the Audit Committee during the financial year 2018 are given below:

Directors Position Independent/ No. of No. of
held in Executive/ Meetings Meetings

Committee Non-Executive  held attended
Director

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Chairman Independent &
Non-Executive Director 05 05

Mr. Marco Wadia Member Independent &
Non-Executive Director 05 05

Mr. Shailesh Wani Member Managing Director 05 05

The Committee met 5 (five) times during the year i.e. March 1, 2018, April 5, 2018, May 2, 2018,
August 8, 2018 and November 14, 2018.

Company Secretary act as the Secretary to the Committee.
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The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present in the last Annual General Meeting to answer
the shareholders queries.

3.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have been formulated
in line with the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder and as per Listing Regulations.
Terms of Reference
Brief terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
• Devising a policy on Board diversity;
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal.

Composition & Attendance at the Meeting
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and details of meetings
attended by the Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the financial
year 2018 are given below:

Directors Position Independent / No. of No. of
held in Executive / Meetings Meetings

Committee Non-Executive  held attended
Director

Mr. Marco Wadia Chairman Independent & 2 2
Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Member Independent & 2 2
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Member Non-Executive Director 2 2
Gerardus Roncken
(Ceased to be Member
w.e.f March 12, 2019)

Mr. Eiko Ris has been appointed as a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
w.e.f March 12, 2019.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times during the year on March 1,
2018 and May 2, 2018 .
Company Secretary act as the Secretary to the Committee.
Remuneration Policy:
The Remuneration policy of the Company is performance driven and is structured to motivate
employees, recognize their merits and achievements, in order to retain the talent in the company
and stimulate excellence in their performance.
The Board of Directors/Nomination and Remuneration Committee is authorized to decide the
remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Director’s, subject to the approval of the
Members. Remuneration comprises of fixed Components viz. salary, perquisites and allowances
and a variable component comprising of Gross Bonus of minimum 38% and maximum of 50% of
annual fixed salary (as per the scheme applicable to Managing Directors’ of SPGPrints Operating
Companies) based on the targets achieved. The Managing Director will be entitled to bonus
provided the conditions for awarding bonus have been met.
The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the website of the
Company at www.stovec.com.
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The Directors’ remuneration and sitting fees paid/payable in respect of the financial year 2018
are given below:-
(A) Managing Director Remuneration:

The details of remuneration to Managing Director are as follows:
(In INR)

Managing Director Salary & Perquisites & Contribution Total*
Allowances Benefits to Provident

and Other Funds

Mr. Shailesh Wani 13,473,499 910,003 781,665 15,165,167
* Includes remuneration and variable pay on provisional basis.

(B) Service Contract and Notice Period of the Managing Director/Executive Director:
Mr. Shailesh Wani’s contract as a Managing Director is for a period of 3 years commencing
from October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2019, terminable by six months’ notice by either
side or amount equivalent to six months’ salary in lieu thereof.

(C) Non-Executive Directors:
The Independent Directors’ are paid remuneration by way of Sitting fees and Commission.

Meetings Sitting Fees per Meeting
Board of Directors Rs. 54,000/-
Audit Committee Rs. 27,000/-
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee, Committee of Directors Rs. 13,500/-
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Nil

Commission
The Members of the Company at the 43rd Annual General Meeting held on May 11, 2017
have approved payment of Commission to Independent Directors within the overall ceiling
of not exceeding 1% (one percent) or such other percentage as may be prescribed in the
Act from time to time, of the net profits of the Company (computed in the manner provided
in Section 198 of the Act or as may be prescribed by the Act or Rules framed thereunder
from time to time) for each financial year, for a period of three financial years commencing
from January 1, 2017, with Powers to Board to decide the amount to be paid as Commission
to Independent Directors, within the above referred ceiling of Commission.
The amount of Commission payable to each Independent Director is decided by the Board
of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and distributed among the Independent Directors based on their attendance and
contribution at the Board and Committee Meetings, Role and Responsibility as a Chairman/
Member of the Board/Committee.
Besides above, the Company does not pay any other commission or remuneration to its
Non-Executive Directors.
Remuneration paid/payable to the Independent Directors for the financial year 2018
are as under:

*Exclusive of Goods and Service Tax (as applicable).
Note:
(1) Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra, Ms. Everdina Herma Slijkhuis (Ceased to be Director

w.e.f May 2, 2018), Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Gerardus Roncken (Ceased to be Director
w.e.f March 12, 2019), Ms. Sangeeta Sachdev (Appointed as Additional Director

Name Sitting Fees* for 
Board /Committee 
Meetings Attended 

(In INR) 

Commission* 
(In INR) 

Total 
(In INR) 

Number of 
Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10 each 

held as on 
31.12.2018 

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla 4,05,000 14,89,300 18,94,300 Nil 
Mr. Marco Wadia 4,45,500 5,10,700 9,56,200 2,150 
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w.e.f. May 2, 2018) and Mr. Eiko Ris (Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f March 12,
2019), Non-Executive Directors opted not to accept any sitting fees for attending
Board/Committee Meetings, as applicable.

(2) As approved by Members of the Company in the 43rd Annual General Meeting,
Commission is payable only to Independent Directors.

(3) Commission mentioned above will be paid to Independent Directors after the approval
of Annual Financial Statements for the financial year 2018 by the Members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(4) The Company has received the approval of Members of the Company by way of Postal
Ballot on January 2, 2019, for payment of Commission to Mr. K.M. Thanawalla exceeding
50% of total commission that may be payable to Independent Directors of the Company
for the financial year 2018.

During the year, there were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the
Non-Executive Directors and the Company.

3.3 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been formulated in
line with the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder
and as per Listing Regulations.
Terms of Reference:
The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as under:
• Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints

related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

• Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
• Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
• Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

Composition
The composition of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is as under:

Directors Position held Independent/Executive /
in Committee Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Shailesh Wani Member Managing Director

Mr. Eiko Ris has been appointed as a Member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.e.f
March 12, 2019.
During the year under report, the committee met on March 1, 2018 and all the members were
present at the meeting.
Company Secretary act as the Secretary to the Committee.
Compliance Officer:
Mr. Sanjeev Singh Sengar, Company Secretary, who is the Compliance Officer, can be contacted at:-

Stovec Industries Limited
N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 382 405, India.
Tel: +91 79 6157 2300
Fax: +91 79 2571 0406
Email: secretarial@stovec.com

Complaints or queries relating to the shares can be forwarded to the Company’s Registrar and
Transfer Agents ‘M/s Link Intime India Private Limited’ at ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in. The
Compliance officer has been regularly interacting with the Share Transfer Agents to ensure
that shares related complaints of the investors are attended to without undue delay and
where deemed expedient the complaints are referred to the committee or discussed at the
meetings.
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The status on the total number of complaints received during the financial year 2018 are as
follows:-

Complaints received Pending as on 31.12.2018

3 NIL

3.4 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Composition

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under:

Directors Position Independent/ No. of No. of
held in Executive / Meetings Meetings

Committee Non-Executive held attended
Director

Mr. Shailesh Wani Chairman Managing Director 2 2

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Member Independent &
Non-Executive Director 2 1

Mr. Guillaume Cornelis
Gerardus Roncken
(Ceased to be Member
w.e.f March 12, 2019) Member Non-Executive Director 2 2

Mr. Eiko Ris has been appointed as a Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
w.e.f March 12, 2019.

During the year, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 (two) times i.e. on
March 1, 2018 and August 9, 2018.

Terms of Reference:

The Committee is primarily responsible for formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors
a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and monitoring the same from time to time, amount
of expenditure to be incurred on the activities pertaining to CSR and monitoring CSR activities.

CSR Policy

The Company has formulated CSR Policy and the same is available at the website of the Company
at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/Stovec/Stovec-policies/
CSR_Policy.pdf.

Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee.

3.5 OTHER COMMITTEES

a) Committee of Directors

Directors Position held Independent/Executive /
in Committee Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Marco Wadia Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

During the year 2018, no meeting of Committee of Directors was held.

b) Divestment Committee

Directors Position held Independent/Executive /
in Committee Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.M. Thanawalla Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Marco Wadia Member Independent & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Shailesh Wani Member Managing Director

During the year 2018, the Divestment Committee met once on March 7, 2018. All the members
of the Committee were present in the meeting. The Divestment Committee has been dissolved
w.e.f April 5, 2019.
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3.6 SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING

Pursuant to requirements of the Act and Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations, the Company’s
Independent Directors during the year under review met on March 1, 2018, without the presence
of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management.

4. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS:

The Company has in place, a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for its Board Members, Senior
Management and Employees. The Board and the Senior Management affirm compliance with the
code annually.

5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS’ DISCLOSURES:

Location and time of General Meetings in the past 3 financial years:

Year Type Location Date Time
2017 General Stovec Industries Limited May 2, 2018 11:00 am
2016 Meeting N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, May 11, 2017 11:00 am
2015 Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382405 May 25, 2016 11:00 am

The following are the Special Resolutions passed at General Meetings held in the past 3 financial
years:

Date of Meeting Summary

May 2, 2018 Nil

May 11, 2017 Nil

May 25, 2016 Re-appointment of Mr. Shailesh Wani as a Managing Director of the Company

6. DISCLOSURE

6.1 Besides the transactions mentioned elsewhere in the Annual Report, there were no other
materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large.

6.2 The Company has complied with various rules and regulations prescribed by Stock Exchanges,
Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authority relating to the capital
markets during the last 3 years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed by them on the
Company.

6.3 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations, the Managing Director
and the Chief Financial Officer have issued a certificate to the Board for the financial year
ended December 31, 2018.

6.4 During the year under review, the Company has complied with the corporate governance
requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of
Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations.

6.5 Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy through which Directors, Employees and
other Stakeholders may report their genuine concerns or grievances. The Whistle Blower Policy
of the Company has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www.stovec.com. No
personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee to report its genuine concerns or
grievances.

6.6 Related Party Transactions

There were no materially significant related party transactions during the financial year 2018.
Related Party Transaction Policy has been formulated in order to regulate the transact ions
between Company and Related Parties. The Related Party Transaction Policy is available at the
website of the Company at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/
Stovec/Stovec-policies/Related_Party_Transaction_Policy.pdf.

6.7 Risk Management

As required by Listing Regulations, the Risk Management Policy has been formulated and the
same is available at the website of the Company at www.stovec.com.
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6.8 Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading and Code of Conduct for Fair Disclosures

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of
Trading by Insiders and Code of Conduct for fair disclosures pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

6.9 Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

The Company has formulated Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries and the same is
available at the website of the Company at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/
uploads/documents/Stovec/Stovec-policies/Policy_for_determining_Material_Subsidiaries.pdf.

6.10Policy for determining Material Information

As required by Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement s)
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors have approved the Policy for determining Material
Information, which is effective from December 1, 2015 and is available at the website of the
Company at www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/Stovec/
Stovec-policies/Policy_for_determining_Material_Information.pdf.

6.11 Policy for Preservation of Documents and Archival Policy

As required by Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 , the Board of Directors have approved the Policy for Preservation of
Documents and Archival Policy and the same is available at the website of the Company at
www.stovec.com at https://www.spgprints.com/uploads/documents/Stovec/Stovec-policies/
Policy_for_Preservation_of_Documents___Archival_Policy.pdf.

6.12 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company in the preparation of financial statements has followed the treatment laid down
in the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
There are no audit qualifications in the Company’s financial statements for the year under
review.

6.13 Disclosure of Commodity Price Risks, Foreign Exchange Risk and Commodity Hedging
Activities

High quality Nickel, which is the principal raw material for the Company is imported regularly, as
per Purchase guidelines of the Company. The Company's performance may get impacted in
case of substantial change in prices of Nickel or Foreign Exchange rate fluctuations. The Company
takes forward cover as per its forex risk coverage policy. The Company does not undertake
commodity hedging activities.

The Company has put in place risk management policy to address the risks associated with the
business of the company including commodity price risk and mechanism to continuously monitor
the movement in commodity prices and take appropriate action to ensure better cost control.
During the year, the company has no material price risk exposure.

6.14 Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

The disclosure has been given at Sr. No. 23 to the Directors’ Report.

6.15 Adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements of Listing Regulations

The Company has separate persons for the position of Chairman and Managing Director.
Mr. K.M. Thanawalla is a Chairman (Independent & Non - Executive) and Mr. Shailesh Wani is
the Managing Director of the Company.

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited was the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company till
March 21, 2018 and ceased to be the Subsidiary Company w.e.f March 22, 2018. The provisions of
Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations, as applicable, have been complied with.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has published quarterly, half yearly as well as annual results in the following News
Papers:
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Type of Result Date on which Daily News Paper Daily News Paper
Published (English) (Gujarati)

Quarterly of March 31, 2018 May 4, 2018 Business Standard Loksatta Jansatta
Quarterly of June 30, 2018 August 11, 2018 Business Standard Jaihind
Quarterly of September 30, 2018 November 15, 2018 Business Standard Jaihind
Annual as on December 31, 2018 February 16, 2019 Business Standard Jaihind

The quarterly and annual financial results of the company are also updated on the company’s website
viz. www.stovec.com and of the website of BSE viz. www.bseindia.com.

The Annual Report, Quarterly Results, Quarterly Corporate Governance Report and Shareholding
Pattern of the Company are filed with the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time.

9. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS

9.1 Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date and Time Thursday, May 9, 2019 at 11:00 A.M.
Venue Stovec Industries Limited, N.I.D.C., Near Lambha Village, Post:

Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India.

9.2 Financial Calendar:
Financial Year Ending December 31, 2018
Date of Book Closure May 2, 2019 to May 9, 2019 (both days inclusive)
Dividend Payment Date Amount of Dividend will be deposited with the bank within 5 days

of approval of Dividend by the Shareholders in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and its payment will be made within 30
days of its declaration.

9.3 Listing:
The Company’s shares are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange
Limited (ASE). The Company has paid annual listing fees to BSE in respect of the year
2018-2019.

9.4 The following are the listing details of the Company’s Shares:
Type of Shares ISIN No. Stock Code

BSE ASE
Ordinary Share INE755D01015 504959 57410

9.5 Market Information:

Market price data monthly high/low and trading volumes on BSE depicting liquidity of the
Company’s Shares on the said exchange is given hereunder:-

Month BSE

High ( ) Low ( ) No. of Shares
Jan-18 3470.00 3000.00 6228
Feb-18 3184.90 2701.00 4764
Mar-18 3145.00 2955.00 11628
Apr-18 3237.00 2956.15 5179
May-18 3220.00 2655.00 11349
Jun-18 2875.00 2600.00 7638
Jul-18 2668.50 2211.00 19870
Aug-18 2790.00 2316.00 16144
Sep-18 2779.00 2400.00 8688
Oct-18 2498.95 2272.00 7661
Nov-18 2734.95 2380.00 6921
Dec-18 2690.00 2343.95 5126
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Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:

*source: www.bseindia.com

9.6 Registrar and Transfer Agents:-

For transfer lodgement, delivery and correspondence related to Shares, Members are
requested to do correspondence with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents -
M/s Link Intime India Private Limited quoting their folio no. at the following address:-

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited, 5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Center –I
(ABC-I), Besides Gala Business Center, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, Off. C.G. Road,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380 009, Gujarat.

Tel: +91(0) 79 - 2646 5179, Fax: +91(0) 79 - 2646 5179.

9.7 Share Transfer System:

The Board has issued Power of Attorney to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd., to approve transfer of shares.

9.8 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit & Certificate pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of Listing
Regulations:

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed capital.
The audit confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of
the total number of shares in physical form and in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and
CDSL).

Pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of Listing Regulations, certificate on half-yearly basis have been
issued by a Practicing Company Secretary for due compliance of share transfer formalities by
the Company.

9.9 Report on Corporate Governance:

The Company regularly submits to the Stock Exchanges, within the prescribed period, quarterly
reports on Corporate Governance. A Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary on
Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is attached as annexure to the Report.
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9.10 Shareholding Pattern of the Company:

Category As on 31.12.2018 As on 31.12.2017 %
No. of % No. of % Variance

Shares Shares 18 v/s 17
Promoters & Promoter Group 1,483,777 71.06 1,483,777 71.06 -
Mutual Funds/UTI 0 0 100 0.01 (0.01)
Foreign Portfolio Investors 600 0.03 2347 0.11 (0.08)
Investor Education and
Protection Fund 25,263 1.21 23598 1.13 0.08
Financial Institutions/Banks 1,451 0.07 1451 0.07 -
Bodies Corporate 24,733 1.19 28,658 1.37 (0.18)
NRIs (Repatriable) 5,932 0.28 7,543 0.36 (0.08)
NRIs (Non-Repatriable) 9,894 0.47 9,157 0.44 0.03
Clearing Members 6,705 0.32 4,695 0.22 0.10
Directors & their Relatives 5,864 0.28 5,864 0.28  -
Individuals/HUF 5,23,697 25.08 5,20,726 24.94 0.14
Trusts 100 0.01 100 0.01 -
Total 2,088,016 100.00 2,088,016 100.00 -

9.11 Distribution of Shareholding as on December 31, 2018:

Range of Shares Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Shareholders of Total Shares of Total

Shareholders Shares
1 - 500 6736 97.8927 310304 14.8612
501 - 1000 81 1.1772 55910 2.6777
1001 - 2000 38 0.5522 53597 2.5669
2001 - 3000 9 0.1308 23123 1.1074
3001 - 4000 4 0.0581 14578 0.6982
4001 - 5000 2 0.0291 9450 0.4526
5001 - 10000 6 0.0872 35008 1.6766
10001 or more 5 0.0727 1586046 75.9595
TOTAL 6,881 100 2,088,016 100.00

9.12 Top shareholders (holding in excess of 1% of capital) as on December 31, 2018:

Name of Shareholder No. of  Shares held % of Share Capital

SPGPrints B.V. (Formerly Stork Prints B.V.) 14,83,777 71.06

Nanda Kishore Sharma 35,485 1.6995

Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority, Ministry of Corporate Affairs 25,263 1.2099

Amit Shantilal Motla 25,000 1.1973

9.13 Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity:

As on December 31, 2018, shares comprising 95.57% of the Company’s Equity Share Capital
have been dematerialized.

ISIN No.:- INE755D01015
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9.14 Plant Location & Address for Correspondence:

Stovec Industries Limited
N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 382 405, India.
CIN : L45200GJ1973PLC050790
Tel : +91 79- 6157 2300
Facsimile No : +91 79- 2571 0406
Website : www.stovec.com
E-mail : secretarial@stovec.com

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER PART D OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE
TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board of Directors,
Senior Management & Employees, as applicable to them, for the financial year ended December 31,
2018.

For, Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/-
Shailesh Wani

Date: April 5, 2019 Managing Director
Place: Ahmedabad (DIN: 06474766)



STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

39

CIN: - L45200GJ1973PLC050790 Nominal Capital: - 3,00,00,000/-
Paid-up Capital: - 2,08,80,160/-

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To,
The Members,
Stovec Industries Ltd.
N.I.D.C. Nr. Lambha Village,
Post: Narol, Ahmedabad.

We have examined all relevant records of Stovec Industries Limited for the purpose of certifying compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance under para C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV of
SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended on 31st December,
2018. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanation and information furnished, We certify that
the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the para C of Schedule V read with Regulation
34(3) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Place:  Ahmedabad
Date:   April 5, 2019 For, Sandip Sheth & Associates

Firm Unique Code : P2001GJ041000
Practicing Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Sandip Sheth
Partner
FCS: 5467
CP No.: 4354
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Annexure-III
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT:

Stovec is a part of SPGPrints Group, The Netherlands and is a Market leader for Rotary Screens and
Printing Machines. Stovec essentially operates in two verticals viz. Textile Printing (Rotary & Digital) and
Graphics Printing.

Textiles (Rotary & Digital)

Textile Printing Segment is the key customer segment for Stovec. Over the past couple of years, investment
in textile industry is reflecting a declining trend. Difficulty in obtaining finance from Banks, weak order
book at customer’s end has led to low capital investment, which resulted in reduced demand for Company’s
Capital Products.

Government has taken several initiatives to support the domestic textile sector such as increasing basic
custom duty to 20% from 10% on several textile products, approval of new skill development scheme
named “Scheme for Capacity Building in Textile Sector (SCBTS)” with an outlay of Rs. 1,300/- crores
during 2017-18 to 2019-20 and upward revision in rates of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme for
two sub-sectors of Textile Industry i.e. Readymade-garments and Made-ups.

Increased penetration of organized retail, favorable demographics and rising income levels are expected
to drive demand for textile industry. Growth in building and construction is anticipated to raise demand
for non-clothing textiles. Abundant availability of key raw material like cotton, wool, silk and jute, skilled
manpower and cheaper cost of production give a competitive edge to India over other countries.
Government measures towards easing the availability of finance, continuation of technology upgradation
fund scheme, conducive indirect tax structure may help Indian Textile Industry to achieve its real growth
momentum.

Being one of the major contributor in India’s GDP, Textile Industry has an important place in the Indian
manufacturing sector and is the second largest employer after agriculture sector employing around 45
million people. Textiles Industry still stands as a major foreign currency revenue generator for India,
generating around 15% of export revenues for the country and holds 14% share of industrial production,
making India as one of the largest exporters of readymade garments to the world and the second most
preferred sourcing destination for major global retailers. The Indian textile and apparel industry is expected
to grow at a Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of around 8.6% by 2023.

Rotary Textile Printing continues to enjoy major market share amongst all textile printing technologies.
It is preferred by most of the textile houses on account of its lower operating costs, consistent quality &
suitability for high volume printing.

Digital Textile Printing in India is creating its own space and is gradually getting acceptance from the
market. Commercially viable, competitive pricing and easy availability of digital textile printing technologies
is anticipated to add growth of digital textile printing in India. Faster adaptability of fashion designs, fast
moving fashion cycle, cost advantage on short run cycles, creative designs, quick time to market for new
trends, lower wastage and power consumption are some of the key aspects that is expected to drive
the demand for digital textile printing. With the expected growth in demand for textiles, the textile and
décor and direct to garment segment is expected to account for maximum share of Digital Textile Printing
Market. The Digital Textile Printing Market is expected to grow in next five years at a CAGR of 5.59%.

Graphics Printing

Indian Packaging and Label Industry is expected to see a notable growth and continues to grow strongly
in coming years driven by rapid growth of Indian e-commerce sector. Organized retail and e-commerce
thrive, which offers huge potential for future growth of retailing will continue to support the packaging
and labeling industry. The growth in lifestyle and consumption patterns is expected to increase the
demand for the packaged products resulting in growth of packaging industry. In years to come, Printers
who have technology and resources will be at added advantage and can cater to a demanding consumer
oriented market.
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE:

Standalone:

Your Company has achieved standalone revenue from operations of Rs. 1,930.16 Million (Previous year
Rs. 2,175.69 Million) a decline of about 13% in revenue as compared to previous year. The decline in
revenue from operations is mainly on account of low capital investment by our customers and textile
industry in general, which resulted in reduced demand for Company's Capital Products. However, despite
decline in sales, with the quality products in hand and strong sales force, your company has maintained
the margins and achieved Operational Profit of Rs. 410.46 Million (Previous year Rs. 393.96 Million); a
growth of about 4% as compared to previous year. During the year, the Company has made profit from
exceptional item of Rs. 141.08 Million from divestment by the Company of its 100% equity investment in
Atul and also sale of certain identified assets of galvanic business to Atul.

Consolidated:

Your Company has achieved consolidated revenue from operations of Rs. 1948.04 Million and Operational
Profit of Rs. 414 Million. The Company has also made profit from exceptional item of Rs. 80.90 Million from
divestment of 100% equity investment in Atul and sale of certain identified assets of galvanic business
to Atul.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

The segment wise sales performance of the Company is as under:

(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2018 2017

Textile Consumables & Textile Machinery 1540.04 1835.98

Graphic Products 92.87 100.39

Galvanic 297.25 239.31

OPERATIONS PERFORMANCE:

The Company has state of the art manufacturing facility in Ahmedabad. It follows best-in-class
manufacturing practices and several operational excellence initiatives are taken by the Company to
drive the operational efficiency.

PARTICIPATION IN TRADE SHOWS & EXHIBITIONS:

The Company participated and marked its impressive presence in Label Expo, held in Greater Noida.

The Company will continue to participate in trade shows & exhibitions to enhance its presence and
visibility in the market.

OUTLOOK & OPPORTUNITIES:

As per latest International Monetary Fund report, Indian economy is poised to pick up in 2019, benefitting
from lower oil prices and slower pace of monetary tightening, as inflationary pressure eases. As per
latest World Economic Prospects report by World Bank, India’s GDP is estimated to grow at 7.3% in
2018-19, as economic activity continued to recover with strong domestic demand. In 2019-20, India is
expected to grow at 7.5% driven by expected robust private consumption, as the country reaps the
benefit of structural reforms and of a revival of credit growth. However, fiscal slippage in the run up to the
general elections this year, global trade protectionism and volatility in oil prices may affect the outlook.

At the Global front, growth for 2018 is estimated at 3.7% due to softer momentum in second half of
2018. The global growth projected for 2019 is on a lower side i.e. 3.5% taking into account among
others the trade disagreements between US and China.

In 2019, growth in private consumption is expected to create strong domestic demand for textiles.
Increased penetration of organized retail, favorable demographics, fast changing fashion, preference to
branded products, consumer preference to procure via e-commerce and rising income levels are likely to
drive the demand for textiles. India’s growing population has been a key driver of textile consumption
growth in the country complemented by a young population which is growing and at the same time is
exposed to changing tastes and fashions. Adequate fund allocation under key scheme for textiles like
Textile Upgradation Fund Scheme (“TUFS”) and steps to further incentivize textile exports is looked upon
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by the Industry, in order to make Indian textiles more competitive at the global front which in turn is
expected to lift growth of Indian Textiles. Increase in import duties for many of the textile items and
accelerating the refund of GST is expected to help the textile industry. Trade disagreement between
some of the countries if continued longer may lead to shift in additional demand of textiles from India,
which will be an opportunity to look upon and may lead to increase in capacity expansion by textile
manufacturers.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:

For India, fiscal slippage in the run up to the general elections this year, global trade protectionism,
volatility in oil prices, rising inflation and the possibility of delay in needed structural reforms to address
weaknesses in the balance sheet of banks and non-banking financial companies, further deterioration in
current account deficit and a faster than expected tightening of global financing conditions may affect
the outlook for India adversely and may also affect the business in general as well as your Company’s
business.

Tightened global financing conditions, moderate industrial production, elevated trade tensions and financial
stress in large emerging and developing economies are some of the key risks for the global economy.

The volatility in cotton and nickel may impact the Company’s performance. The fluctuations in exchange
rate, liquidity issues and rising power and labour cost continues to be a key challenge for the industry.
The overall economic climate and in particular the health of textile processing industry which continues to
remain confronted by environment related issues, may have impact on the Company’s business plans.
The Company continues to take suitable steps to minimize these risks and their impact on Company’s
overall performance.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

Adequate internal control procedures and systems are in place.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

The Company has focused on creating performance based culture within the organization and emphasize
on employees training and development. The Company intends to attract, retain and develop talent
through good HR practices. The Company had total 222 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company
as on December 31, 2018.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the projections, estimates, expectations
may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference
to the Company’s operations includes, among others, economic conditions affecting demand/ supply and price
conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the Government
regulations, tax laws and other statutes and incidental factors.

Note : Some parts of the content of this annual report are taken from sources like www.worldbank.org,
www.imf.org, www.ibef.org, Report of FICCI on building a new age Textile Industry, articles published in
various newspapers/websites etc.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
K.M. Thanawalla
Chairman
(DIN: 00201749)

Date: April 5, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad
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Annexure-IV
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.
In alignment with vision of the Company, the Company through its CSR initiatives, will continue to
enhance value creation in the society and in the community in which it operates, through its services,
conduct & initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in fulfillment
of its role as Socially Responsible Corporate, with environmental concern.
OBJECTIVE OF CSR POLICY:
• Ensure an increased commitment at all levels in the organization, to operate its business in an

economically, socially & environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the interests of
all its stakeholders.

• Demonstrate commitment to the common good through responsible business practices and
good governance.

• To directly or indirectly take up the programmes that benefits the Society at large and
communities in and around its work center over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life
& economic well-being of the local populace.

• Support Governments’ development agenda to ensure sustainable change.
PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN:
In accordance with this CSR Policy and the specified activities under the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and any amendment(s) thereof,
the CSR activities of the Company will have the following thrust areas:
i. Skill Development for sustainable income generation & Livelihood for marginalized population
ii. Literacy / Education
iii. Basic Infrastructure facilities like Safe Drinking Water, Health care & Sanitation
iv. Protection and safeguard of environment and maintenance of ecological balance.
v. To respond to emergency situations/ disasters/ Other national cause by providing Contribution

to State Funds for such cause
vi. Socio- economic development, relief and welfare of Children, Women and those who are Physically

and Mentally challenged.
These will be undertaken in collaboration with State Governments, district administrations, local
administrations as well as Central Government, Departments/Agencies, NGOs, Self Help Groups etc.
The Company will implement its CSR programs through Government Funds, Registered Trust, Society
or otherwise.
A. The Board of Directors of the Company may decide to undertake CSR activities approved by the

CSR Committee, through a registered trust or a registered society or a company established by
the Company or its holding or subsidiary or associate company under Section 8 of the Companies
Act or otherwise. Provided that:
i. If such trust, society or company is not established by the Company or its holding or

subsidiary or associate company, it shall have an established track record of three years
in undertaking similar programs or projects;

ii. The company has specified the project or programs to be undertaken through these entities,
the modalities of utilization of funds on such projects and programs and the monitoring
and reporting mechanism.

B. The Company may also collaborate with other companies for undertaking projects or programs
or CSR activities in such a manner that the CSR Committees of respective companies are in a
position to report separately on such projects or programs in accordance with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

C. The Company may also contribute to the recognized fund established by Central / State
Government. More details on the CSR Policy and Projects are available on the Company’s website
as per the link given below: http://www.spgprints.com/include/files/About_us/Stovec/Policies/
CSR_Policy.pdf
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2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: INR 34,76,81,512/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 69,53,630/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: INR 69,53,630/-

b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

6. In case of company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending
the amount in its Board report. – Not applicable

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The CSR Committee ensures that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance
with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For and on behalf of CSR Committee
For, Stovec Industries Limited For, Stovec Industries Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Shailesh Wani Shailesh Wani
Managing Director Chairman – Corporate Social Responsibility
(DIN: 06474766) Committee

(DIN: 06474766)
Date: April 5, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

Sr. 
No. 

CSR 
Project or 
activity 
identified 

Sector in 
which 
the 
Project 
is 
covered 

Projects or 
programs 
 
1) Local 
area or 
other 
2) Specify 
the state 
and district 
where 
projects or 
programs 
was 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
programs 
wise 

Amount 
spent on 
the projects 
or programs 
 
Sub-heads: 
 
1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects 
or 
programs. 
2) 
overheads. 

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period 

Amount 
spent: 
Direct or 
through 
implementing 
agency. 

1 Contribution 
to Prime 
Minister’s 
National 
Relief Fund 

Not 
Applicable 

Contribution 
to Prime 
Minister’s 
National 
Relief Fund 

INR 
70,00,000/- 

INR 
70,00,000/- 
 

INR 
70,00,000/- 

Direct 

 Total INR 
70,00,000/- 

INR 
70,00,000/- 

INR 
70,00,000/- 

- 

 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Member Position held in CSR 
Committee 

1 Mr. Shailesh Wani Chairman 
2 Mr. Khurshed M. Thanawalla Member 
3 Mr. Guillaume Cornelis Gerardus Roncken (Ceased to be 

Member w.e.f. March 12, 2019) 
Member 

4 Mr. Eiko Ris (Appointed as Member w.e.f. March 12, 2019) Member 
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Annexure-V
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION

(Pursuant to Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5 (1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

(i) Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year 2018, the percentage increase in remuneration of Managing
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial year 2018.

*Considering the remuneration and variable pay on provisional basis.

Note:

The Company pays sitting fees to Independent Directors. Other Non-Executive Directors of the
Company opted not to accept any sitting fees. The Independent Directors are also entitled for
Commission as per the statutory provisions and within the limits approved by the Members of the
Company. The details of Sitting fees and Commission to Independent Directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report. The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase for Non-Executive
Director’s Remuneration is therefore not considered for the above purpose.

(ii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees for the financial year 2018
was 11%.

(iii) The Company had 222 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on December 31,
2018.

(iv) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year was 13.54% whereas the increase in the managerial
remuneration was 7%. The average increase every year is an outcome of the Company’s market
competitiveness and business performance. Keeping in mind our Nomination and Remuneration
policy and benchmarking results, the increases this year reflect the market practice.

(v) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration: Variable compensation is an
integral part of our total remuneration package for all employees including Managing Directors/
Whole-time Directors. Variable Pay is directly linked to business performance. At the start of
the year, the Management sets business and financial targets for the Company. These are
drawn from the organizational strategic plan and are then reviewed for consistency and stretch.

(vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year 2018 is as per the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
K.M. Thanawalla
Chairman
(DIN: 00201749)

Date: April 5, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director / Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Designation Ratio of 
Remuneration of 
each Director to 

median 
remuneration of 

employees 

Percentage 
increase in 

Remuneration 

1 Mr. Shailesh Wani Managing Director 35.80:1* 7.00% 
2 Mr. Paras Mehta Chief Financial 

Officer 
Not Applicable 13.00% 

3 Mrs. Varsha Adhikari Company 
Secretary 

Not Applicable 11.00% 
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Annexure-VI

FORM NO. AOC- 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
K.M. Thanawalla
Chairman
(DIN: 00201749)

Date: April 5, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad



STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

47

Annexure - VII
FORM NO. MR 3

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on 31st December, 2018

To,
The Members,
Stovec Industries Limited
CIN: L45200GJ1973PLC050790
N.I.D.C , Near Lambha Village,
Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Stovec Industries Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st December,
2018 (hereinafter referred to as “Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st December, 2018 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

During period under report, no specific law is applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following, to the
extent applicable to the Company during the audit period:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited.

(iii) SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to
time.

We report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Acts, rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above.
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We further report that, there were no actions/ events in pursuance of:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the financial year.

We further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by
auditor/other designated professionals.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no other specific events/actions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : February 14, 2019 For, Sandip Sheth & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries
Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000

Sd/-
Sandip Sheth
Partner
FCS: 5467
CP No.: 4354

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral
part of this report.
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“Annexure – A”

To,
The Members,
Stovec Industries Limited
CIN:  L45200GJ1973PLC050790
N.I.D.C, Near Lambha Village,
Post: Narol, Ahmedabad–382 405, Gujarat, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the representations from the Management and respective
departmental heads about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc. during the audit period.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis, for the purpose of issuing Secretarial Audit Report.

6. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We conducted our audit in the manner specified under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made there under, which seeks an opinion and reasonable assurance about the
compliance status of various applicable acts and rules to the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: February 14, 2019 For, Sandip Sheth & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries
Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000

Sd/-
Sandip Sheth
Partner
FCS: 5467
CP No.: 4354
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of STOVEC INDUSTRIES
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st December, 2018, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Other Matters
The transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st January 2017 included in these standalone Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
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Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, which were audited by the predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended 31st December, 2016 dated 23rd February, 2017 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those standalone financial statements, and have been restated to comply with Ind AS.
Adjustments made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.
Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on
31st December, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st December, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

its standalone Ind AS financial statements;
ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval
(Partner)
(Membership No. 106189)

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of December 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
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controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at December 31,
2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval
(Partner)
(Membership No. 106189)

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report of even date on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land
and acquired buildings, which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant
of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2014, as amended, would apply. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at 31st December, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.
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(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, and Value Added Tax which
have not been deposited as on 31st December, 2018 on account of disputes are given below:

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has not issued
any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval
(Partner)
(Membership No. 106189)

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of 
Dues 

Forum where 
Dispute is Pending 

Period to 
which the 
Amount 
Relates 

Amount 
Involved 

Amount 
Unpaid 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals) 

A.Y. 2007-08 380,731 380,731 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals) 

A.Y. 2008-09 384,807 384,807 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals) 

A.Y. 2009-10 384,807 384,807 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals) 

A.Y. 2010-11 384,807 384,807 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals) 

A.Y. 2011-12 376,089 376,089 

The Central 
Excise Act, 1944 

Excise Duty Gujarat High Court F.Y. 2006-07 2,765,203 2,765,203 

The Finance Act, 
1994 

Service Tax Customs Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal (CESTAT) 

F.Y. 2003-04 889,554 444,777 

The Finance Act, 
1994 

Service Tax Commissioner of 
Central Excise 
(Appeals) 

F.Y.2012-13 
F.Y.2013-14 
F.Y.2014-15 

1,093,900 445,158 
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 28,95,62,590 34,57,87,577 19,25,00,478
(b) Capital work-in-progress 44,47,301 47,87,252 5,99,04,999
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 29,08,670 2,62,65,323 4,14,66,362
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 1,10,81,848 1,29,99,470 1,11,01,812
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets 6 1,21,60,950 5,31,16,040 17,03,31,691
(e) Other non-current assets 7 95,33,694 99,90,675 1,69,79,912
Total Non- current Assets 32,96,95,053 45,29,46,337 49,22,85,254

Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 24,56,19,172 31,67,85,386 36,81,17,206
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 27,43,50,208 34,30,35,507 25,63,26,421
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 8,09,26,555 12,97,30,810 7,62,81,063
(iii) Bank balances other

than (ii) above 11 81,61,06,346 21,78,70,920 15,99,01,730
(iv) Other current financial assets 12 49,88,753 59,38,733 1,23,85,342

(c) Other current assets 13 1,46,08,757 1,74,55,670 2,09,98,568
Total Current Assets 1,43,65,99,791 1,03,08,17,026 89,40,10,330
Total Assets 1,76,62,94,844 1,48,37,63,363 1,38,62,95,584

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity share capital 14 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160
(b) Other equity 15 1,39,11,57,255 1,08,90,43,240 91,17,87,498

Total Equity 1,41,20,37,415 1,10,99,23,400 93,26,67,658
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

(a) Long term Provisions 16 1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 45,70,424 87,56,058 89,04,799
(c) Other non-current liabilities 18 1,26,98,182 1,22,84,064 1,13,97,818

Total Non-current Liabilities 3,14,77,565 3,18,51,190 2,89,86,083
Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 19 4,82,259 17,60,424 26,85,492
- total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 19 23,56,97,473 27,01,63,107 25,07,98,001
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities 20 1,14,29,403 80,46,113 64,86,849
(b) Other current liabilities 21 5,45,31,159 3,30,55,996 13,68,65,026
(c) Short term Provisions 22 1,72,87,185 2,85,87,669 2,78,06,475
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 23 33,52,385 3,75,464 -

Total Current Liabilities 32,27,79,864 34,19,88,773 42,46,41,843
Total Liabilities 35,42,57,429 37,38,39,963 45,36,27,926
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,76,62,94,844 1,48,37,63,363 1,38,62,95,584

Note As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

INCOME
Revenue from operations 24 1,93,01,59,059 2,17,56,88,416
Other Income 25 6,12,66,997 3,84,43,374
Total Income 1,99,14,26,056 2,21,41,31,790
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 26 88,93,84,591 97,66,75,659
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27 4,81,49,858 15,57,69,764
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade 28 4,01,31,383 2,67,09,730
Employee benefits expense 29 20,80,98,844 19,50,12,128
Finance costs 30 22,68,811 13,43,769
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 5,25,23,623 5,98,07,208
Other expenses 31 34,04,04,840 40,48,48,128
Total expenses 1,58,09,61,950 1,82,01,66,386
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 41,04,64,106 39,39,65,404

Exceptional Items (Refer Note 42) 14,10,80,975 -
Profit before tax 55,15,45,081 39,39,65,404
Tax expenses
- Current tax 15,89,59,679 13,70,81,565
- (Excess) / Short provision of income

tax of earlier years (Net) - (8,55,293)
- Deferred tax (30,54,515) 7,94,297

15,59,05,164 13,70,20,569
Net Profit for the year 39,56,39,917 25,69,44,835
Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit

plans (22,16,165) (15,16,485)
(ii) Equity instruments through other

comprehensive income (18,17,622) (12,08,427)
Income tax relating to items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss 11,31,120 9,43,037

(29,02,667) (17,81,875)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 39,27,37,250 25,51,62,960
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
(Refer Note 34) 189.48 123.06
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 41,04,64,106 39,39,65,404

Adjustments for:

Depreciation / Amortisation 5,25,23,623 5,98,07,208

Finance cost 22,68,811 13,43,769

Interest income (3,39,98,125) (1,90,16,265)

Unrealised foreign exchange loss 1,56,115 8,21,936

Loss / (Gain) on sale of assets 87,831 (16,763)

Provision / (Reversal) for doubtful trade receivables 39,77,207 (43,99,894)

(Reversal) / Provision for other liabilities (22,36,357) 33,62,098

(Reversal) / Provision for Warranty (72,89,654) (11,30,394)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 42,59,53,557 43,47,37,099

Adjustments For Changes In Working Capital:

Decrease / (Increase) In Other assets 1,40,78,417 (63,637)

Decrease / (Increase) In Inventories 7,32,10,385 5,03,88,185

Decrease / (Increase) In Trade receivables 6,48,67,718 (8,38,09,336)

(Decrease) / Increase In Other liabilities 2,12,84,097 (10,24,28,468)

(Decrease) / Increase In Trade and Other Payables (3,55,00,946) 3,69,01,693

Cash Generated From Operations 56,38,93,228 33,57,25,536

Direct Taxes Refund / (Paid) (Net) (15,55,02,191) (13,51,39,385)

A. Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 40,83,91,037 20,05,86,151

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,04,17,605) (16,08,62,805)

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9,51,68,717 3,20,599

Sale / (Purchase) of Investments 10,37,40,000 (31,06,085)

Investments in Bank Deposits (56,77,42,463) 7,03,00,000

Interest Income 3,49,48,105 2,54,62,874

B. Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (36,43,03,246) (6,78,85,417)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividend paid on equity shares (7,51,68,576) (6,47,28,496)

Dividend distribution tax paid on above (1,54,54,659) (1,31,78,722)

Other Finance costs paid (22,68,811) (13,43,769)

C. Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (9,28,92,046) (7,92,50,987)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (A+B+C) (4,88,04,255) 5,34,49,747
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For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 12,97,30,810 7,62,81,063

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 8,09,26,555 12,97,30,810

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprise :

Cash on hand 2,93,259 1,53,040

Cheques on hand 75,13,781 1,15,45,390

Bank Balances :

- In Current Accounts 7,31,19,515 7,30,32,380

- Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 4,50,00,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 10) 8,09,26,555 12,97,30,810

Notes :
1. The above Standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the

Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

2. Disclosure under para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising
from financing activities, includingboth changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for current period as follows.

Changes in liabilities arising from financial acitivities ( )

  Particulars January Cash Flows December
 1, 2018 31, 2018

  Unpaid Dividend on equity shares - 7,51,68,576 -

  Unpaid Dividend Distribuiton Tax on equity shares - 1,54,54,659 -

  Other Finance Costs accrued but not due - 22,68,811 -
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2018
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1) General Information
Stovec Industries Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 5th June, 1973. The Company’s
factory and registered office is located in Ahmedabad, Gujarat. The Company is listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange Ltd. and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company has three major Business
Segments: Textile Machinery & Consumables,Graphics Consumables and Galvanic. The Company
is a Technology and Market leader in Rotary Screen Printing Industry in India.

2) Statement of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as at December 31, 2018 has
been prepared under Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period in accordance with Ind AS.
Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised as below based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the company can access at measurement date;

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities.
2.2 Significant Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are recognized in the period in
which they are revised or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both the current and future periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates which
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities in future periods.
Estimates and assumptions:
Key Sources of estimation uncertainty:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets:

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible
assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets are based on the life
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives
are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice /
evaluation, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, operating conditions of the asset. Refer Note no 2.6 and 2.7 for useful life of each
type of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets.

ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses
market observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not
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available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. Refer to Note no 36(A) for the details of financial instruments
valued at fair value.

iii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. Information about the various estimates and
assumptions made in determining the present value of defined benefit obligations are
disclosed in Note no 29B.

iv) Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of current taxes,
deferred taxes and tax credits that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies (Refer
Note no 17).

v) Product warranties
Significant management judgments are involved in determining the estimates and provides
for liability for product warranties in the year in which the products are sold. These
estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency, quantum
of warranty claims and corrective actions against product failures and the estimates are
reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions.Assumptions used to
calculate the provision for warranties are based on current sales level and current
information available about returns. The timing of outflows will vary based on the actual
warranty claims (Refer Note no 38).

vi) Impairment of financial assets
The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period (Refer note 9).

2.3 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, less any provision for
obsolescence.
i) Cost of raw materials, packing materials, stores, spares and tools and traded goods are

computed on a moving weighted average cost basis.
ii) Cost of work-in-progress/ finished goods are determined on moving weighted average

cost basiscomprising material, labour and related factory overheads.
iii) Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs

expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.
2.4 Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and balances in current accounts with banks. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.5 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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Sale of Goods and Services
Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to
customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax, value added tax and goods and
service tax.
Service income is recognised on completion of rendering of services and also on proportionate
basis in case of installation part. The same is recorded net of service tax and goods and
service tax.
Other Revenue
Commission income is recognised and accounted on accrual basis.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.
Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent are
met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability.
Lease rental income from operating leases are recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established.

2.6 Property, Plant & Equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in thebalance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less recognised impairment loss, if any. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
Plant and equipment, furniture & fixtures, office equipments and computers are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation has been provided (other than freehold land and properties under construction)
on a straight-line method (pro-rata from the date of additions) over the useful life as prescribed
in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 or as per techinical evaluation. The estimated
useful life of the assets are as mentioned below:
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
appropriation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
Description of the asset Useful Life (Years)
Building 5 to 60
Plant and Equipment 7.5 to 15
Computers 3 to 6
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Office Equipments 5
Vehicles 8

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.7 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised
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on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Intangible Assets are amortized on a straight - line basis(pro-rata from the date of additions)
over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives are as under:

Description of the asset Useful Life (Years)

Computer Software 3
Trademark 5
Technical/Commercial Know-how and non-compete fees 5

2.8 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of
profit and loss.
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2.9 Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Plans :
The company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees through Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering
discounting rate relevant to GovernmentSecurities at the Balance Sheet Date.
Defined Benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense
or income are recognised in the statemeent of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
occur. Actuarial gains and losses on re-measurement is reflected immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occure and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recongised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.
Defined Contribution Plans :
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund, which is a Defined Contribution Scheme, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossfor the period in which the contributions of fund
accrue.
Compensated Absences :
Provision for Compensated Absences and its classifications between current and non-current
liabilities are based on independent actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the reporting date.
Short term employee benefits :
They are recognised at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year in which the related services are rendered.

2.10 Research and Development Expenditure
Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Development costs of products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
a product’s technical feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is
capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises expenditure that can be directly attributed or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating, producing and making the asset
ready for its intended use. PPE utilised for research and development are capitalised and
depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for PPE.

2.11 Operating Leases
As a lessee:
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Losson a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.
Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
As a lessor:
The Company has leased certain tangible assets and such leases where the Company has
substantially retained all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Lease income on such operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial
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direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in thestatement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in thefinancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and Deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.13 Warranty

The Company estimates and provides for liability for product warranties in the year in which
the products are sold. These estimates are established using historical information on the
nature, frequency, quantum of warranty claims and corrective actions against product failures
and the estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions.
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties are based on current sales level
and current information available about returns. The timing of outflows will vary based on the
actual warranty claims.
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2.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions: Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (i) when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or (ii) a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent assets: Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial
Statements, if an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition):
• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note below.
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes
of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
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financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.
For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer note below.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “Other income” line item.
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’.
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.
A financial asset is held for trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

The Company has equity investments in two entities which are not held for trading. The
Company has elected the FVTOCI irrevocable option for these investments (refer note 5). Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 36.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent
a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (refer note 2.2
(ii)).
Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or
the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the
FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
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Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend
does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably.
Financial assets at cost
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
through the expected life of that financial instrument.
The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and
thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.
If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit
loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit
quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance
based on 12-month expected credit losses.
When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.
The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance
sheet.
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Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit
or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains
an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or
loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
• For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL,

the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

• Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating
to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

• For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt
instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.
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However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan
at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies
set out below.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

• the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’
line item.
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of
changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the
fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company
that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 36.
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based
on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of
an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
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is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company entity are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
• the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of

Ind AS 109; and
• the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.
The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the
fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
Derivative financial instruments
The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure
to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the
hedged item.
Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within
the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

2.16 Segment reporting
The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and
returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies
of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities
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have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities
of the segment.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are
not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue
/ expenses / assets / liabilities”.

2.17 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividingthe profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at
a later date.

2.18 Recent accounting standards issued but not applicable
Ind As 115 revenue from contracts with customers
Ind AS 115 was notified on 28th March, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services
are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules
could affect the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of the Company. Ind AS
115 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using either one of two
methods: (i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind
AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect
certain practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or
(ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the
date of initial application (1st January, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as
defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified retrospective method).
The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual
arrangements.The ultimate impact on revenue resulting from the application of Ind AS 115
will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not
limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business.
A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will
only be possible once the implementation project has been completed.
Ind As 116 Leases
Ind AS 116 “Leases” is expected to replace Ind AS 17 from its proposed effective date, being
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.
Ind AS 116 will primarily change lease accounting for lessees; lease agreement will give rise
to the recognition of an asset representing the right to use the leased item and a loan obligation
for future lease payables. Lease costs will be recongised in the form of depreciation of the
right to use asset and interest on the lease liability. Lessee accounting under Ind AS 116 will
be similar in many respects to existing Ind AS 17 accounting for finance leases, but will be
substantively different to existing accounting for operating leases where rental charges are
currently recognised on a straight-line basis and no lease asset or related lease creditor is
recognised.
Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is similar to existing Ind AS 17 and is not expected to
have any material impact on the company.
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3) First-time adoption of Ind AS
The Company has adopted Ind AS from January 1, 2018 and the date of transition to Ind AS is
January 1, 2017. These being the first financial statements in compliance with Ind AS, the impact
of transition has been accounted for in opening reserves and comparable periods have been
restated in accordance with Ind AS 101 – “First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”.
The Company has presented a reconciliation of equity under Previous GAAP to its equity under Ind
AS as at December 31, 2017 and as at January 1, 2017 and of total comprehensive income for the
year ended December 31, 2017 as required by Ind AS 101.
Following are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in
the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS:
1. Deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values
under previous GAAP as ‘deemed cost’ for all the items of property, plant & equipment and
intangible assets.

2. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial
liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after transition date.

3. Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The Company has assessed classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis
of facts and circumstances that exist as on transition date.

4. Impairment of financial assets:
The Company has applied impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively: however,
as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition
date.

5. Assessment of embedded derivatives:
The Company has assessed whether an embedded derivative as required to be separated
from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative on the basis of the conditions that
existed at the late of the date it first became a party to the contract and the date when there
has been a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
otherwise would not be required under the contract.

6. Valuation of investment in equity shares at FVTOCI:
The Company has designated investment in equity shares of investees to be valued at fair
value through other comprehensive income on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed
at the transaction date.

7. Deemed cost of investments:
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its investment in subsidiary
recognised as of 1st January, 2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as its deemed cost at transition date.
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Statement of Reconciliation of total equity as at December 31, 2017 and January 1, 2017
between Ind AS and previous GAAP.
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity for prior periods. The following tables represent
the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS standalone Financial Statement.

Notes
1 Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI (net of tax)

Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in equity shares as
investment measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value
of investments. Under Ind AS 109, the Company’s investments are fair valued as FVTOCI
investments. The fair value impact at the date of transition to Ind AS and in comparative
previous year are adjusted in carrying value of investments under Indian GAAP with impact in
the Opening Balance of Retained Earnings at the date of transition to Ind AS, and in the
FVTOCI reserve in comparative previous year, net of related deferred taxes.

2 Expected Credit Loss
Under Indian GAAP, the provision for doubtful debts was made when the receivable turned
doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis. Under Ind AS, the provision is made
against trade receivables based on “expected credit loss” model in accordance with Ind AS
109.

3 Dividend
Under Indian GAAP, dividends on equity shares (including dividend distribution tax thereon)
recommended by the board of directors after the end of reporting period but before the
financial statements were approved for issue were recoginsed in the financial statements as
a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends (including dividend distribution tax thereon) are
recognised when approved by the members in general meeting.

4 Deferred Tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS
12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian
GAAP. Inaddition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According
to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained
earnings or a separate component of equity.
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Sr. 
No. Particulars Note 

As at December 
31, 2017 

( ) 

As at January 
1, 2017 

( ) 

  
Balance of Equity as per Audited Financial 
Statements   

1,11,07,09,821  85,47,24,350 

1 Non-current Financial Assets       
  Investment in Equity Shares 1 (7,92,969)  4,15,458 

2 Current Financial Assets       
  Trade Receivables 2 (4,09,654)  (3,60,268) 
3 Short Term Provision       

  Proposed Dividend 
3 

 -  6,47,28,496 
  Tax on Proposed Dividend  -  1,31,78,722 

4 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 4 4,16,202 (19,100) 
  Total equity    1,10,99,23,400  93,26,67,658 
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income between Ind AS and previous GAAP
( )

Notes
1 Expected Credit Loss

Under Indian GAAP, the provision for doubtful debts was made when the receivable turned
doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis. Under Ind AS, the provision is made
against trade receivables based on “expected credit loss” model as per Ind AS 109.

2 Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability
Under Indian GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability / asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive
income under Ind AS instead of profit or loss.

3 Deferred Tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS
12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian
GAAP. Inaddition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According
to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained
earnings or a separate component of equity.

4 Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI
Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in equity shares as
investment measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value
of investments. Under Ind AS, the Company’s investments are fair valued as FVTOCI
investments. The fair value impact at the date of transition to Ind AS and in comparative
previous year are adjusted in carrying value of investments under Indian GAAP with impact in
the FVTOCI reserve.

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Note For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2017 

A Net profit as per audited financial statements    25,59,85,471 
B IND AS IMPACT     
  Provision for expected credit loss 1 (49,386) 
  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 2 15,16,485 
  Deferred tax (charge) on Ind AS adjustments 3 (5,07,735) 
C Profit after tax (A + B )   25,69,44,835 
D Other Comprehensive Income     
  Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI 4 (12,08,427) 
  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 2 (15,16,485) 
  Tax Impact on Other Comprehensive Income 3  9,43,037 
E Total comprehensive income (C+D)   25,51,62,960 
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As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
5) Investments

Quoted Investments (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Shares valued at
FVTOCI (Refer note 36)
Jaysynth Dyestuff (India) Ltd. 1,10,78,848 1,28,96,470 1,09,98,812
(173,107 Shares (December 31, 2017 :
173,107 and January 1, 2017 : 134,872
of Re. 1/- each fully paid-up)
Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Shares valued at Cost
Gujarat Vepari Mahamandal Sahakari
Audhyogik Vasahat Ltd. 3,000 3,000 3,000
(30 Shares (December 31, 2017 : 30 and
January 1, 2017 : 30) of Rs. 100/- each
fully paid-up )
Investment in Subsidiary valued at Cost
(Refer note 36 & 42)
1,000 Shares (December 31, 2017 : 1000
and January 1, 2017 : 1000) of Rs. 100/-
each fully paid-up of Atul Sugar Screens
Private Limited - 1,00,000 1,00,000

1,10,81,848 1,29,99,470 1,11,01,812

Details of quoted/unquoted investments:
(a) Aggregate amount of quoted

investments and market value thereof;
Book Value 1,36,89,438 1,36,89,438 1,05,83,354
Market Value 1,10,78,848 1,28,96,470 1,09,98,812

(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments;
Book Value 3,000 1,03,000 1,03,000

6) Other Non-current Financial Assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Long term deposits with maturity more
than 12 months - 2,97,00,000 15,68,00,000
Sundry Deposits 81,60,950 83,22,869 87,03,680
Margin Money Deposit 40,00,000 1,50,93,171 48,28,011

1,21,60,950 5,31,16,040 17,03,31,691

Note : The fair value of Other Non-current Financial Assests is not materially different from the
carrying value presented.

7) Other Non-current assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Balances with Government Authorities 8,51,729 8,28,143 71,05,957
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 86,81,965 91,62,532 98,73,955

95,33,694 99,90,675 1,69,79,912

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8) Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Materials 10,68,14,652 13,32,38,777 15,06,85,250
[Includes Goods-in-transit Rs. 42,683,523
(December 31, 2017 Rs. 2,834,294 and
January 1 2017 Rs. 9,422,787)]
Packing Material, Stores, Spares and Tools 1,25,12,327 1,71,23,032 1,02,09,454
Work-in-Process 1,91,76,759 5,47,29,078 5,29,15,127
Finished Goods 9,02,51,678 7,75,11,303 13,00,81,488
Traded Goods 1,68,63,756 3,41,83,196 2,42,25,887

24,56,19,172 31,67,85,386 36,81,17,206

9) Trade Receivables
(Unsecured)
Considered Good
From Related Parties (Refer Note 35B) 1,63,60,006 6,94,03,580 5,20,69,574
From Others 25,79,90,202 27,36,31,927 20,42,56,847
Considered Doubtful 53,45,990 13,68,783 59,97,168

27,96,96,198 34,44,04,290 26,23,23,589

Less: Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss Allowance) 53,45,990 13,68,783 59,97,168

27,43,50,208 34,30,35,507 25,63,26,421

Note : The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on ageing of the days the receivables are over/past due and the rates as
given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Ageing Expected credit loss (%)
Within the credit period 0%
1 - 30 days past due 0%
31 - 120 days past due 2%
121 - 365 days past due 5%
More than 365 days past due 50%

Provision for Expected Credit Loss Allowance:
  Particulars For the year For the year As at

ended December ended December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

  Opening Balance 13,68,783 59,97,168 6,31,574
  Additions during the Year 88,25,405 29,11,260 1,03,07,010
  Reversals during the Year 48,48,198 75,39,645 49,41,416
  Closing Balance 53,45,990 13,68,783 59,97,168

Note : The fair value of Trade Receivables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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10) Cash and Cash Equivalents :

Cash on hand 2,93,259 1,53,040 2,78,950

Cheques on hand 75,13,781 1,15,45,390 -

Bank Balances :

In Current accounts 7,31,19,515 7,30,32,380 5,60,02,113

Deposits with original maturity less
than 3 months - 4,50,00,000 2,00,00,000

8,09,26,555 12,97,30,810 7,62,81,063

11) Bank Balances (Other than Cash and
Cash Equivalents)

Deposits with maturity less than
12 months from reporting date 80,87,42,463 21,13,00,000 15,45,00,000

Unpaid Dividend Accounts 73,63,883 65,70,920 54,01,730

81,61,06,346 21,78,70,920 15,99,01,730

Notes :

(1) The fair value of Bank Balances (Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) is not materially
different from the carrying value presented.

(2) Deposits amounting to Rs. 7,291,211 (December 31, 2017 Rs. Nil and January 1, 2017 Rs. Nil)
is marked as lien against the outstanding bank guarantee.

12) Other Current Financial Assets

Interest Accrued but not Due

On Deposits 49,88,753 59,38,733 1,23,85,342

49,88,753 59,38,733 1,23,85,342

Note : The fair value of Other Current Financial Assests is not materially different from the carrying
value presented.

13) Other Current Assets

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Advances for Goods and Services 69,67,439 71,16,464 1,01,59,390

Prepaid Expenses 24,82,645 28,58,391 41,34,638

Export Incentive Receivables 51,58,673 74,80,815 67,04,540

1,46,08,757 1,74,55,670 2,09,98,568

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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14) Equity Share Capital
Authorised:
2,900,000 (December 31, 2017 :
2,900,000 and January 1, 2017 :
2,900,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,90,00,000 2,90,00,000 2,90,00,000
10,000 (December 31, 2017 : 10,000
and January 1, 2017 : 10,000) Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000

3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
2,088,016 (December 31, 2017 :
2,088,016 and January 1, 2017 :
2,088,016) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid-up 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars No. of December December January
Shares 31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,88,016 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 20,88,016 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per
share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

c) Shares in the company held by its Holding Company and subsidiaries of Holding Company
in aggregate
1,483,777 (December 31, 2017 :
1,483,777 and January 1 2017 :
1,483,777)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
up are held by SPGPrints B.V., The
Netherlands, the Holding Company. 1,48,37,770 1,48,37,770 1,48,37,770

d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate
shares in the Company
Number of shares 14,83,777 14,83,777 14,83,777
SPGPrints B.V. - The Netherlands,
the Holding Company 71.06% 71.06% 71.06%

e) There are no shares alloted either as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares or under any
contract without payment being received in cash during five years immediately preceding
December 31, 2018.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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15) Other Equity
Capital Reserve 3,46,115 3,46,115 3,46,115
Capital Redemption Reserve
(refer note (i) below) 3,50,000 3,50,000 3,50,000
Securities Premium (refer note (ii) below) 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502
General Reserve (refer note (iii) below) 18,19,54,416 18,19,54,416 18,19,54,416
Retained Earnings (refer note (iv) below) 1,13,10,10,286  82,75,64,422  64,95,18,465
Other Comprehensive Income (21,22,064)  (7,90,215)  -

 1,39,11,57,255  1,08,90,43,240  91,17,87,498

As at As at
December December
31, 2018 31, 2017

( ) ( )
15.1)Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,46,115 3,46,115
15.2)Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note (i) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,50,000 3,50,000
15.3)Securities Premium (refer note (ii) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502
15.4)General Reserve (refer note (iii) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 18,19,54,416 18,19,54,416
15.5)Retained Earnings (refer note (iv) below)

Balance at the beginning of the year 82,75,64,422 64,95,18,465
Profit for the year 39,56,39,917 25,69,44,835
Declared Dividend (7,51,68,576) (6,47,28,496)
Tax on Declared Dividend (1,54,54,659) (1,31,78,722)
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit
plans (net of tax) (15,70,818) (9,91,660)

At the end of the year 1,13,10,10,286 82,75,64,422

15.6)Other Comprehensive Income
At the beginning of the year (7,90,215) -
Change in Fair Value of investments measured at
FVTOCI (net of tax) (13,31,849) (7,90,215)
At the end of the year  (21,22,064)  (7,90,215)

Notes :
(i) Capital Redemeption Reserve created on redemption of Redeemable Preference shares.
(ii) Securities Premium Reserve represents the premium received on issue of shares over and above the

face value of equity shares. The reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

(iv) Retained Earnings can be distributed by the Company as dividend to its equity shareholders and the
same is determined based on the separate financial statements of the Company and also considering
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable
in entirety.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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16) Long-term Provisions
Provision for Compensated absences
(Refer Note 29C) 1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466

1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466

17) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax liability
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2,06,92,525 2,40,16,045 2,17,64,333

2,06,92,525 2,40,16,045 2,17,64,333
Deferred tax assets
(a) Provision for Doubtful Receivables

(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 15,56,752 4,73,708 20,75,500

(b) Provision for contingency 29,02,934 31,69,291 30,24,469
(c) Remeasurement gains / (losses) on

defined benefit plans 5,97,599 6,03,641 1,84,136
(d) Change in Fair Value of investments

measured at FVTOCI 7,60,205 2,74,432 (1,43,782)
(e) Other timing differences allowable

on payment basis 1,03,04,611 1,07,38,915 77,19,211
1,61,22,101 1,52,59,987 1,28,59,534
45,70,424 87,56,058 89,04,799

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
( )

Particulars For the year For the year
ended December December 31,

31, 2018 31, 2017
Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 55,15,45,081 39,39,65,404
Domestic Tax Rate (in %) 29.120 34.608
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 16,06,09,928 13,63,43,547
Tax Effect of:
Incremental deduction for Research & Development
Expenditure (3,61,504) (7,35,803)
Non-deductible expenses 58,131 33,67,410
Income tax related to prior years - (8,55,293)
Income not chargable to tax (26,56,144) (10,99,292)
Effect of change in tax rate 45,25,977 -
Income chargable to lower rate of tax (62,71,224) -
Income tax Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 15,59,05,164 13,70,20,569

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2018
( )

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/ Assets: balance in profit in other balance at

as at and loss comprehe- December
January nsive 31, 2018
1, 2018 income

Property, plant and equipment 2,40,16,045 (33,23,520) - 2,06,92,525
2,40,16,045 (33,23,520) - 2,06,92,525

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/ Assets: balance in profit in other balance at

as at and loss comprehe- December
January nsive 31, 2018
1, 2018 income

Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 4,73,708 10,83,044 - 15,56,752
Provision for contingency 31,69,291 (2,66,357) - 29,02,934
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
on defined benefit plans 6,03,641 (6,51,389) 6,45,347 5,97,599
Change in Fair Value of investm-
ents measured at FVTOCI 2,74,432 - 4,85,773 7,60,205
Other timing differences allowable
on payment basis 1,07,38,915 (4,34,303) - 1,03,04,611

1,52,59,987 (2,69,005) 11,31,120 1,61,22,101

Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2017
( )

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/ Assets: balance in profit in other balance at

as at and loss comprehe- December
January nsive 31, 2017
1, 2017 income

Property, plant and equipment 2,17,64,333 22,51,712 - 2,40,16,045
2,17,64,333 22,51,712 - 2,40,16,045

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/ Assets: balance in profit in other balance at

as at and loss comprehe- December
January nsive 31, 2017
1, 2017 income

Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 20,75,500 (16,01,792) - 4,73,708
Provision for contingency 30,24,469 1,44,822 - 31,69,291
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
on defined benefit plans 1,84,136 (1,05,320) 5,24,825 6,03,641
Change in Fair Value of investm-
ents measured at FVTOCI (1,43,782) - 4,18,212 2,74,432
Other timing differences allowable
on payment basis 77,19,211 30,19,705 - 1,07,38,915

1,28,59,534 14,57,415 9,43,037 1,52,59,987
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18) Other Non-current Liabilities
Security Deposits 31,74,091 31,26,380 26,58,597
Other Liabilties 95,24,091 91,57,684 87,39,221
[Including Provision for Contingencies and
Net off Duty paid under protest
Rs. 4,029,470 (December 31, 2017
Rs. 4,029,470, January 1, 2017
Rs. 4,029,470)]

1,26,98,182 1,22,84,064 1,13,97,818

19) Trade Payables
a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(Refer Note below) 4,82,259 17,60,424 26,85,492
b) Other Trade Payables 23,56,97,473 27,01,63,107 25,07,98,001

23,61,79,732 27,19,23,531 25,34,83,493

The information with respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small Year ended Year ended As at
and Medium Enterprises December December January

31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017
( ) ( ) ( )

a) Principal Amount due to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at the year end. 4,82,259 17,60,424 26,85,492

b) Interest due to suppliers registered
under MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as at the year end. 9,98,898 9,94,352 9,94,042

c) Principal Amount paid to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year. - - 1,91,515

d) Interest paid, other than under
section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year. - - -

e) Interest paid, under section 16 of
MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year. - - -

f) Interest due and payable towards
suppliers registered under MSMED Act,
for payments already made. - 5,55,266 5,31,501

g) Further interest remaining due and
payable for earlier years. 9,94,352 9,94,352 9,93,419

Note : The fair value of Trade Payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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20) Other Current Financial Liabilities

Unpaid Dividend 73,63,883 65,70,920 54,01,730
Others 40,65,520 14,75,193 10,85,119

Note:

There is no amount due and
outstanding as at December 31, 2018,
December 31, 2017 and January 1,
2017 to be credited to Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

1,14,29,403 80,46,113 64,86,849

21) Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customers 2,59,85,103 2,45,86,896 10,64,81,860

Statutory dues 2,85,46,056 84,69,100 1,25,99,718

Creditors for Capital Goods - - 1,77,83,448

5,45,31,159 3,30,55,996 13,68,65,026

22) Short-term Provisions

Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 29B) 20,52,196 17,44,224 5,32,062

Provision for Compensated absences
(Refer Note 29C) 41,78,494 28,39,672 21,40,246

Provision for Warranty (Refer Note 38) 1,10,56,495 2,40,03,773 2,51,34,167

1,72,87,185 2,85,87,669 2,78,06,475

23) Current tax liabilities (Net)

Current tax liabilities (Net off Advance
tax and TDS of Rs. 94,855,917,
December 31, 2017 Rs. 96,440,682) 33,52,385 3,75,464 -

33,52,385 3,75,464 -

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
24) Revenue from operations

Sale of Goods and Services (Refer Below Note 1) 1,79,16,74,471 2,07,55,03,633
Other Operating Income :
Commission Income 1,16,77,890 1,41,81,271
Sale of Manufacturing Scrap 12,40,31,179 8,11,56,460
Export Incentives 27,75,519 48,47,052

1,93,01,59,059 2,17,56,88,416

Note 1: The Government of India has implemented Goods and Service Tax (“GST”) from 1st July,
2017 replacing Excise Duty, Service Tax and various other indirect taxes. Revenue for the period
up to 30th June, 2017 are inclusive of excise duty of Rs. 77,486,317; however, revenue for the
period 1st July, 2017 to 31st December, 2017 and for the year ended 31st December, 2018 a r e
shown net of GST.
Details of Revenue from operations
a) Sales of Goods Manufactured:

Perforated Rotary Screens and Textile Machines 1,24,73,97,383 1,43,78,37,692
Sugar sieves and segments 23,27,13,764 18,73,61,214
Other Manufactured Goods Sold 21,21,90,102 18,51,86,478
Excise Duty on Goods Manufactured - 7,74,86,317

1,69,23,01,249 1,88,78,71,701

b) Sales of Traded Goods :
Perforated Rotary Screens 2,74,23,380 12,98,37,842
Other Traded Goods Sold 4,52,44,146 4,54,47,515

7,26,67,526 17,52,85,357
c) Sale of Services 2,67,05,696 1,23,46,575

2,67,05,696 1,23,46,575

d) Other Operating Income :
Commission Income 1,16,77,890 1,41,81,271
Sale of Manufacturing Scrap 12,40,31,179 8,11,56,460
Export Incentives 27,75,519 48,47,052

13,84,84,588 10,01,84,783
1,93,01,59,059 2,17,56,88,416

25) Other income
Interest:
Interest on Deposits 3,39,02,897 1,89,29,517
Interest Others 95,228 86,748

3,39,98,125 1,90,16,265
Liabilities no longer required written back 5,58,593 -
Provision for Doubtful Receivables written back (Net) - 46,28,385
Bad Debts written off - (2,28,491)

- 43,99,894
Provision for Warranty (Net) (Refer Note 38) 72,89,654 11,30,394
Lease rentals 86,31,330 1,16,05,260
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) - 16,763
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 15,26,713 -
Miscellaneous Income 92,62,582 22,74,798

6,12,66,997 3,84,43,374

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



45TH ANNUAL REPORT 2018

90

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

26) Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials and Components Consumed 87,05,97,894 95,78,28,366
Packing Materials Consumed 1,87,86,697 1,88,47,293

88,93,84,591 97,66,75,659

27) Purchase of stock-in-trade
Perforated Rotary Screens 4,31,19,412 11,43,27,619
Others 50,30,446 4,14,42,145

4,81,49,858 15,57,69,764

28) Changes in inventories of finished Goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Opening Stock
- Work-in-process 5,47,29,079 5,29,15,127
- Finished Goods 7,75,11,303 13,00,81,488
- Traded Goods 3,41,83,194 2,42,25,887

16,64,23,576 20,72,22,502
Closing Stock
- Work-in-process 1,91,76,759 5,47,29,079
- Finished Goods 9,02,51,678 7,75,11,303
- Traded Goods 1,68,63,756 3,41,83,194

12,62,92,193 16,64,23,576

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock 4,01,31,383 4,07,98,926
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty on Finished Goods - (1,40,89,196)

4,01,31,383 2,67,09,730

29) A. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 18,34,13,989 17,24,67,227
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 59,64,486 49,02,848
Gratuity (Refer Note 29B) 19,75,346 14,71,736
Welfare Expenses 1,67,45,023 1,61,70,317

20,80,98,844 19,50,12,128

B. Employee Benefits :
(a) Defined Contribution Plan :

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund aggregating Rs. 5,213,002 (Previous Year
Rs. 4,287,032) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss under the head
Employee Benefits Expense.
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(b) Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity
The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible
employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.
The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 :

( )
Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
( ) ( )

i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing
Balances of defined benefit obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the beginning of the year 1,58,75,440 1,35,56,733
Current Service Cost 18,41,564 14,34,385
Past service Cost - -
Interest Cost 12,17,646 9,51,683
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Benefit paid (18,83,539) (17,76,059)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)
/ loss arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions 8,52,450 5,29,529
Experience variance (i.e. Actual
experience vs assumptions) 14,10,018 11,79,169
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the end of the year 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
ii. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing

Balances of the Fair value of
Plan assets
Fair Value of Plan assets at the
beginning of the year 1,41,31,216 1,30,24,671
Interest Income 10,83,864 9,14,332
Expected return on plan assets 46,303 1,92,213
Employer’s Contribution 20,00,000 -
Employee’s Contributions - -
Benefit paid - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets - -
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end
of the year 1,72,61,383 1,41,31,216
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Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
iii. Reconcil iat ion of the Present value

of defined benefit  obligat ion and
Fair value of plan assets
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the end of the year 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440 1,35,56,733
Fair Value of Plan assets at the
end of the year 1,72,61,383 1,41,31,216 1,30,24,671
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized
in Balance Sheet as at the end
of the year (20,52,196) (17,44,224) (5,32,062)

Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
iv. Composition of Plan Assets

Percentage of each Category of Plan
Assets to total Fair Value of
Plan Assets :
Cash Accumulation Scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India 93% 91% 93%
Bank Balances 7% 9% 7%

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
v. Gratuity Cost for the Year

Current service cost 18,41,564 14,34,385
Interest Cost 1,33,782 37,351
Past service Cost - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Acturial gain/loss - -
Expenses recognised in the income
statement 19,75,346 14,71,736

vi. Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain) / loss 22,62,468 17,08,698
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions - -
Experience variance (i.e. Actual
experience vs assumptions) - -
Others - -
Return on plan assets, excluding
amount recognised in interest income (46,303) (1,92,213)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)
/loss arising because of change in
effect of asset ceiling - -
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive
income 22,16,165 15,16,485
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Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
vii. Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.74% 7.67% 7.02%
Annual Increase in Salary Cost 7.50% 7.00% 6.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover For service 4 For service 4 For service 4

years and years and years and
below 5.00% below 5.00% below 5.00%

p.a. For p.a. For p.a. For
service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years

and above and above and above
1.00% p.a. 1.00% p.a. 1.00% p.a.

Mortality Rates as given under Indian Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured
Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
Ultimate Retirement Age 60 Years. (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)

viii. Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation
are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.The sensitivity analysis below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440

( )
Particulars For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
December December December December
31, 2018 31, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2017
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 22,93,376 (18,59,464) 16,97,167 (13,83,036)
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity
Salary Growth Rate
(- / + 0.5%) (9,83,799) 10,82,630 (7,33,595) 8,05,543
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity)
Attrition Rate (- / + 1%) (13,090) 4,425 (81,298) 62,485
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity)
ix. Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is
guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy
rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to
sufficiency of funds under the policy).The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk.
However, being a cash accumulation plan,the duration of assets is shorter compared
to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest
rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase
in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).
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x. Effect of Plan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity
to the employees.Every year, the insurance Company carries out a funding
valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any
deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

b) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting.

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
Expected cash flows over the
next (valued on undiscounted
basis):
1st Following Year 31,85,131 15,71,546
2nd Following year 26,61,199 28,78,251
3rd Following Year 6,13,042 22,74,545
4th Following Year 11,49,767 5,50,259
5th Following Year 13,83,204 9,34,726
sum of years 6 to 10 37,69,667 23,39,881

xi. The Company has defined benefit plans for Gratuity to eligible employees, the
contributions for which are made to Life Insurance Corporation of India who invests
the funds as per Insurance Regulatory Development Authority guidelines.
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India’s
securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
The defined benefit plans expose the Company to acturial risks such as Interest rate
risk, Salary risk, Investment risk, Asset liability matching risk, longevity risk.
Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will
increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increase the mark to market value of the assets depending
on the duration of asset.
Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.
Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively
balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.
Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash
flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk.
Longevity risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and
payable till retirement age only, plan do not have any longevity risk.
c) Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

The actuarial liability for compensated absences as at the year ended December
31, 2018 is Rs. 18,387,453 (December 31, 2017 Rs. 13,650,740 ; January 1, 2017
Rs. 10,823,712)
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For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

30) Finance costs

Other Borrowing Cost 22,68,811 13,43,769

22,68,811 13,43,769

31) Other expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spares 1,49,71,360 1,60,00,914

Excise Duty on Sale of Goods - 7,74,86,317

Rent 17,97,228 20,20,160

Rates and Taxes 6,51,186 22,93,551

Power and Fuel 14,08,37,834 11,08,74,766

Repairs to Buildings 44,66,284 61,75,001

Repairs to Plant and Equipment 78,83,327 84,45,550

Repairs to Others 43,10,043 68,96,180

Insurance 28,70,559 23,23,265

Auditors’ Remuneration for :

- Statutory Audit Fees 26,80,000 20,00,000

- Tax Audit Fees 4,72,006 4,53,550

- Others 6,55,350 7,00,000

38,07,356 31,53,550

Travelling and Conveyance 1,82,04,748 2,17,25,935

Royalty 3,41,25,891 3,68,27,654

Provision for Doubtful Receivables (Net) 39,77,207 -

Group Management Fees 3,75,54,804 3,29,34,470

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions
and Translations - 31,14,761

Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and
Equipment (Net) 87,831 -

Contribution towards Corporate Social
Responsibility activities (Refer Note 41) 70,00,000 55,00,000

Other General, Administrative and Selling
Expenses 5,78,59,182 6,90,76,054

34,04,04,840 40,48,48,128
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32) a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2018 1, 2017

Reinstatement with backwages claimed by
worker. Also, include claim filed by employees
for claiming Voluntary Retirement Scheme
(VRS) benefit. 40,00,000 47,68,164 4,08,535
Disallowance of Voluntary Retirement Scheme
(VRS) expediture by tax authorities. 19,11,581 3,80,731 49,97,065
Capital gain on sale of assets considered as
Short Term Gain by tax authorities. - 43,47,988 14,44,676
Disallowance of interest on income tax by
tax authorities. - 1,08,391 -
Classification of Service Tax on business
auxiliary services challanged by tax authorities. 8,89,554 4,44,777 4,44,777
Non reversal of Cenvat on input capital
goods sold challanged by tax authorities. - 1,04,681 26,75,620
Service Tax credit taken on Sales Commission
paid disallowed by tax authorities. 10,93,900 10,93,900 10,93,900
Total 78,95,035 1,12,48,632 1,10,64,573

Management is of the view that no liability shall arise on the Company for all the above cases.
b) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (Net of Capital Advances) as at December 31, 2018 is Rs. 1,331,417 (December 31, 2017
Rs. Nil, January 1, 2017 Rs. 33,827,217).

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
33) Dividend remitted in foreign currency

Amount remitted (Rupees) 5,34,15,972 4,59,97,087
Dividend related to financial year December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Number of non-resident shareholders 1 1
Number of shares 14,83,777 14,83,777

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
34) Earnings per share

Profit Attributable to equity shareholders 39,56,39,917 25,69,44,835
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 20,88,016 20,88,016
Nominal value of an equity share 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) 189.48 123.06
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35) Related party disclosure:
Related party disclosure as required by AS-18,”Related Party Disclosure”, is given below:
I. Parties where control exists:

Related Party Relationship
SPGPrints B.V. Holding Company
SPGPrints Group B.V. Holding Company of SPGPrints B.V.
Print II B.V. Holding Company of SPGPrints Group B.V.
Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary (upto March 21, 2018).

Ceased to be Wholly owned Subsidiary w.e.f. March
22, 2018.

II. Fellow Subsidiaries where transactions have taken place:
SPGPrints Printing Systems Wuxi Co Ltd.
SPG Prints Mexico S.A. De C.V
SPGPrints Austria GMBH
Shandong Tongda Printing Systems Co. Ltd
SPGPrints Baski Sistemleri Tic. Ltd. Sti
Veco B.V. (upto April 18, 2018)
SPGPrints Brasil Ltda.
Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited (From March 22, 2018 and upto April 18, 2018)

III. Key Management Personnel:
  Mr. Shailesh Wani Managing Director

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36) Financial Instrument and Fair Value Measurement
(A) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at fair value

( )
Particulars Amount as at December 31, 2018

Fair Value Fair Value Amortised
through Profit through Other Cost Total

& Loss Comprehensive
Income

Financial assets
(i) Investments - 1,10,78,848 3,000 1,10,81,848
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 1,21,60,950 1,21,60,950
(iii) Trade receivables - - 27,43,50,208 27,43,50,208
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 8,09,26,555 8,09,26,555
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 81,61,06,346 81,61,06,346
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 49,88,753 49,88,753
Total - 1,10,78,848 1,18,85,35,812 1,19,96,14,660

Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 23,61,79,732 23,61,79,732
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 1,14,29,403 1,14,29,403
Total - - 24,76,09,135 24,76,09,135

Particulars Amount as at December 31, 2017
Fair Value Fair Value Amortised

through Profit through Other Cost Total
& Loss Comprehensive

Income
Financial assets
(i) Investments - 1,28,96,470 1,03,000 1,29,99,470
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 5,31,16,040 5,31,16,040
(iii) Trade receivables - - 34,30,35,507 34,30,35,507
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 12,97,30,810 12,97,30,810
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 21,78,70,920 21,78,70,920
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 59,38,733 59,38,733
Total - 1,28,96,470 74,97,95,010 76,26,91,480
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 27,19,23,531 27,19,23,531
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 80,46,113 80,46,113
Total - - 27,99,69,644 27,99,69,644
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Particulars Amount as at January 1, 2017
Fair Value Fair Value Amortised

through Profit through Other Cost Total
& Loss Comprehensive

Income
Financial assets
(i) Investments - 1,09,98,812 1,03,000 1,11,01,812
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 17,03,31,691 17,03,31,691
(iii) Trade receivables - - 25,63,26,421 25,63,26,421
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 7,62,81,063 7,62,81,063
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 15,99,01,730 15,99,01,730
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 1,23,85,342 1,23,85,342
Total - 1,09,98,812 67,53,29,247 68,63,28,059
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 25,34,83,493 25,34,83,493
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 64,86,849 64,86,849
Total - - 25,99,70,342 25,99,70,342

Fair Value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 – Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
Fair Value Hierarchy as at year end

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment in equity
instruments as at
December 31, 2018 1,10,78,848 - - 1,10,78,848
Investment in equity
instruments as at
December 31, 2017 1,28,96,470 - - 1,28,96,470
Investment in equity
instruments as at
January 1, 2017 1,09,98,812 - - 1,09,98,812

(B) Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company strives
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that they can maximise returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The Company maintains a debt free status and
regularly declares dividend to its shareholders.

(C) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The Company’s
financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that it derives
directly from its operations.
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The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is
supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This provides assurance to the Company’s senior
management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each risk, which are summarised as below:
(1) Market Risk : Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity risk.
1.1 Interest Rate risk : Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Company’s investment in bank deposits. The interest rates for the tenure of the
fixed deposits are fixed. However, with the continuous decrease in the returns on fixed
deposits, the income earned on such deposits may change in future based on the interest
rates.
The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank deposits. ( )
Particulars Year ended Year ended As at

December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

Bank deposits (Including Margin Money
Deposit) 81,27,42,463 30,10,93,171 33,61,28,011
% change in interest rates 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
Impact on Profit for the year 40,63,712 15,05,466 16,80,640

1.2 Foreign Currency Risk : Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s foreign currency risk arises out of various imports of raw materials and exports
of its finished goods.
The Company has a forex policy in place where the objective is to mitigate foreign exchange
risk by deploying the appropriate hedging strategies through use of foreign currency
forward contracts. The Company follows netting principle for managing the foreign
exchange exposure.
The Carrying Amounts of the Company’s Foreign Currency Denominated Monetary Assets
and Liabilities based on Gross Exposure at the end of the Reporting Period is as under.
There are no open derivate contracts at the end of the year.
Net Open Exposures Outstanding as at the Balance Sheet Date
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Particulars 

  
As at December

31, 2018 
As at December 

31, 2017 
As at January 

1, 2017 
Foreign 

Currency 
Denomi-
nation 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Trade 
Receivables 

EURO  2,05,160 1,63,67,655  1,55,883 1,19,07,933 83,324  59,67,637 
USD 1,838 1,28,274  2,27,579 1,45,49,150 4,858 3,30,101 

Short-term 
Loans and 
Advances 

EURO  19,046  15,19,439 124  9,472 7,310 5,23,577 
USD - - - - 11,544 7,84,415 
GBP  495 43,788 - - - - 

Trade Payables 
EURO 4,82,262 3,84,74,824  4,91,353 3,75,34,433 6,07,072  4,34,78,480 
USD  26,563  18,53,824  42,996 27,48,734 1,02,354  69,54,967 

Other Current 
Liabilities 

USD  150 10,469 1,155 73,844 8,687 5,90,275 
EURO - - 952 72,723 70,000  50,13,400 
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1.3 Commodity Risk : The Company is is affected by price volatility of certain commodities.
Its operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of such
commodities. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to optimise the prices.

(2) Credit Risk : Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a
financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is having
majority of the receivables from private sectors. The Company does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of credit risk to any counterparty did
not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year.

(3) Liquidity Risk : The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future
cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between working capital of the
company. The Company generates sufficient cashflow from operations to maintain a healthy
working capital balance.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted payments. ( )

Particulars Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Year More than Carrying
5 Year Amount

As at December 31, 2018
Trade Payables 23,61,79,732 - - 23,61,79,732
Other Financial Liabilities 1,14,29,403 - - 1,14,29,403
As at December 31, 2017
Trade Payables 27,19,23,531 - - 27,19,23,531
Other Financial Liabilities 80,46,113 - - 80,46,113
As at January 1, 2017
Trade Payables 25,34,83,493 - - 25,34,83,493
Other Financial Liabilities 64,86,849 - - 64,86,849

37) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are identified as those components of the Company (a) that engage in business
activities to earn revenues and incur expenses; (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the Company’s Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) to make decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment and (c) for which discrete financial information is available.
The Company has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed
by the Company’s CODM.

Name of Segment Comprises
Textile Consumables and Textile Machinery Perforated Rotary Screens,Lacquer & Auxil iary

Chemicals, Rotary Screen Printing Machine,
Engraving Equipment, Components and Spares,
Digital Ink

Graphics Product Anilox Rollers, Rotamesh screens and RotaPlate
Galvanic Galvano consumables

Reportable segments:
An operating segment is classified as reportable segment if reported revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) or absolute amount of result or assets exceeds 10% or more of the combined
total of all the operating segments.
Segment revenue and results:
The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown
as unallocable expenditure.
Segment assets and liabilities:
Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of
property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, Inventory and other operating assets. Segment
liabilities primarily include trade payable and other liabilities. Common assets and liabilities which
can not be allocated to any of the business segment are shown as unallocable assets / liabilities.
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38) Provision for Warranty
A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the year, based on
past experience of level of repairs and returns. It is expected that this cost will be incurred by end
of next financial year. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on
current sales level and information available about returns.

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
  Opening Balance 2,40,03,773 2,51,34,167
  Additions during the Year 1,13,82,624 1,97,93,240
  Reversals/ utilisations during the year 2,43,29,901 2,09,23,634
  Closing Balance 1,10,56,496 2,40,03,773

39) Research and Development Expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
( ) ( )

 Revenue Expenditure 37,90,174 34,66,906
  Total 37,90,174 34,66,906

40) Leases
Operating Lease : As a Lessor
The Company had given Land and Building on operating lease for a period of 7 years which was
completed on June 30, 2018 and after that the agreement is not renewed.
The Company has entered into cancellable lease agreements for use of certain area of its building
premises for a period of one year. The lease rentals aggregating Rs. 8,631,330 (Previous Year Rs.
11,605,260) have been included under the head “Other Income” Note 25 “Lease Rentals” of
Statements of Profit and Loss.
Operating Lease : As a Lessee
The Company has entered into cancellable lease agreements for premises for a period of one year.
The lease rentals aggregating Rs. 1,797,228 (Previous Year Rs. 2,020,160) have been included
under the head “Other Expenses” Note 31 “Rent” of Statements of Profit and Loss .

41) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

For the year ended
Particulars December December

31, 2018 31, 2017
( ) ( )

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company : 69,53,630 54,71,942
(b) Amount spent during the year :

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 70,00,000 55,00,000

42) The Company has executed Share Purchase Agreement on March 14, 2018 for divestment of 100%
equity investment held by the Company in Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited to Veco B.V., for an
aggregate consideration of Rs. 104,000,000. Consequent to said divestment, Atul Sugar Screens
Private Limited ceased to be subsidiary of the Company w.e.f March 22, 2018. Gain on sale of such
investment has been shown as exceptional item in the financial statement.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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During the year 2018, the Company had sold certain identified assets of galvanic business. Resultant
gain on such sale of assets of Rs. 37,440,975 has been shown as exceptional items in the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. However, the operations of galvanic business
is continued by the Company by entering into the Contract Manufacturing Agreement.

43) Board of Directors have recommended the final dividend of Rs. 55 per equity share having face
value of Rs. 10 each (550%) for the financial year ended December 31, 2018, subject to approval
of the Members. This comprises of normal dividend of Rs. 40 per equity share and a special dividend
of Rs. 15 per equity share on account of gains arising from divestment of equity investment and
sale of assets of galvanic business.

44) The financial statements were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on February 14, 2019.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Stovec Industries Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its subsidiary (the Parent and its subsidiary together referred
to as “the Group”), comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2018, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group, and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Parent’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Parent’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at December 31, 2018, and their
consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matter
We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary, whose Ind AS financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. Nil as at December 31, 2018, total revenues of Rs. 4,33,26,702 and net cash outflows
amounting to Rs. 3,57,71,822 for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. These Ind AS financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
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amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited Ind AS
financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these Ind AS financial statements are not material to the Group.
Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance
the financial statements certified by the Management.
The transition date opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2017 included in these Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, which were audited by the predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended December 31, 2016 dated February 23, 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements, and have been restated to comply with Ind AS. Adjustments made
to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.
Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on December
31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent, none of the directors of the Group
companies is disqualified as on December 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its
directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, which is based
on the auditors’ reports of the Parent. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting, for the
reasons stated therein

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the

consolidated financial position of the Group.
ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts.
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Parent.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval
(Partner)
(Membership No. 106189)

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “Parent” ), as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent, is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Parent’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)
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over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent, has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at December 31, 2018,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval
(Partner)
(Membership No. 106189)

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 28,95,62,590 34,72,34,251 19,42,76,593
(b) Capital work-in-progress 44,47,301 48,33,871 5,99,04,999
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 29,08,670 2,68,29,203 4,22,77,914
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 1,10,81,848 1,28,99,470 1,10,01,812
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets 6 1,21,60,950 5,64,59,282 17,30,57,061
(e) Other non-current assets 7 95,33,694 1,10,07,704 2,02,02,008

Total Non-current Assets 32,96,95,053 45,92,63,781 50,07,20,387
Current assets

(a) Inventories 8 24,56,19,172 33,64,61,262 38,33,60,285
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 27,43,50,208 31,66,71,701 24,88,94,974
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 8,09,26,555 17,31,74,918 10,44,63,034
(iii) Bank balances other

than (ii) above 11 81,61,06,346 24,25,73,240 16,59,01,730
(iv) Other current financial assets 12 49,88,753 65,73,978 1,25,44,309

(c) Other current assets 13 1,46,08,757 2,82,78,780 2,99,80,113
Total Current Assets 1,43,65,99,791 1,10,37,33,879 94,51,44,445
Total Assets 1,76,62,94,844 1,56,29,97,660 1,44,58,64,832
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity share capital 14 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160
(b) Other equity 15 1,39,11,57,255 1,14,86,62,862 95,67,97,936

Total Equity 1,41,20,37,415 1,16,95,43,022 97,76,78,096
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

(a) Long term Provisions 16 1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 45,70,424 65,25,054 81,87,364
(c) Other non-current liabilities 18 1,26,98,182 1,23,25,643 1,14,25,067

Total Non-current Liabilities 3,14,77,565 2,96,61,765 2,82,95,897
Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
enterprises 19 4,82,259 18,48,904 27,28,634
- total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 19 23,56,97,473 28,91,58,838 26,53,29,316
(ii) Other current financial liabilities 20 1,14,29,403 80,46,113 64,86,849

(b) Other current liabilities 21 5,45,31,159 3,41,98,850 13,74,51,173
(c) Short term Provisions 22 1,72,87,185 2,87,60,996 2,78,94,867
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 23 33,52,385 17,79,172 -

Total Current Liabilities 32,27,79,864 36,37,92,873 43,98,90,839
Total Liabilities 35,42,57,429 39,34,54,638 46,81,86,736
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,76,62,94,844 1,56,29,97,660 1,44,58,64,832

Note As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

INCOME
Revenue from operations 24 1,94,80,42,688 2,20,73,77,258
Other Income 25 6,18,71,104 4,06,28,839
Total Income 2,00,99,13,792 2,24,80,06,097
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 26 90,11,02,285 95,10,58,397
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27 4,81,49,858 15,57,69,764
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade 28 3,50,67,202 3,07,36,842
Employee benefits expense 29 20,96,59,081 20,22,26,649
Finance costs 30 23,44,404 16,02,773
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 5,26,27,027 6,05,15,019
Other expenses 31 34,69,61,296 43,06,41,808
Total expenses 1,59,59,11,153 1,83,25,51,252
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 41,40,02,639 41,54,54,845
Exceptional Items (Refer Note 42 & 43)  8,08,96,174  -
Profit before tax  49,48,98,813  41,54,54,845
Tax expenses
- Current tax 15,99,60,509 14,55,25,957
- (Excess) / Short provision of income tax
of earlier years (Net) - (9,05,860)
- Deferred tax (10,81,991) (7,19,271)

15,88,78,518 14,39,00,826
Net Profit for the year  33,60,20,295  27,15,54,019
Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit

plans (22,16,165) (15,16,485)
(ii) Equity instruments through other

comprehensive income (18,17,622) (12,08,427)
Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss 11,31,120 9,43,037

(29,02,667) (17,81,875)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  33,31,17,628  26,97,72,144
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
(Refer Note 34)  160.93  130.05
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 41,40,02,639 41,54,54,845

Adjustments for:

Depreciation / Amortisation 5,26,27,027 6,05,15,019

Finance Cost 23,44,404 16,02,773

Interest Income (3,45,43,701) (2,12,58,175)

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss 1,31,162 8,50,250

Loss / (Gain) on sale of assets 87,831 (16,763)

Provision / (Reversal) for doubtful trade receivables 39,77,207 (43,27,247)

(Reversal) / Provision for other liabilities (22,36,357) 33,62,098

(Reversal) / Provision for Warranty (72,89,654) (11,30,394)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 42,91,00,558 45,50,52,406

Adjustments For Changes In Working Capital:

Decrease / (Increase) In Other assets 1,22,01,370 18,32,131

Decrease / (Increase) In Inventories 7,93,13,003 4,59,55,388

Decrease / (Increase) In Trade receivables 89,43,492 (6,49,77,938)

(Decrease) / Increase In Other liabilities 1,99,70,292 (10,17,72,496)

(Decrease) / Increase In Trade and Other Payables (1,63,88,017) 4,14,11,446

Cash Generated From Operations 53,31,40,698 37,75,00,937

Direct Taxes Refund / (Paid) (Net) (15,68,69,783) (14,30,39,384)

A. Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 37,62,70,915 23,44,61,553

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,04,72,856) (16,10,40,122)

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9,51,22,098 3,20,599

Sale / (Purchase) of Non-Current Investments - (31,06,085)

Net Cash Inflow on Disposal of Subsidiary 9,60,67,714 -

Investments in Bank Deposits (57,23,97,521) 5,03,57,424

Interest Income 3,61,28,926 2,72,28,506

B. Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (37,55,51,639) (8,62,39,678)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividend paid on equity shares (7,51,68,576) (6,47,28,496)

Dividend distribution tax paid on above (1,54,54,659) (1,31,78,722)

Other Finance costs paid (23,44,404) (16,02,773)

C. Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (9,29,67,639) (7,95,09,991)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents (A+B+C) (9,22,48,363) 6,87,11,884
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For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Kartikeya Raval K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019 Date : February 14, 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 17,31,74,918 10,44,63,034

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 8,09,26,555 17,31,74,918

As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprise :

Cash on hand 2,93,259 1,69,638

Cheques on hand 75,13,781 1,15,45,390

Bank Balances :

- In Current Accounts 7,31,19,515 8,99,59,890

- Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 7,15,00,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 10) 8,09,26,555 17,31,74,918

Notes :
1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in

the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

2. Disclosure under para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising
from financing activities, includingboth changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). The Group has provided the information for current period as follows.

Changes in liabilities arising from financial acitivities ( )

  Particulars January Cash Flows December
 1, 2018 31, 2018

  Unpaid Dividend on equity shares - 7,51,68,576 -

  Unpaid Dividend Distribuiton Tax on equity shares - 1,54,54,659 -

  Other Finance Costs accrued but not due - 23,44,404 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1) General Information

Stovec Industries Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 5th June, 1973. The Company’s
factory and registered office is located in Ahmedabad, Gujarat. The Company is listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange Ltd. and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company has three major Business
Segments: Textile Machinery & Consumables,Graphics Consumables and Galvanic. The Company
is a Technology and Market leader in Rotary Screen Printing Industry in India.
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the
holding company Stovec Industries Limited and its subsidiary as mentioned in 2.1 (e) below (together
referred to as “Group”).

2) Statement of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The financials statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended).
Effective January 01, 2018, the Group has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was
carried out in accordance with Ind As 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards,
with January 1, 2017 as the transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian
Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous
GAAP.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period in accordance with Ind AS. Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised as
below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that the company can access at measurement date;
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities.
In addition, the financial statements are presented in INR, except when otherwise indicated.
Principles of Consolidation:
a) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of Stovec

Industries Limited, the parent Company and its wholly owned subsidiary company viz.,
Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited.

b) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Ind AS – 110
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’.

c) The Financial Statements of the parent Company and its subsidiary company have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together values of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
and resulting unrealized profits or losses.

d) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform Accounting Policies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as Standalone Financial Statements of the parent
Company.

e) The Subsidiary company which is included in the Consolidation and the Company’s holdings
therein are as under:
Name of the Company Ownership in % Country of Incorporation
Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited 100 India

The financial statements of the Subsidiary are drawn upto 21st March 2018.
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2.2 Significant Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The application of the Group’s accounting policies as described in Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in the preparation of the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompany disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are
recognized in the period in which they are revised or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods. Actual results may differ
from these estimates which could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions:

Key Sources of estimation uncertainty:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets:

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible
assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets are based on the life
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives
are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice /
evaluation, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, operating conditions of the asset. Refer Note no 2.6 and 2.7 for useful life of each
type of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets.

ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Group uses
market observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. Refer to Note no 36(A) for the details of financial instruments valued at fair
value.

iii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. Information about the various estimates and
assumptions made in determining the present value of defined benefit obligations are
disclosed in Note no 29B.

iv) Taxes

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of current taxes,
deferred taxes and tax credits that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. (Refer
Note no 17).
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v) Product warranties
Significant management judgments are involved in determining the estimates and provides
for liability for product warranties in the year in which the products are sold. These
estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency, quantum
of warranty claims and corrective actions against product failures and the estimates are
reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions.Assumptions used to
calculate the provision for warranties are based on current sales level and current
information available about returns. The timing of outflows will vary based on the actual
warranty claims (Refer Note no 38).

vi) Impairment of financial assets
The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected cash loss. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Refer note 9.

2.3 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, less any provision for
obsolescence.
i) Cost of raw materials, packing materials, stores, spares, tools and traded goods are

computed on a moving weighted average cost basis.
ii) Cost of work-in-progress/ finished goods are determined on moving weighted average

cost basiscomprising material, labour and related factory overheads.
iii) Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs

expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.
2.4 Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and balances in current accounts with banks. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.5 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received on receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Sale of Goods and Services
Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to
customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax, value added tax and goods and
service tax.
Service income is recognised on completion of rendering of services and also on proportionate
basis in case of installation part. The same is recorded net of service tax and goods and
service tax.
Other Revenue
Commission income is recognised and accounted on accrual basis.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.
Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent are
met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability.
Lease rental income from operating leases are recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established.

2.6 Property, Plant & Equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in thebalance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less recognised impairment loss, if any. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Plant and equipment, furniture & fixtures, office equipments and computers are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation has been provided (other than freehold land and properties under construction)
on a straight-line method (pro-rata from the date of additions) over the useful life as prescribed
in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 or as per techinical evaluation. The estimated
useful life of the assets are as mentioned below:

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
appropriation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
Description of the asset Useful Life (Years)

Building 5 to 60

Plant and Equipment 7.5 to 15

Computers 3 to 6

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Office Equipments 5

Vehicles 8

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.7 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Intangible Assets are amortized on a straight - line basis(pro-rata from the date of additions)
over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives are as under:
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Description of the asset Useful Life (Years)
Computer Software 3

Trademark 5

Technical/ Commercial Know-how and non-compete fees 5

2.8 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of
profit and loss.

2.9 Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit Plans :
The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees through Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
Group accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering
discounting rate relevant to GovernmentSecurities at the Balance Sheet Date.
Defined Benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense
or income are recognised in the statemeent of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
occur. Actuarial gains and losses on re-measurement is reflected immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occure and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recongised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.
Defined Contribution Plans :
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund, which is a Defined Contribution Scheme, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossfor the period in which the contributions of fund
accrue.
Compensated Absences :
Provision for Compensated Absences and its classifications between current and non-current
liabilities are based on independent actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the reporting date.
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Short term employee benefits :
They are recognised at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year in which the related services are rendered.

2.10 Research and Development Expenditure
Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Development costs of products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
a product’s technical feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is
capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises expenditure that can be directly attributed or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating, producing and making the asset
ready for its intended use. PPE utilised for research and development are capitalised and
depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for PPE.

2.11 Operating Leases
As a lessee:
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Losson a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

As a lessor:
The Group has leased certain tangible assets and such leases where the Group has substantially
retained all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease
income on such operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Group’s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in thestatement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in thefinancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and Deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.13 Warranty
The Group estimates and provides for liability for product warranties in the year in which the
products are sold. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature,
frequency, quantum of warranty claims and corrective actions against product failures and
the estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions.Assumptions
used to calculate the provision for warranties are based on current sales level and current
information available about returns. The timing of outflows will vary based on the actual
warranty claims.

2.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions: Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed for (i) when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group or (ii) a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of
the amount cannot be made.
Contingent assets: Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial
Statements, if an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
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(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition):
• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note below.
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes
of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.
For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer note below.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “Other income” line item.
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
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value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’.
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.A
financial asset is held for trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial

guarantee.
The Group has equity investments in two entities which are not held for trading. The Group
has elected the FVTOCI irrevocable option for these investments (refer note 5). Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 36.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent
a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (refer note 2.2
(ii)).
Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or
the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the
FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
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significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and
thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit
loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit
quality as compared to the previous period, the Group again measures the loss allowance
based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance
sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit
or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains
an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

• For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL,
the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

• Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating
to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

• For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt
instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the
exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at
below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies
set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.A financial liability is
classified as held for trading if:

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration
recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies,
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

• the financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the Grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
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• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’
line item.
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of
changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the
fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group
that are designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 36.
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based
on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of
an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Group entity are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
• the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of

Ind AS 109; and
• the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.
The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the
fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



45TH ANNUAL REPORT 2018

130

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of
the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty
of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
Derivative financial instruments
The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the
hedged item.
Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within
the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

2.16 Segment reporting
The Group identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and
returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies
of the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities
have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities
of the segment.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue /
expenses / assets / liabilities”.

2.17 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividingthe profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at
a later date.

2.18 Recent accounting standards issued but not applicable
Ind As 115 revenue from contracts with customers
Ind AS 115 was notified on 28th March, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services
are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Group
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expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules
could affect the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of the Group. Ind AS
115 is effective for the Group in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using either one of two methods:
(i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect
certain practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or
(ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the
date of initial application (1st January, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as
defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified retrospective method).
The Group continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual
arrangements. The ultimate impact on revenue resulting from the application of Ind AS 115
will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not
limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business.
A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will
only be possible once the implementation project has been completed.
Ind As 116 Leases
Ind AS 116 “Leases” is expected to replace Ind AS 17 from its proposed effective date, being
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.
Ind AS 116 will primarily change lease accounting for lessees; lease agreement will give rise
to the recognition of an asset representing the right to use the leased item and a loan obligation
for future lease payables. Lease costs will be recongised in the form of depreciation of the
right to use asset and interest on the lease liability. Lessee accounting under Ind AS 116 will
be similar in many respects to existing Ind AS 17 accounting for finance leases, but will be
substantively different to existing accounting for operating leases where rental charges are
currently recognised on a straight-line basis and no lease asset or related lease creditor is
recognised.
Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is similar to existing Ind AS 17 and is not expected to
have any material impact on the Group.
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3) First-time adoption of Ind AS
The Group has adopted Ind AS from January 1, 2018 and the date of transition to Ind AS is January
1, 2017. These being the first financial statements in compliance with Ind AS, the impact of transition
has been accounted for in opening reserves and comparable periods have been restated in
accordance with Ind AS 101 – “First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”. The Group has
presented a reconciliation of equity under Previous GAAP to its equity under Ind AS as at December
31, 2017 and as at January 1, 2017 and of total comprehensive income for the year ended December
31, 2017 as required by Ind AS 101.

Following are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in
the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS:

1. Deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying values under
previous GAAP as ‘deemed cost’ for all the items of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets.

2. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
The Group has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after transition date.

3. Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The Group has assessed classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of
facts and circumstances that exist as on transition date.

4. Impairment of financial assets:
The Group has applied impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively: however, as
permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments
were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date.

5. Assessment of embedded derivatives:
The Group has assessed whether an embedded derivative as required to be separated from
the host contract and accounted for as a derivative on the basis of the conditions that existed
at the late of the date it first became a party to the contract and the date when there has
been a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
otherwise would not be required under the contract.

6. Valuation of investment in equity shares at FVTOCI:
The Group has designated investment in equity shares of investees to be valued at fair value
through other comprehensive income on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed at
the transaction date.
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Statement of Reconciliation of total equity as at December 31, 2017 and January 1, 2017
between Ind AS and previous GAAP.

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity for prior periods. The following tables represent
the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS standalone Financial Statement.

( )

Notes
1 Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI (net of tax)

Under Indian GAAP, the Group accounted for long term investments in equity shares as
investment measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value
of investments. Under Ind AS 109, the Group’s investments are fair valued as FVTOCI
investments. The fair value impact at the date of transition to Ind AS and in comparative
previous year are adjusted in carrying value of investments under Indian GAAP with impact in
the Opening Balance of Retained Earnings at the date of transition to Ind AS, and in the
FVTOCI reserve in comparative previous year, net of related deferred taxes.

2 Expected Credit Loss
Under Indian GAAP, the provision for doubtful debts was made when the receivable turned
doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis. Under Ind AS, the provision is made
against trade receivables based on “expected credit loss” model in accordance with Ind AS
109.

3 Dividend
Under Indian GAAP, dividends on equity shares (including dividend distribution tax thereon)
recommended by the board of directors after the end of reporting period but before the
financial statements were approved for issue were recoginsed in the financial statements as
a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends (including dividend distribution tax thereon) are
recognised when approved by the members in general meeting.

4 Deferred Tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS
12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian
GAAP. Inaddition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According
to the accounting policies, the Group has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained
earnings or a separate component of equity.

Sr. 
No. Particulars Note As at December 

31, 2017 
As at January 

1, 2017 

Balance of Equity as per Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

  
1,16,83,68,275  89,91,47,038 

1 Non-current assets       
Investment in Equity Shares 1 (7,92,969)  4,15,458 

2 Current Financial Assets       
Trade Receivables 2 (4,09,654)  (3,60,268) 

3 Short Term Provision       
Proposed Dividend 3  -  6,47,28,496 
Tax on Proposed Dividend   -  1,31,78,722 

4 Deferred Tax Assets on Stock Reserve 4 19,61,167  5,87,750 
5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 4 4,16,203 (19,100) 

Total equity    1,16,95,43,022  97,76,78,096 
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income between Ind AS and previous GAAP
( )

Notes
1 Expected Credit Loss

Under Indian GAAP, the provision for doubtful debts was made when the receivable turned
doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis. Under Ind AS, the provision is made
against trade receivables based on “expected credit loss” model as per Ind AS 109.

2 Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability
Under Indian GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability / asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive
income under Ind AS instead of profit or loss.

3 Deferred Tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS
12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian
GAAP. Inaddition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According
to the accounting policies, the Group has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained
earnings or a separate component of equity.

4 Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI
Under Indian GAAP, the Group accounted for long term investments in equity shares as
investment measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value
of investments. Under Ind AS, the Group’s investments are fair valued as FVTOCI investments.
The fair value impact at the date of transition to Ind AS and in comparative previous year are
adjusted in carrying value of investments under Indian GAAP with impact in the FVTOCI reserve.

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Note For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2017 

A Net profit as per audited Consolidated Financial Statements   26,92,21,237 
B IND AS IMPACT    
  Provision for expected credit loss 1 (49,386) 
  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 2 15,16,485 
  Deferred Tax (Charge) on Ind AS adjustments 3 (5,07,734) 
  Deferred Tax Assets on stock reserve 3 13,73,417 
C Profit after tax (A + B)  27,15,54,019 
D Other Comprehensive Income    
  Change in Fair Value of investments measured at FVTOCI 4 (12,08,427) 
  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 2 (15,16,485) 
  Tax Impact on Other Comprehensive Income 3  9,43,037 
E Total comprehensive income (C+D)  26,97,72,144 
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As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
5) Investments

Quoted Investments (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Shares valued at
FVTOCI (Refer note 36)
Jaysynth Dyestuff (India) Ltd. 1,10,78,848 1,28,96,470 1,09,98,812
(173,107 Shares (December 31, 2017 :
173,107 and January 1, 2017 : 134,872
of Re. 1/- each fully paid-up)
Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Shares valued at Cost
Gujarat Vepari Mahamandal Sahakari
Audhyogik Vasahat Ltd. 3,000 3,000 3,000
(30 Shares (December 31, 2017 : 30 and
January 1, 2017 : 30) of Rs. 100/- each
fully paid-up )

1,10,81,848  1,28,99,470 1,10,01,812

Details of quoted/unquoted investments:
(a) Aggregate amount of quoted

investments and market value thereof;
Book Value 1,36,89,438 1,36,89,438 1,05,83,354
Market Value 1,10,78,848 1,28,96,470 1,09,98,812

(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments;
Book Value 3,000 3,000 3,000

6) Other Non-current Financial Assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Long term deposits with maturity more
than 12 months -  3,24,46,128  15,83,05,872
Sundry Deposits 81,60,950  88,69,983  91,32,922
Margin Money Deposit 40,00,000  1,51,43,171  56,18,267

1,21,60,950  5,64,59,282  17,30,57,061

Note : The fair value of Other Non-current Financial Assests is not materially different from the
carrying value presented.

7) Other Non-current assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Balances with Government Authorities 8,51,729  8,08,226  1,02,00,989
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 86,81,965  1,01,99,478  1,00,01,019

95,33,694  1,10,07,704  2,02,02,008
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8) Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Materials  10,72,22,466  15,83,10,111  16,72,37,703
[Includes Goods-in-transit Rs. 42,683,523
(December 31, 2017 Rs. 2,834,294 and
January 1 2017 Rs. 9,422,787)]
Packing Material, Stores, Spares and Tools 1,25,12,327  1,71,99,571  1,02,87,271
Work-in-Process  1,87,68,945  5,47,29,078  5,29,15,127
Finished Goods 9,02,51,678  7,20,39,308  12,86,94,297
Traded Goods 1,68,63,756  3,41,83,194  2,42,25,887

24,56,19,172  33,64,61,262  38,33,60,285

9) Trade Receivables
(Unsecured)
Considered Good
From Related Parties (Refer Note 35B) 1,63,60,006  74,20,710  59,67,637
From Others 25,79,90,202  30,92,50,991  24,29,27,337
Considered Doubtful 53,45,990  17,23,768  62,79,506

27,96,96,198  31,83,95,469  25,51,74,480

Less: Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss Allowance) 53,45,990  17,23,768  62,79,506

27,43,50,208  31,66,71,701  24,88,94,974

Note : The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on ageing of the days the receivables are over/past due and the rates as
given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Ageing Expected credit loss (%)
Within the credit period 0%
1 - 30 days past due 0%
31 - 120 days past due 2%
121 - 365 days past due 5%
More than 365 days past due 50%

Provision for Expected Credit Loss Allowance:
  Particulars For the year For the year As at

ended December ended December January
31, 2018 31, 2018 1, 2017

  Opening Balance  17,23,768  62,79,506  9,13,912
  Additions during the Year  88,25,405  29,83,907  1,03,07,010
  Reversals during the Year  52,03,183  75,39,645  49,41,416
  Closing Balance  53,45,990  17,23,768  62,79,506

Note : The fair value of Trade Receivables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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10) Cash and Cash Equivalents :

Cash on hand 2,93,259  1,69,638  3,53,359

Cheques on hand 75,13,781  1,15,45,390  -

Bank Balances :

In Current accounts 7,31,19,515 8,99,59,890 6,91,09,675

Deposits with original maturity less
than 3 months -  7,15,00,000  3,50,00,000

8,09,26,555  17,31,74,918  10,44,63,034

11) Bank Balances (Other than Cash and
Cash Equivalents)

Deposits with maturity less than
12 months from reporting date 80,87,42,463 23,60,02,320 16,05,00,000

Unpaid Dividend Accounts 73,63,883 65,70,920 54,01,730

81,61,06,346  24,25,73,240  16,59,01,730

Notes :

(1) The fair value of Bank Balances (Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) is not materially
different from the carrying value presented.

(2) Deposits amounting to Rs. 7,291,211 (December 31, 2017 Rs. Nil and January 1, 2017 Rs. Nil)
is marked as lien against the outstanding bank guarantee.

12) Other Current Financial Assets

Interest Accrued but not Due

On Deposits 49,88,753 65,73,978 1,25,44,309

49,88,753  65,73,978  1,25,44,309

Note : The fair value of Other Current Financial Assests is not materially different from the carrying
value presented.

13) Other Current Assets

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Advances for Goods and Services 69,67,439 71,19,886 1,02,16,722

Prepaid Expenses 24,82,645 28,85,178 41,40,491

Export Incentive Receivables 51,58,673 88,99,060 75,79,821

Balances with Government Authorities  - 93,74,656 80,43,079

1,46,08,757  2,82,78,780  2,99,80,113

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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14) Equity Share Capital
Authorised:
2,900,000 (December 31, 2017 :
2,900,000 and January 1, 2017 :
2,900,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,90,00,000 2,90,00,000 2,90,00,000
10,000 (December 31, 2017 : 10,000
and January 1, 2017 : 10,000) Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000

3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
2,088,016 (December 31, 2017 :
2,088,016 and January 1, 2017 :
2,088,016) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid-up 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars No. of December December January
Shares 31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,88,016 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 20,88,016 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160 2,08,80,160

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per
share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

c) Shares in the company held by its Holding Company and subsidiaries of Holding Company
in aggregate
1,483 ,777 (December 31, 2017 :
1,483 ,777 and January 1 2017 :
1,483,777)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
up are held by SPGPrints B.V., The
Netherlands, the Holding Company. 1,48,37,770 1,48,37,770 1,48,37,770

d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate
shares in the Company
Number of shares 14,83,777 14,83,777 14,83,777
SPGPrints B.V. - The Netherlands,
the Holding Company 71.06% 71.06% 71.06%

e) There are no shares alloted either as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares or under any
contract without payment being received in cash during five years immediately preceding
December 31, 2018.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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15) Other Equity
Capital Reserve 3,46,115 3,46,115 3,46,115
Capital Redemption Reserve
(refer note (i) below) 3,50,000 3,50,000 3,50,000
Securities Premium (refer note (ii) below) 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502
General Reserve (refer note (iii) below) 18,27,46,416 18,27,46,416 18,27,46,416
Retained Earnings (refer note (iv) below) 1,13,02,18,286 88,63,92,044 69,37,36,903
Other Comprehensive Income (21,22,064) (7,90,215) -

1,39,11,57,255 1,14,86,62,862 95,67,97,936

As at As at
December December
31, 2018 31, 2017

( ) ( )
15.1)Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,46,115 3,46,115
15.2)Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note (i) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,50,000 3,50,000
15.3)Securities Premium (refer note (ii) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 7,96,18,502 7,96,18,502
15.4)General Reserve (refer note (iii) below)

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 18,27,46,416 18,27,46,416
15.5)Retained Earnings (refer note (iv) below)

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,63,92,044 69,37,36,903
Profit for the year  33,60,20,295 27,15,54,019
Declared Dividend (7,51,68,576) (6,47,28,496)
Tax on Declared Dividend (1,54,54,659) (1,31,78,722)
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit
plans (net of tax) (15,70,818) (9,91,660)

At the end of the year 1,13,02,18,286 88,63,92,044

15.6)Other Comprehensive Income
At the beginning of the year (7,90,215) -
Change in Fair Value of investments measured at
FVTOCI (net of tax) (13,31,849) (7,90,215)
At the end of the year (21,22,064) (7,90,215)

Notes :
(i) Capital Redemeption Reserve created on redemption of Redeemable Preference shares.
(ii) Securities Premium Reserve represents the premium received on issue of shares over and above the

face value of equity shares. The reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

(iv) Retained Earnings can be distributed by the Group as dividend to its equity shareholders and the same
is determined based on the separate financial statements of the Group and also considering the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in
entirety.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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16) Long-term Provisions
Provision for Compensated absences
(Refer Note 29C) 1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466

1,42,08,959 1,08,11,068 86,83,466

17) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax liability
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2,06,92,525 2,40,20,591 2,18,47,946

2,06,92,525 2,40,20,591 2,18,47,946
Deferred tax assets
(a) Provision for Doubtful Receivables

(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 15,56,752 5,87,165 21,68,848

(b) Provision for contingency 29,02,934 31,69,291 30,24,470
(c) Remeasurement gains / (losses) on

defined benefit plans 5,97,599 6,03,641 1,84,136
(d) Change in Fair Value of investments

measured at FVTOCI 7,60,205 2,74,432 (1,43,782)
(e) Other timing differences allowable

on payment basis 1,03,04,611 1,28,61,008 84,26,910
1,61,22,101 1,74,95,537 1,36,60,582
45,70,424 65,25,054 81,87,364

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
( )

Particulars For the year For the year
ended December December 31,

31, 2018 31, 2017
( ) ( )

Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  49,48,98,813 41,54,54,845
Domestic Tax Rate (in %) 29.120 34.608
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate  14,41,14,534 14,37,80,613
Tax Effect of:
Incremental deduction for Research & Development
Expenditure (3,61,504) (7,35,803)
Non-deductible expenses 58,131 33,67,410
Income tax related to prior years - (9,05,860)
Income not chargable to tax  (43,06,316) (10,99,293)
Effect of change in tax rate 2,56,44,897 (5,06,241)
Income chargable to lower rate of tax (62,71,224) -

Income tax Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 15,88,78,518 14,39,00,826

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2018
( )

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised On Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/Assets: balance in profit in other  Disposal balance at

as at and loss comprehe- of December
January nsive Subsidiary 31, 2018
1, 2018 income

Property, plant and equipment 2,40,20,591 (33,47,778) - 19,712 2,06,92,525
2,40,20,591 (33,47,778) - 19,712 2,06,92,525

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised On Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/Assets: balance in profit in other Disposal balance at

as at and loss comprehe- of December
January nsive Subsidiary 31, 2018
1, 2018 income

Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 5,87,165 10,69,623 - (1,00,036) 15,56,752
Provision for contingency 31,69,291 (2,66,357) - - 29,02,934
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
on defined benefit plans 6,03,641 (6,51,389) 6,45,347 - 5,97,599
Change in Fair Value of investm-
ents measured at FVTOCI 2,74,432 - 4,85,773 - 7,60,205
Other timing differences allowable
on payment basis 1,28,61,008 (24,17,664) - (1,38,732) 1,03,04,611

1,74,95,537 (22,65,787) 11,31,120 (2,38,768) 1,61,22,101

Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2017
( )

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised On Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/Assets: balance in profit in other Disposal balance at

as at and loss comprehe- of December
January nsive Subsidiary 31, 2017
1, 2017 income

Property, plant and equipment 2,18,47,946 21,72,645 - - 2,40,20,591
2,18,47,946 21,72,645 - - 2,40,20,591

Tax effects of items constituting Opening Recognised Recognised On Closing
Deferred tax liabilities/Assets: balance in profit in other Disposal balance at

as at and loss comprehe- of December
January nsive Subsidiary 31, 2017
1, 2017 income

Provision for Doubtful Receivables
(Including Expected Credit Loss
Allowance) 21,68,848 (15,81,683) - - 5,87,165
Provision for contingency 30,24,470 1,44,821 - - 31,69,291
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
on defined benefit plans 1,84,136 (1,05,320) 5,24,825 - 6,03,641
Change in Fair Value of investm-
ents measured at FVTOCI (1,43,782) - 4,18,212 - 2,74,432
Other timing differences allowable
on payment basis 84,26,910 44,34,098 - - 1,28,61,008

1,36,60,582 28,91,916 9,43,037 - 1,74,95,537
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18) Other Non-current Liabilities
Security Deposits 31,74,091 31,67,959 26,85,846
Other Liabilties 95,24,091 91,57,684 87,39,221
[Including Provision for Contingencies and
Net off Duty paid under protest
Rs. 4,029,470 (December 31, 2017
Rs. 4,029,470, January 1, 2017
Rs. 4,029,470)]

1,26,98,182 1,23,25,643 1,14,25,067

19) Trade Payables
a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(Refer Note below) 4,82,259 18,48,904 27,28,634
b) Other Trade Payables 23,56,97,473 28,91,58,838 26,53,29,316

23,61,79,732 29,10,07,742 26,80,57,950

The information with respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small Year ended Year ended As at
and Medium Enterprises December December January

31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017
( ) ( ) ( )

a) Principal Amount due to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at the year end. 4,82,259 18,48,904 27,28,634

b) Interest due to suppliers registered
under MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as at the year end. 9,98,898 9,94,352 9,94,042

c) Principal Amount paid to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year. - - 1,91,515

d) Interest paid, other than under
section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year. - - -

e) Interest paid, under section 16 of
MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year. - - -

f) Interest due and payable towards
suppliers registered under MSMED Act,
for payments already made. - 5,55,266 5,31,501

g) Further interest remaining due and
payable for earlier years. 9,94,352 9,94,352 9,93,419

Note : The fair value of Trade Payables is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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20) Other Current Financial Liabilities

Unpaid Dividend 73,63,883 65,70,920 54,01,730

Others 40,65,520 14,75,193 10,85,119

Note:

There is no amount due and
outstanding as at December 31, 2018,
December 31, 2017 and January 1,
2017 to be credited to Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

1,14,29,403 80,46,113 64,86,849

21) Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customers 2,59,85,103 2,50,79,848 10,65,53,914

Statutory dues 2,85,46,056 91,19,002 1,31,13,811

Creditors for Capital Goods - - 1,77,83,448

5,45,31,159 3,41,98,850 13,74,51,173

22) Short-term Provisions

Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 29B) 20,52,196 17,44,224 5,32,062

Provision for Compensated absences
(Refer Note 29C) 41,78,494 30,12,999 22,28,638

Provision for Warranty (Refer Note 38) 1,10,56,495 2,40,03,773 2,51,34,167

1,72,87,185 2,87,60,996 2,78,94,867

23) Current tax liabilities (Net)

Current tax liabilities (Net off Advance
tax and TDS of Rs. 9,48,55,917,
December 31, 2017 Rs. 10,23,40,682) 33,52,385 17,79,172 -

33,52,385 17,79,172 -

As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
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For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
24) Revenue from operations

Sale of Goods and Services (Refer Below Note 1) 1,80,89,78,775 2,10,61,49,974
Other Operating Income :
Commission Income 1,16,77,890 1,41,81,271
Sale of Manufacturing Scrap 12,40,31,179 8,11,56,460
Export Incentives 33,54,844 58,89,553

1,94,80,42,688 2,20,73,77,258

Note 1: The Government of India has implemented Goods and Service Tax (“GST”) from 1st July,
2017 replacing Excise Duty, Service Tax and various other indirect taxes. Revenue for the period
up to 30th June, 2017 are inclusive of excise duty of Rs. 80,329,078; however, revenue for the
period 1st July, 2017 to 31st December, 2017 and for the year ended 31st December, 2018 a r e
shown net of GST.
Details of Revenue from operations
a) Sales of Goods Manufactured:

Perforated Rotary Screens and Textile Machines 1,24,73,97,383 1,43,78,37,692
Sugar sieves and segments 25,00,18,068 21,51,64,794
Other Manufactured Goods Sold 21,21,90,102 18,51,86,478
Excise Duty on Goods Manufactured - 8,03,29,078

1,70,96,05,553 1,91,85,18,042

b) Sales of Traded Goods :
Perforated Rotary Screens 2,74,23,380 12,98,37,842
Other Traded Goods Sold 4,52,44,146 4,54,47,515

7,26,67,526 17,52,85,357
c) Sale of Services 2,67,05,696 1,23,46,575

2,67,05,696 1,23,46,575

d) Other Operating Income :
Commission Income 1,16,77,890 1,41,81,271
Sale of Manufacturing Scrap 12,40,31,179 8,11,56,460
Export Incentives 33,54,844 58,89,553

13,90,63,913 10,12,27,284
1,94,80,42,688 2,20,73,77,258

25) Other income
Interest:
Interest on Deposits 3,44,48,473 2,11,71,427
Interest Others 95,228 86,748

3,45,43,701 2,12,58,175
Liabilities no longer required written back 5,58,593 -
Provision for Doubtful Receivables written back (Net) - 45,55,738
Bad Debts written off - (2,28,491)

- 43,27,247
Provision for Warranty (Net) (Refer Note 38) 72,89,654 11,30,394
Lease rentals 86,31,330 1,16,05,260
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) - 16,763
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 15,92,944 -
Miscellaneous Income 92,54,882 22,91,000

6,18,71,104 4,06,28,839
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For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

26) Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials and Components Consumed 88,20,03,449 93,14,05,539

Packing Materials Consumed 1,90,98,836 1,96,52,858

90,11,02,285 95,10,58,397

27) Purchase of stock-in-trade
Perforated Rotary Screens 4,31,19,412 11,43,27,619

Others 50,30,446 4,14,42,145

4,81,49,858 15,57,69,764

28) Changes in inventories of finished Goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Opening Stock
- Work-in-process 5,47,29,079 5,29,15,127
- Finished Goods 7,20,39,308 12,86,94,297
- Traded Goods 3,41,83,194 2,42,25,887

16,09,51,581 20,58,35,311
Closing Stock
- Work-in-process 1,87,68,945 5,47,29,079
- Finished Goods 9,02,51,678 7,20,39,308
- Traded Goods 1,68,63,756 3,41,83,194

12,58,84,379 16,09,51,581

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock 3,50,67,202 4,48,83,730
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty on Finished Goods - (1,41,46,888)

3,50,67,202 3,07,36,842

29) A. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 18,47,66,618 17,87,10,215
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 59,85,150 50,04,608
Gratuity (Refer Note 29B) 19,75,346 14,71,736
Welfare Expenses 1,69,31,967 1,70,40,090

20,96,59,081 20,22,26,649

B. Employee Benefits :
(a) Defined Contribution Plan :

The Group’s contribution to Provident Fund aggregating Rs. 5,233,666 (Previous Year
Rs. 4,388,792) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss under the head
Employee Benefits Expense.
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(b) Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity
The Group operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees,
which provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.
The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 :

( )
Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
( ) ( )

i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing
Balances of defined benefit obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the beginning of the year 1,58,75,440 1,35,56,733
Current Service Cost 18,41,564 14,34,385
Past service Cost - -
Interest Cost 12,17,646 9,51,683
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Benefit paid (18,83,539) (17,76,059)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial)
(gain) / loss arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions 8,52,450 5,29,529
Experience variance (i.e. Actual
experience vs assumptions) 14,10,018 11,79,169
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the end of the year 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
ii. Reconciliation of Opening and

Closing Balances of the Fair value of
Plan assets
Fair Value of Plan assets at the
beginning of the year 1,41,31,216 1,30,24,671
Interest Income 10,83,864 9,14,332
Expected return on plan assets 46,303 1,92,213
Employer’s Contribution 20,00,000 -
Employee’s Contributions - -
Benefit paid - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets - -
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end
of the year 1,72,61,383 1,41,31,216
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Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
iii. Reconciliation of the Present value

of defined benefit obligation and
Fair value of plan assets
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligations at the end of the year 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440 1,35,56,733
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end
of the period/ year 1,72,61,383 1,41,31,216 1,30,24,671
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in
Balance Sheet as at the end of the
year (20,52,196) (17,44,224) (5,32,062)

Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
iv. Composition of Plan Assets

Percentage of each Category of Plan
Assets to total Fair Value of
Plan Assets :
Cash Accumulation Scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India 93% 91% 93%
Bank Balances 7% 9% 7%

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
v. Gratuity Cost for the Year

Current service cost 18,41,564 14,34,385
Interest Cost 1,33,782 37,351
Past service Cost - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Acturial gain/loss - -
Expenses recognised in the income
statement 19,75,346 14,71,736

vi. Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain) / loss 22,62,468 17,08,698
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions - -
Experience variance (i.e. Actual
experience vs assumptions) - -
Others - -
Return on plan assets, excluding
amount recognised in interest income (46,303) (1,92,213)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/
loss arising because of change in
effect of asset ceiling - -
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive
income 22,16,165 15,16,485
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Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

( ) ( ) ( )
vii. Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.74% 7.67% 7.02%
Annual Increase in Salary Cost 7.50% 7.00% 6.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover For service 4 For service 4 For service 4

years and years and years and
below 5.00% below 5.00% below 5.00%

p.a. For p.a. For p.a. For
service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years

and above and above and above
1.00% p.a. 1.00% p.a. 1.00% p.a.

Mortality Rates as given under Indian Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured
Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
Ultimate Retirement Age 60 Years. (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)

viii. Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation
are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.The sensitivity analysis below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 1,93,13,579 1,58,75,440

( )
Particulars For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
December December December December
31, 2018 31, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2017
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 22,93,376 (18,59,464) 16,97,167 (13,83,036)
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity
Salary Growth Rate
(- / + 0.5%) (9,83,799) 10,82,630 (7,33,595) 8,05,543
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity)
Attrition Rate (- / + 1%) (13,090) 4,425 (81,298) 62,485
(% change compared to
base due to sensitivity)
ix. Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is
guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy
rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to
sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk.
However, being a cash accumulation plan,the duration of assets is shorter compared
to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest
rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase
in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).
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x. Effect of Plan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

The Group has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity
to the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out a funding
valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Group. Any deficit
in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Group.

b) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting.

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
Expected cash flows over the
next (valued on undiscounted
basis):
1st Following Year 31,85,131 15,71,546
2nd Following year 26,61,199 28,78,251
3rd Following Year 6,13,042 22,74,545
4th Following Year 11,49,767 5,50,259
5th Following Year 13,83,204 9,34,726
sum of years 6 to 10 37,69,667 23,39,881

xi. The Group has defined benefit plans for Gratuity to eligible employees, the
contributions for which are made to Life Insurance Corporation of India who invests
the funds as per Insurance Regulatory Development Authority guidelines.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India’s
securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to acturial risks such as Interest rate
risk, Salary risk, Investment risk, Asset liability matching risk, longevity risk.

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will
increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increase the mark to market value of the assets depending
on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively
balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash
flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk.

Longevity risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and
payable till retirement age only, plan do not have any longevity risk.

c) Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
The actuarial liability for compensated absences as at the year ended December
31, 2018 is Rs. 18,387,453 (December 31, 2017 Rs. 13,824,067; January 1, 2017
Rs. 10,912,104)
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For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )

30) Finance costs

Other Borrowing Cost 23,44,404 16,02,773

23,44,404 16,02,773

31) Other expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spares 1,49,71,360 1,60,00,914
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods - 8,03,29,078
Rent 19,58,928 26,66,960
Rates and Taxes 6,77,644 26,07,254
Power and Fuel 14,08,67,893 11,10,38,366
Repairs to Buildings 44,66,284 61,75,001
Repairs to Plant and Equipment 78,83,327 84,45,550
Repairs to Others 43,28,324 72,86,303
Insurance 29,74,627 25,09,807
Auditors’ Remuneration for :
- Statutory Audit Fees 27,30,000 22,00,000
- Tax Audit Fees 4,64,500 4,00,000
- Others 6,55,350 7,00,000
- Out - of - Pocket Expenses 57,506 67,200

39,07,356 33,67,200
Travelling and Conveyance 1,84,65,288 2,25,13,387
Royalty 3,41,25,891 3,68,27,654
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (Net) 39,77,207 -
Group Management Fees 3,75,54,804 3,29,34,470
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions
and Translations - 32,60,915
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and
Equipment (Net) 87,831 -
Contribution towards Corporate Social
Responsibility activities (Refer Note 41) 70,00,000 55,00,000
Other General, Administrative and Selling
Expenses 6,37,14,532 8,91,78,949

34,69,61,296 43,06,41,808
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32) a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

Particulars As at As at As at
December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

Reinstatement with backwages claimed by
worker. Also, include claim filed by employees
for claiming Voluntary Retirement Scheme
(VRS) benefit. 40,00,000 47,68,164 4,08,535
Disallowance of Voluntary Retirement Scheme
(VRS) expediture by tax authorities. 19,11,581 3,80,731 49,97,065
Capital gain on sale of assets considered as
Short Term Gain by tax authorities. - 43,47,988 14,44,676
Disallowance of interest on income tax by
tax authorities. - 1,08,391 -
Classification of Service Tax on business
auxiliary services challanged by tax authorities. 8,89,554 4,44,777 4,44,777
Non reversal of Cenvat on input capital
goods sold challanged by tax authorities. - 1,04,681 26,75,620
Service Tax credit taken on Sales Commission
paid disallowed by tax authorities. 10,93,900 10,93,900 10,93,900

Total 78,95,035 1,12,48,632 1,10,64,573

Management is of the view that no liability shall arise on the Group for all the above cases.
b) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (Net of Capital Advances) as at December 31, 2018 is Rs. 1,331,417 (December 31, 2017
Rs. Nil, January 1, 2017 Rs. 33,827,217).

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
33) Dividend remitted in foreign currency

Amount remitted (Rupees) 5,34,15,972 4,59,97,087
Dividend related to financial year December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Number of non-resident shareholders 1 1
Number of shares 14,83,777 14,83,777

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
34) Earnings per share

Profit Attributable to equity shareholders 33,60,20,295 27,15,54,019
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 20,88,016 20,88,016
Nominal value of an equity share 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) 160.93 130.05
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35) Related party disclosure:
Related party disclosure as required by AS-18,”Related Party Disclosure”, is given below:

I. Parties where control exists:

Related Party Relationship
SPGPrints B.V. Holding Company

SPGPrints Group B.V. Holding Company of SPGPrints B.V.

Print II B.V. Holding Company of SPGPrints Group B.V.

II. Fellow Subsidiaries where transactions have taken place:

SPGPrints Printing Systems Wuxi Co Ltd.

SPG Prints Mexico S.A. De C.V

SPGPrints Austria GMBH

Shandong Tongda Printing Systems Co. Ltd

SPGPrints Baski Sistemleri Tic. Ltd. Sti

Veco B.V. (upto April 18, 2018)

SPGPrints Brasil Ltda.

Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited (From March 22, 2018 and upto April 18, 2018)

III. Key Management Personnel:

In Stovec Industries Limited
  Mr. Shailesh Wani Managing Director

In Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited (Upto March 21, 2018)
  Mr. Sandeep Khot Managing Director
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36) Financial Instrument and Fair Value Measurement
(A) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at fair value

(Rupees)
Particulars Amount as at December 31, 2018

Fair Value Fair Value Amortised
through Profit through Other Cost Total

& Loss Comprehensive
Income

Financial assets
(i) Investments - 1,10,78,848 3,000 1,10,81,848
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 1,21,60,950 1,21,60,950
(iii) Trade receivables - - 27,43,50,208 27,43,50,208
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 8,09,26,555 8,09,26,555
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 81,61,06,346 81,61,06,346
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 49,88,753 49,88,753
Total - 1,10,78,848 1,18,85,35,812 1,19,96,14,660

Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 23,61,79,732 23,61,79,732
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 1,14,29,403 1,14,29,403
Total - - 24,76,09,135 24,76,09,135

Particulars Amount as at December 31, 2017
Fair Value Fair Value Amortised

through Profit through Other Cost Total
& Loss Comprehensive

Income
Financial assets
(i) Investments -  1,28,96,470 3,000  1,28,99,470
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 5,64,59,282 5,64,59,282
(iii) Trade receivables - - 31,66,71,701 31,66,71,701
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 17,31,74,918 17,31,74,918
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 24,25,73,240 24,25,73,240
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 65,73,978 65,73,978
Total - 1,28,96,470 79,54,56,119  80,83,52,589
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 29,10,07,742 29,10,07,742
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 80,46,113 80,46,113
Total - - 29,90,53,855 29,90,53,855
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Particulars Amount as at January 1, 2017
Fair Value Fair Value Amortised

through Profit through Other Cost Total
& Loss Comprehensive

Income
Financial assets
(i) Investments - 1,09,98,812 3,000 1,10,01,812
(ii) Other non-current

financial assets - - 17,30,57,061 17,30,57,061
(iii) Trade receivables - - 24,88,94,974 24,88,94,974
(iv) Cash and cash

equivalents - - 10,44,63,034 10,44,63,034
(v) Bank balance other

than (iv) above - - 16,59,01,730 16,59,01,730
(vi) Other current financial

assets - - 1,25,44,309 1,25,44,309
Total - 1,09,98,812 70,48,64,108 71,58,62,920
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade Payables - - 26,80,57,950 26,80,57,950
(ii) Other current financial

liabilities - - 64,86,849 64,86,849
Total - - 27,45,44,799 27,45,44,799

Fair Value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 – Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
Fair Value Hierarchy as at year end

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment in equity
instruments as at
December 31, 2018 1,10,78,848 - - 1,10,78,848
Investment in equity
instruments as at
December 31, 2017 1,28,96,470 - - 1,28,96,470
Investment in equity
instruments as at
January 1, 2017 1,09,98,812 - - 1,09,98,812

(B) Capital Management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The Group strives to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern so that they can maximise returns for the shareholders
and benefits for other stake holders. The Group maintains a debt free status and regularly declares
dividend to its shareholders.

(C) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The Group’s financial
assets include trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that it derives directly
from its operations.
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The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by the
Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Group. This provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that the
Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk
objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:
(1) Market Risk : Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity risk.
1.1 Interest Rate risk : Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s investment in bank deposits. The interest rates for the tenure of the fixed deposits
are fixed. However, with the continuous decrease in the returns on fixed deposits, the
income earned on such deposits may change in future based on the interest rates.
The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank deposits. ( )
Particulars Year ended Year ended As at

December December January
31, 2018 31, 2017 1, 2017

Bank deposits (Including Margin Money
Deposit) 81,27,42,463 35,50,91,619 35,94,24,139
% change in interest rates 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
Impact on Profit for the year 40,63,712 17,75,458 17,97,121

1.2 Foreign Currency Risk : Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s foreign currency risk arises out of various imports of raw materials and exports
of its finished goods.
The Group has a forex policy in place where the objective is to mitigate foreign exchange
risk by deploying the appropriate hedging strategies through use of foreign currency
forward contracts. The Group follows netting principle for managing the foreign exchange
exposure.
The Carrying Amounts of the Group’s Foreign Currency Denominated Monetary Assets
and Liabilities based on Gross Exposure at the end of the Reporting Period is as under.
There are no open derivate contracts at the end of the year.
Net Open Exposures Outstanding as at the Balance Sheet Date
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Particulars 

  
As at December

31, 2018 
As at December 

31, 2017 
As at January 

1, 2017 
Foreign 

Currency 
Denomi-
nation 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Foreign 
Currency 
Amount 

Amount 
( ) 

Trade 
Receivables 

EURO  2,05,160  1,63,67,655  1,68,723 1,28,88,781 85,124  60,96,553 
USD  1,838 1,28,274  2,81,913 1,80,22,723 90,729  61,65,016 

Short-term 
Loans and 
Advances 

EURO 19,046  15,19,439 124 9,472 7,310 5,23,577 
USD - - - - 11,544 7,84,415 
GBP  495 43,788 - - - - 

Trade Payables 
EURO  4,82,262  3,84,74,824  4,91,353 3,75,34,433 6,07,072  4,34,78,480 
USD 26,563  18,53,824  42,996  27,48,734 1,02,354  69,54,967 

Other Current 
Liabilities 

USD  150 10,469 6,999 4,47,451 8,791 5,97,342 
EURO - - 952 72,723 70,000  50,13,400 
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1.3 Commodity Risk : The Group is is affected by price volatility of certain commodities. Its
operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of such
commodities. Therefore the Group monitors its purchases closely to optimise the prices.

(2) Credit Risk : Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a
financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is having
majority of the receivables from private sectors. The Group does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of credit risk to any counterparty did
not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year.

(3) Liquidity Risk : The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future
cash flows. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between working capital of the
Group. The Group generates sufficient cashflow from operations to maintain a healthy working
capital balance.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments. ( )

Particulars Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Year More than Carrying
5 Year

As at December 31, 2018
Trade Payables 23,61,79,732 - - 23,61,79,732
Other Financial Liabilities 1,14,29,403 - - 1,14,29,403
As at December 31, 2017
Trade Payables 29,10,07,742 - - 29,10,07,742
Other Financial Liabilities 80,46,113 - - 80,46,113
As at January 1, 2017
Trade Payables 26,80,57,950 - - 26,80,57,950
Other Financial Liabilities 64,86,849 - - 64,86,849

37) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are identified as those components of the Group (a) that engage in business
activities to earn revenues and incur expenses; (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s Operating Decision Maker (‘GODM’) to make decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment and (c) for which discrete financial information is available.
The Group has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed by
the Group’s GODM.

Name of Segment Comprises
Textile Consumables and Textile Machinery Perforated Rotary Screens,Lacquer & Auxil iary

Chemicals, Rotary Screen Printing Machine,
Engraving Equipment, Components and Spares,
Digital Ink

Graphics Product Anilox Rollers, Rotamesh screens and RotaPlate
Galvanic Galvano consumables

Reportable segments:
An operating segment is classified as reportable segment if reported revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) or absolute amount of result or assets exceeds 10% or more of the combined
total of all the operating segments.
Segment revenue and results:
The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown
as unallocable expenditure.
Segment assets and liabilities:
Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of
property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, Inventory and other operating assets. Segment
liabilities primarily include trade payable and other liabilities. Common assets and liabilities which
can not be allocated to any of the business segment are shown as unallocable assets / liabilities.
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38) Provision for Warranty
A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the year, based on
past experience of level of repairs and returns. It is expected that this cost will be incurred by end
of next financial year. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on
current sales level and information available about returns.

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
  Opening Balance 2,40,03,773 2,51,34,167
  Additions during the Year 1,13,82,624 1,97,93,240
  Reversals/ utilisations during the year 2,43,29,901 2,09,23,634
  Closing Balance 1,10,56,496 2,40,03,773

39) Research and Development Expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
( ) ( )

 Revenue Expenditure 37,90,174 34,66,906
  Total 37,90,174 34,66,906

40) Leases
Operating Lease : As a Lessor
The Group had given Land and Building on operating lease for a period of 7 years which was
completed on June 30, 2018 and after that the agreement is not renewed.
The Group has entered into cancellable lease agreements for use of certain area of its building
premises for a period of one year. The lease rentals aggregating Rs. 8,631,330 (Previous Year Rs.
11,605,260) have been included under the head “Other Income” Note 25 “Lease Rentals” of
Statements of Profit and Loss.
Operating Lease : As a Lessee
The Group has entered into cancellable lease agreements for premises for a period of one year.
The lease rentals aggregating Rs. 1,958,928 (Previous Year Rs. 2,666,960) have been included
under the head “Other Expenses” Note 31 “Rent” of Statements of Profit and Loss .

41) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

( ) ( )
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group : 69,53,630 54,71,942
(b) Amount spent during the year :

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 70,00,000 55,00,000

42) During the year 2018, the Group had sold certain identified assets of galvanic business. Resultant
gain on such sale of assets of Rs. 37,440,975 has been shown as exceptional items in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. However, the operations
of galvanic business is continued by the Group by entering into the Contract Manufacturing
Agreement.
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43) The Group has executed Share Purchase Agreement on March 14, 2018 for divestment of 100%
equity investment held by the Group in Atul Sugar Screens Private Limited to Veco B.V., for an
aggregate consideration of Rs. 104,000,000. Consequent to said divestment, Atul Sugar Screens
Private Limited ceased to be subsidiary of the Group w.e.f March 22, 2018. Gain on sale of such
investment has been shown as exceptional item in the financial statement.

Particulars Amount ( )
Consideration received on sale of shares (net)  10,37,40,000
Net assets disposed of  (6,02,84,801)
Gain on disposal   4,34,55,199

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost : ( )

Particulars  As at
March 21, 2018

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  76,72,286
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents  3,21,03,506
Trade receivables  2,95,85,373
Inventories (net of stock reserve) 1,35,73,259
Other current assets  1,21,70,005
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  14,85,066
Capital work-in-progress  46,619
Other Intangible assets  5,23,954
Deferred Tax assets  2,58,480
Other Non-current assets  11,07,349
Current liabilities
Payables  (3,81,97,141)
Non-current liabilities
Other Non-current liabilities  (43,955)
Net assets disposed of  6,02,84,801

Net Cash Inflow on Disposal of Subsidiary :

Particuars Amount ( )
Consideration received in Cash and Cash equivalents        10,37,40,000
Cash and Cash equivalent balances disposed of  (76,72,286)

Gain on disposal          9,60,67,714

44) Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements to Scheduel III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the Group Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss
As % of Amount As % of Amount

Consolidated ( ) Consolidated ( )
net assets profit or loss

Parent
Stovec Industries Limited 100%  1,76,62,94,844 99%  32,49,24,481

Subsidiary
Atul Sugar Screens Private Ltd. 0%  - 1%  25,26,346

Total 100% 1,76,62,94,844 100%  32,74,50,827
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45) Board of Directors of the Parent Company have recommended the final dividend of Rs. 55 per
equity share having face value of Rs. 10 each (550%) for the financial year ended December 31,
2018, subject to approval of the Members. This comprises of normal dividend of Rs. 40 per equity
share and a special dividend of Rs. 15 per equity share on account of gains arising from divestment
of equity investment and sale of assets of galvanic business.

46) The financial statements were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company at their meeting held on February 14, 2019.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Stovec Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
K. M. Thanawalla Shailesh Wani
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00201749) (DIN: 06474766)

Sd/-
Paras Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : February 14, 2019
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Form No. SH-13

Nomination Form
[Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital

and Debentures) Rules 2014]
To,
Stovec Industries Limited
N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol,
Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India.

I/We_____________________________the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given
hereunder wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following person(s) in whom shall
vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death.

(1) Particulars of the Securities (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of Folio No. No. of Certificate Distinctive
Securities Securities No. No.

(2) Particulars of Nominee/s

(a) Name : 

(b) Date of Birth : 

(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse Name : 

(d) Occupation : 

(e) Nationality : 

(f) Address : 

(g) E-mail id : 

(h) Relationship with the security holder : 

(3) In case Nominee is a Minor

(a) Date of birth : 

(b) Date of attaining majority : 

(c) Name of guardian : 

(d) Address of guardian : 

(4) Particulars of Nominee in case minor nominee dies before attaining age of majority

(a) Name : 

(b) Date of Birth : 

(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s Name : 

(d) Occupation : 

(e) Nationality : 

(f) Address : 

(g) E-mail id : 

(h) Relationship with the security holder : 

(i) Relationship with the minor nominee : 

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s):_________________________________________________

Signature of the Shareholder(s)________________________________________________________

Name and Address of Witnesses:______________________________________________________

Signature of Witnesses:______________________________________________________________
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BANK ACCOUNT PARTICULARS / ECS / NACH MANDATE FORM

I/We........................................................... do hereby authorise Stovec Industries Limited to :

- Print the following details on my/our dividend warrant.

- Credit my dividend amount directly to my Bank account by ECS/NACH.

(Strike out whichever is not applicable)

My/our Folio No. .......................................... DP ID No. : ...................... Client A/c No. ........................

Particulars of Bank Account :

A. Bank Name

B. Branch Name, Address (for Mandate only)

C. 9 DIGIT Code number of the Bank & Branch as
appearing on the MICR cheque

D. Account Type (Saving/Current)

E. Account No. as appearing on the cheque book

F. STD Code & Telephone No.

I/We shall not hold the Bank responsible if the ECS/NACH could not be implemented or the Bank
discontinue(s) the ECS/NACH, for any reason.

Mail to :

Link Intime India Private Limited

5th Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Center –I (ABC-I),

Besides Gala Business Center, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner,

Off. C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380 009, Gujarat.

.................................................
(Signature of the Shareholder)

Please attach the copy of a cheque or a blank cancelled cheque issues by your Bank relating to your
above account for verifying the accuracy of the 9 digit code number.

In case you are holding shares in demat form, kindly advise your Depository Participant to take note
of your Bank account particulars/ECS/NACH mandate.
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STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India

Tel: +91 (0) 79 6157 2300, Fax: +91 (0) 79 2571 0406, E-mail: secretarial@stovec.com,
CIN.: L45200GJ1973PLC050790 Website: www.stovec.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
45TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, THURSDAY, 9TH DAY OF MAY, 2019 AT 11.00 A.M.

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE VENUE OF MEETING

I hereby record my presence at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 9th May, 2019 at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at N.I.D.C., Near Lambha
Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India.

Full name of the Proxy, if attending the Meeting:

Signature of the Member / Joint Member / Proxy attending the Meeting :______________________________

EVSN (Electronic Voting Sequence Number) SEQUENCE NUMBER

• Please refer 45th AGM Notice for instructions on remote e-voting.

• Remote e-voting facility is available during the following period:

Date and time of Commencement of Remote e-voting 6th May, 2019 @ 9:00 hours (IST)

Date and time of end of Remote e-voting 8th May, 2019 @ 17:00 hours (IST)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
REGISTERED MEMBERS

190411002

DP ID & CLIENT ID/FOLIO NO.

NO. OF SHARES



I/We, being the holder(s) of  equityy shares of Stovec Industries Limited, hereby appoint

1. Name : E-mail Id : 

Address:

 Signature:  or failing him/her

2. Name : E-mail Id : 

Address:

 Signature:  or failing him/her

3. Name : E-mail Id : 

Address:

 Signature: 

STOVEC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India

Tel: +91 (0) 79 6157 2300, Fax: +91 (0) 79 2571 0406, E-mail: secretarial@stovec.com,
CIN.: L45200GJ1973PLC050790 Website: www.stovec.com

45TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, THURSDAY, 9TH DAY OF MAY, 2019 AT 11:00 A.M.

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant  to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L45200GJ1973PLC050790

Name of the Company Stovec Industries Limited

Registered Office N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post: Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India

Name  of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Folio No. / Client Id

DP ID

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my / our behalf at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on Thursday, 9th day of May, 2019, at 11:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at N.I.D.C., Nr. Lambha Village, Post:
Narol, Ahmedabad – 382405, Gujarat, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Sr. Particulars
No. For Against

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended December 31,
2018, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditor’s thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dirk Wim Joustra (DIN: 00481154), who retires by rotation

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4. To partially modify the resolution related to appointment of Statutory Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. Appointment of Ms. Sangeeta Puneet Singh Sachdev (DIN: 08118379) as a Director of the

Company
6. Appointment of Mr. Eiko Ris (DIN: 07428696) as a Director of the Company
7. Re-appointment of Mr. Shailesh Wani (DIN: 06474766) as a Managing Director of the Company
8. Approval of remuneration to M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.

000338), the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019
9. Approval for Related Party Transactions with M/s SPGPrints B.V. for the financial year 2019 and 2020
10. Approval for Material Related Party Transactions relating to Acquisition of Service and Spare Parts

Business for rotary printing equipment from M/s SPGPrints B.V.

Optional*

Signed  this day of  2019

Notes:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48

hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Statement setting out material facts thereon and notes, please refer to the Notice of the 45 th Annual General Meeting.
3. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share

capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

*4. It is optional to put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank
against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Signature of Member(s)
across Revenue Stamp

Affix One
Rupee

Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
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